
 

Contact:  Eleanor Mulligan 
Tel:  01633 656656 
E-mail: eleanor.mulligan@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: Wednesday, 19 July 2017 
 

Agenda 
Newport City Council 
 
Date: Tuesday, 25 July 2017 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Venue: Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Newport 
 
To: All Members of the City Council 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site. 
 
At the start of the meeting the Mayor or Person Presiding will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed. The images and sound recording may be also used for training purposes within the Council.  
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and using the 
public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Chief Democratic Services Officer. 

 

 
Item  Wards Affected 

 
1.   Agenda yn Gymraeg  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
 

2.   Apologies   
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest   
 

 

4.   Preliminaries   
 

 

5.   Minutes  (Pages 9 - 22) 
 

 

6.   Appointments  (Pages 23 - 38) 
 

 

7.   Police Issues   
 

 

8.   Standing Orders  (Pages 39 - 42) 
 

All Wards 

9.   Director of Social Services Annual Report  (Pages 43 - 96) 
 

All Wards 

10.   Pillgwenlly Public Space Protection Order  (Pages 97 - 110) 
 

 

11.   Democratic Services Committee Annual Report  (Pages 111 - 118) 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

12.   Questions to the Chair of Cabinet   
To provide an opportunity for councillors to ask questions to the Chair 
of the Cabinet in accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders. 
 
Process:  
 
No more than 30 minutes will be allocated at the Council meeting for 
oral questions to the Leader 
 
If members are unable to ask their question orally within the allocated 
time, remaining questions will be answered in writing. The question 
and response will be appended to the minutes. 
 
The question must be addressed through the Mayor or the person 
presiding at the meeting and not directly to the person being 
questioned. 
 

 

13.   Questions to the Cabinet Members   
To provide an opportunity to pose Questions to Cabinet Members in 
line with Standing Orders  
 
Process:  
No more than 10 minutes will be allocated at the Council meeting for 
questions to each Cabinet Member.  
 
Members will have needed to submit their proposed questions in 
writing in accordance with Standing Orders. If members are unable to 
ask their question orally within the allocated time, remaining questions 
will be answered in writing. The question and response will be 
appended to the minutes.  
 
The question must be addressed through the Mayor or the person 
presiding at the meeting and not directly to the person being 
questioned.  
 
Questions will be posed to cabinet members in the following order:  
 

I. Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Assets and Member 
Development 

II. Cabinet Member for Education and Skills  
III. Cabinet Member for Social Services  
IV. Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Housing  
V. Cabinet Member for Community and Resources  
VI. Cabinet Member for Streetscene  

VII. Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulation  
VIII. Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure 
 
For Information: A digest of recent decision schedules issued by 
Cabinet, Cabinet Members and Minutes of recent meetings of 
Committees has been circulated electronically to all Members of the 
Council.  
 

 

14.   Questions to the Chairs of Committees   
To provide the opportunity to pose questions to the Chairs of the Committees in the 
following order:  
 

I. Scrutiny Committees  

 



 

 

 

 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

 Performance Scrutiny Committee – People 

 Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate 

 Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships  
 

II. Planning Committee  
III. Licensing Committee  
IV. Democratic Services Committee  
 
Process: No more than 10 minutes will be allocated at the Council 
meeting for questions to each Chair.  
 
Members will have needed to submit their proposed questions in 
writing in accordance with Standing Orders. If members are unable to 
ask their question orally within the allocated time, remaining questions 
will be answered in writing. The question and response will be 
appended to the minutes.  
 
The question must be addressed through the Mayor or the person 
presiding at the meeting and not directly to the person being 
questioned.  
 

15.   Standards Committee  (Pages 119 - 122) 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda 
Cyngor Dinas Casnewydd 

Dyddiad: 25 Gorffennaf 2017 

Amser: y.p. 

Lleoliad:  Siambrau'r Cyngor - Canolfan Ddinesig 

At sylw: Pob Aelod o'r Cyngor Dinas 

 

Eitem 

1.    Agenda Cymraeg 

2. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  

3. Datganiadau o fuddiant personol 

4. Cyhoeddiadau  

5. Cofnodion 

6. Penodiadau 

7. Materion yr heddlu 

8. Rheolau Sefydlog 

HYSBYSIAD GWE-DDARLLEDU 

Gall y cyfarfod hwn gael ei ffilmio ar gyfer darllediad byw neu ddarllediad wedi hynny trwy 

wefan y Cyngor. 

Ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod, bydd y Maer, Cadeirydd neu'r Person sy’n Llywyddu yn 

cadarnhau os yw cyfan neu ran o'r cyfarfod yn cael ei ffilmio. Efallai y bydd y delweddau a 

recordiad sain yn cael eu defnyddio hefyd at ddibenion hyfforddiant o fewn y Cyngor.  

Yn gyffredinol, nid yw'r ardaloedd eistedd cyhoeddus yn cael eu ffilmio.  Fodd bynnag, 

wrth fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod a defnyddio'r ardal seddau cyhoeddus, rydych yn 

rhoi caniatâd i chi gael eich ffilmio a defnydd posibl o rhai delweddau a recordiadau sain 

ar gyfer gwe-ddarlledu a/neu ddibenion hyfforddiant. 

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau ynghylch hyn, cysylltwch â Phrif Swyddog 

Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1.



9. Adroddiad Blynyddol y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

10. Gorchymyn Gwarchod Mannau Cyhoeddus Pillgwenlly 

11. Adroddiad Blynyddol gan Bwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

12.  Cwestiynau i Gadeirydd y Cabinet 

I roi'r cyfle i gynghorwyr ofyn cwestiynau i Gadeirydd y Cabinet yn unol â Rheolau 

Sefydlog y Cyngor. 

Proses: Ni chaiff mwy na 30 munud eu cadw yng nghyfarfod y Cyngor ar gyfer 

cwestiynau llafar i'r Arweinydd  

Os nad yw'r aelodau yn gallu gofyn eu cwestiwn ar lafar o fewn yr amser a 

glustnodwyd, bydd y cwestiynau sy'n weddill yn cael eu hateb yn ysgrifenedig.  Bydd 

y cwestiwn ac ymateb yn cael eu hatodi i'r cofnodion. 

Rhaid i'r cwestiwn cael sylw drwy'r Maer neu'r sawl sy'n llywyddu yn y cyfarfod ac nid 

yn uniongyrchol at y person a holir 

13.  Cwestiynau i Aelodau Cabinet 

I roi'r cyfle i ofyn cwestiynau i Aelodau'r Cabinet yn unol â Rheolau Sefydlog 

Proses: Ni chaiff mwy na 10 munud eu cadw yng nghyfarfod y Cyngor ar gyfer 

cwestiynau i bob Aelod Cabinet unigol. 

Bydd angen i’r Aelodau cyflwyno eu cwestiynau arfaethedig yn ysgrifenedig yn unol 

â’r Rheolau Sefydlog.  Os nad yw'r aelodau yn gallu gofyn eu cwestiwn ar lafar o 

fewn yr amser a glustnodwyd, bydd y cwestiynau sy'n weddill yn cael eu hateb yn 

ysgrifenedig.  Bydd y cwestiwn ac ymateb yn cael eu hatodi i'r cofnodion. 

Rhaid i'r cwestiwn cael sylw drwy'r Maer neu'r sawl sy'n llywyddu yn y cyfarfod ac nid 

yn uniongyrchol at y person a holir 

Bydd y cwestiynau yn cael eu gofyn i aelodau'r cabinet yn y drefn ganlynol: 

 Dirprwy Arweinydd / Aelod Cabinet dros Ddatblygu Asedau ac Aelodau 

 Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a Sgiliau  

 Aelod Cabinet dros y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

 Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywio a Thai 

 Aelod Cabinet dros y Gymuned ac Adnoddau 

 Aelod Cabinet dros Gwasanaethau Stryd 

 Aelod Cabinet dros Trwyddedu a Rheoleiddio 

 Aelod Cabinet dros Ddiwylliant a Hamdden 
 
 
 
Er Gwybodaeth:  Mae crynodeb o amserlenni penderfyniad diweddar a gyhoeddwyd 

gan y Cabinet, Aelodau Cabinet a Chofnodion cyfarfodydd diweddar y Pwyllgorau 

wedi cael ei gylchredeg yn electronig at bob Aelod o'r Cyngor.  

Page 6



 

14.  Cwestiynau i Gadeiryddion Pwyllgorau 

Bydd y cwestiynau yn cael eu gofyn i Gadeiryddion Pwyllgorau yn y drefn ganlynol: 

I. Pwyllgorau Craffu  

 Pwyllgor Rheoli Trosolwg a Chraffu 

 Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad – Pobl  

 Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad – Lleoedd a Materion Corfforaethol  

 Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad – Partneriaethau  

II. Pwyllgor Cynllunio 

III. Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

IV. Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

15. Pwyllgor Safonau 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
Council 
 
Date: 16 May 2017 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Present: The Mayor:  Mr D Atwell (part 1) and Councillor D Fouweather (part 2) in the 

Chair. 
 

Councillors M Al-Nuaimi, G Berry, J Clarke, J Cleverly, P Cockeram, 
M Cornelious, K Critchley, D Davies, V Dudley, C Evans, M Evans, C Ferris, Y 
Forsey, G Giles, J Guy, D Harvey, I Hayat, R Hayat, T Holyoake, P Hourahine, J 
Hughes, R Jeavons, C Jenkins, J Jordan, L Lacey, M Linton, S Marshall, 
D Mayer, R Mogford, A Morris, J Mudd, M Rahman, J Richards, W Routley, 
M Spencer, T Suller, H Thomas, K Thomas, C Townsend, H Townsend, 
R Truman, J Watkins, T Watkins, M Whitcutt, K Whitehead, R White, D Wilcox 
and D Williams. 

 
Apologies: Councillor M Kellaway. 
 

 
 
 

1. Inauguration of the Mayor  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Wilcox and seconded by Councillor M Evans and 
unanimously: 
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor Fouweather is elected as the Mayor of the City of Newport for the next year. 
Councillor Fouweather, having made and subscribed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office 
and taken the Official Oath and Oath of Allegiance, expressed thanks for the honour 
conferred upon him.    
 
Vote of Thanks 
 
It was proposed by the Mayor and seconded by Councillor Wilcox and unanimously: 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Council’s thanks be given to Mr David Atwell and Mrs Carole Atwell for the manner 
in which they had discharged their duties as Mayor and Mayoress. 
 
Response 
 
The outgoing Mayoress responded on behalf of the outgoing Mayor, remembering the 
highlights of their Mayoral year together.  While recognising the difficulties the Mayor had 
faced since being taken ill six months ago, the Mayoress noted the many happy events they 
had attended together, including some 100 events since his diagnosis.  The Mayoress 
thanked the Deputy Mayor and Mayoress for their support, especially at events which the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5.



 

Mayor was unable to attend.  Thanks were expressed for all the people who had supported 
their nominated charities throughout the year – Ty Hafan, Pets as Therapy, and SSAFA.  
Special recognition was also given to the many volunteers they had met this year while 
attending events, for their hard work in the community. 
 
The Mayoress thanked everyone who had supported them this year and helped them to 
continue their Mayoral year, especially the staff supporting the Mayoral Office.  Finally the 
Mayoress gave thanks to the outgoing Mayor, for his courage and determination to complete 
his duties.  The Chamber gave the Mayor a standing ovation. 
 

2. Inauguration of the Deputy Mayor  
 
It was proposed by the Mayor, seconded by Councillor Matthew Evans and unanimously 
 
Resolved 
 
That Council Richard White is appointed Deputy Mayor for the ensuing year.  Councillor 
White, having made and subscribed the Declaration of Acceptance for the role of Deputy 
Mayor expressed thanks for his appointment. 
 

3. Appointment of the Chair of Council  
 
The Mayor, Councillor David Fouweather, was appointed as Chair of Council. 
 

4. Announcements  
 
New Members 
 
Councillor Wilcox introduced the following newly elected members in the Labour Group:  
Rehmaan Hayat, Phil Hourahine, Jason Hughes, James Clarke, Stephen Marshall, Herbie 
Thomas, Yvonne Forsey, Graham Berry, Tracey Holyoake and Laura Lacey 
 
Councillor M Evans introduced the following newly elected members in the Conservative 
Group:  William Routley, Joan Watkins and Val Dudley. 
 
Councillor Whitehead introduced Jason Jordan, the newly elected member of the Newport 
Independents group. 
 
Councillor C Townsend introduced Holly Townsend, the newly elected member of the Liberal 
Democrat group. 
 

5. Appointment of the Leader of the Council  
 
Councillor Deborah Wilcox was appointed as Leader of the Council. 
 
The Leader of the Council announced her Cabinet as follows: 
 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Assets 
and Member Development: 

Cllr Mark Whitcutt 

Cabinet Member for Education and Skills: Cllr Gail Giles 

Cabinet Member for Social Services: Cllr Paul Cockeram 

Cabinet Member for Streetscene: Cllr Roger Jeavons 

Page 10



 

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Housing: Cllr Jane Mudd 

Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulation: Cllr Ray Truman 

Cabinet Member for Community and Resources: Cllr David Mayer 

Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure, and 
Business Manager: 

Cllr Debbie Harvey 

 
Opposition Spokespersons: 
 
Councillor Matthew Evans announced that he would act as Leader of the Opposition.  
Opposition spokespersons would be as follows: 
 

Deputy Leader Cllr Margaret Cornelious 

Education and Skills Cllr Joan Watkins 

Community Services Cllr Val Dudley 

Regeneration and Housing Cllr Martyn Kellaway 

Licensing and Regulation Cllr William Routley 

Streetscene Cllr Richard White 

Social Services Cllr David Williams 

Culture and Leisure Cllr Charles Ferris 

Resources Cllr Ray Mogford 

 
 

6. Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 and the 
Size and Composition of Local Planning Authority Committees (Wales) Regulations 
2017  
 
The Head of Law and Regulation presented a report outlining new regulations governing the 
composition of Planning Committee.  It was unanimously 
 
Resolved 
 
To amend the Council’s Standing Orders and Constitution to comply with the regulatory 
changes as follows: 
 

a) The composition of Planning Committee remains at 11 members; 
b) The quorum for Planning Committee should be 6 members; 
c) No substitutes shall be allowed; 
d) In multiple wards, only one ward member shall be appointed to Planning Committee;  
e) Site inspections shall continue to be decision-making meetings rather than fact-

finding, and should be carried out by full Committee, with a minimum quorum 
requirement of 6 members. 

 
7. Scrutiny Committee Structure  

 

Page 11



 

The Leader of the Council presented a report to implement a new structure for the Scrutiny 
Committees.  It was unanimously 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Council: 
 

1. Establish the following Scrutiny Committees: 
a. Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
b. Performance Scrutiny Committee – People 
c. Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate 
d. Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships 

 
2. Agree the terms of reference for these Scrutiny Committees, as outlined in the report. 

 
 

8. Appointment of Chairs of Committees  
 
Following nominations by the leaders of their respective parties, the following Committee 
Chair appointments were agreed by the Council: 
 

Planning Committee Cllr John Richards 

Licensing Committee Cllr Deb Davies 

Democratic Services Committee Cllr Charles Ferris 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee Cllr John Guy 

Performance Scrutiny Committee – People Cllr David Williams 

Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate Cllr Chris Evans 

Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships Cllr Majid Rahman 

 
(The nominated persons declared an interest in this item and did not vote on the specific 
appointments.) 
 

9. Appointment to Committees  
 
Each Group Leader agreed to pass the appointments of members to the committees to the 
proper officer for recording in the minutes.  The following committee appointments were 
submitted.  
 
Planning Committee: 
(6 Labour, 3 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr John Richards Lliswerry 

Labour (Deputy Chair) 
 

John Guy Alway 

Labour 
 

Cllr Malcolm Linton Ringland 

Labour 
 

Cllr James Clarke Malpas 

Labour Cllr Yvonne Forsey Rogerstone 

Page 12



 

 

Labour 
 

Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi Stow Hill 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Richard White Marshfield 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris Allt-yr-yn 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Ray Mogford Langstone 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jason Jordan Bettws 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Carmel Townsend St Julians 

 
Licensing Committee: 
(6 Labour, 3 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour (Deputy Chair) 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour Cllr Chris Jenkins 

Labour 
 

Cllr Tracey Holyoake 

Labour 
 

Cllr Majid Rahman 

Labour 
 

Cllr Graham Berry 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Margaret Cornelious 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Val Dudley 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Joan Watkins 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jan Cleverly 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
Audit Committee: 
(5 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem)  LAY MEMBER CHAIR 
 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Labour 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Richard White 

Conservative Cllr William Routley 

Page 13



 

 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jason Jordan 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Holly Townsend 

Lay Member  (Chair)  
 

Mr John Baker 

* Chair appointed by the Committee 
 
Democratic Services Committee: 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

 Conservative (Chair) 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris 

Labour 
 

Cllr Jane Mudd 

Labour 
 

Cllr Trevor Watkins 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 

Labour  
 

Cllr Rehmann Hayat 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Matthew Evans 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Chris Evans 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
 
Scrutiny Committees: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour 
 

Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 

Labour 
 

Cllr Phil Hourahine 

Labour 
 

Cllr Jason Hughes 

Labour 
 

Cllr Mark Spencer 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Matthew Evans 

Newport Independents Cllr Chris Evans 

Page 14



 

 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr Majid Rahman 

Labour 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour 
 

Cllr Steve Marshall 

Labour 
 

Cllr James Clarke 

Labour 
 

Cllr Rehmaan Hayat 

Labour 
 

Cllr Malcolm Linton 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Tom Suller 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Ray Mogford 

Newport Independents 
 

Cllr Jan Cleverly 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy  

 
 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - People 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Conservative (Chair) 
 

Cllr David Williams 

Labour 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Tracey Holyoake 

Labour 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Trevor Watkins 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Joan Watkins 

Newport Independents 
 

Cllr Kevin Whitehead 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Carmel Townsend 

 
 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate  

Page 15



 

(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Newport Independents (Chair) 
 

Cllr Chris Evans 

Labour Cllr John Richards 
 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ken Critchley 

Labour 
 

Cllr Majid Rahman 

Labour 
 

Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Margaret Cornelious 

Conservative 
 

Cllr William Routley 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
 
Standards Committee: 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas Labour  appointment 

Cllr Phil Hourahine Labour  appointment 

Cllr David Fouweather Conservative appointment  

 
Also: Phil Westwood (Chair), Gerard Hancock, Bernard John, Tracey Britton, Andrew 
Mitchell, Kerry Watkins. 
 
 
SACRE: The Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education: 
 

Cllr Gail Giles - Cabinet Member for 
Education and Skills  

Chair 

Cllr Laura Lacey Labour appointment 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat Labour  appointment 

Cllr Rehmaan Hayat Labour  appointment 

Cllr Joan Watkins Conservative appointment  

 
 
Appointments Committee – Strategic Director 
 

Labour  
 

Cllr Debbie Wilcox 

Labour 
 

Cllr Gail Giles 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Matthew Evans 

Page 16



 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jan Cleverly 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Carmel Townsend 

 
Corporate Parenting Forum: 
 

Chair (Labour) 
 

Cllr Gail Giles - Cabinet Member for Education 
and Skills 

Labour 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour 
 

Cllr Graham Berry 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 

Labour 
 

Cllr Steve Marshall 

Labour 
 

Cllr Jason Hughes 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey 

Labour 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour  
 

Cllr Chris Jenkins 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Joan Watkins 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Tom Suller 

 
HR Appeals: 
 
Members to be appointed to be used in rotation:  
 
Cllrs Kate Thomas, James Clarke, Mark Spencer, Ibrahim Hayat, Jane Mudd, Debbie 
Harvey, Tracey Holyoake, Chris Jenkins, David Williams, Charles Ferris, William Routley and 
Tom Suller. 
 
Employee Partnership Forum 
 

 Deputy Leader – Cllr Mark Whitcutt 

 CM for Community and Resources – Cllr David Mayer 

 CM for Education and Skills – Cllr Gail Giles 
 
Champions: 
 
Older Persons Champion:  Cllr Trevor Watkins 
Disabled and Vulnerable Persons Champion:  Cllr Kate Thomas 
Carers Champion:  Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 
Poverty Champion: Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Armed Forces Champion:  Cllr Mark Spencer 
Homelessness Champion:  Cllr Yvonne Forsey 
Biodiversity Champion:  Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

10. Appointments to External bodies  
 

Page 17



 

Each Group Leader agreed to pass the appointments of members to external bodies to the 
proper officer for recording in the minutes.  The following appointments were submitted.  
 
Governors: 
 
Re-Appointments 
Maindee Primary School: Richard Morgan 
Milton Infant School: Helen Truman 
Pillgwenlly Primary School: Ruqia Hayat 
Somerton Primary School: Alan Speight 
 
New Appointments 
Bassaleg School:  Cllr Yvonne Forsey 
Fairoak Nursery:  Cllr Christine Jenkins 
Glan Usk Primary School:  Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Kimberly Nursery:  Cllr James Clarke 
Maindee Primary School:  Cllr Christine Jenkins 
Malpas Church in Wales Junior School:  Cllr Laura Lacey 
Mount Pleasant Primary School:  Cllr Yvonne Forsey 
St Julians School:  Cllr Graham Berry 
Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Teyrnon:  Cllr Herbie Thomas 
 
 

Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Adoption Panel 1 Cllr Graham Berry 
 

Aneurin Bevan Health Board 
(Stakeholder Reference Group) 
 

2 
 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 
Cllr Val Dudley 

Arts Council for Wales: SE Wales 
Regional Committee 

1 Cllr Debbie Harvey as CM for Culture 
and Leisure 
 

Caldicot & Wentlooge Internal Drainage 
Board 
 
 
 

4(+4) 
 
 
 

4 Members 
Cllr Trevor Watkins 
Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Cllr David Williams 
Mr William Langsford 
 
4 Substitutes 
Cllr Graham Berry 
Cllr John Richards  
Cllr Ray Mogford 
Cllr Martyn Kellaway 
 

Careers Wales (Gwent) Ltd 
 

1 Cllr Gail Giles as Cabinet Member for 
Education and Skills 
 

Citizens Advice Bureau 1 Mr Cliff Suller 
 

Coleg Gwent 1 Cllr David Mayer 
 

Community Chest Local Panel 3 
 

Cllr Jason Hughes 
Cllr Debbie Davies 
Cllr Ray Mogford 
 

Page 18



 

Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Communities First Partnership 
 

1 Cllr David Mayer as CM for Community 
and Resources 
 

Communities First Cluster Groups 4 (+4) Central: Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi (sub: 
Cllr Majid Rahman) 
 
East: Cllr Debbie Harvey (sub: Cllr 
Laura Lacey) 
 
North: Cllr James Clarke (sub:Cllr Jane 
Mudd) 
 
West:Cllr Trevor Watkins (sub:Cllr 
Debbie Wilcox)  
 

Community Health Council, Newport 
Committee 

3 
 

Cllr John Guy 
Cllr David Williams 
Mrs Elaine Bryant 
 

Consortium of Local Authorities in Wales 
(CLAW) 
 

1 Leader: Cllr Debbie Wilcox 

Credit Union 
 

1 Cllr Stephen Marshall 

Education Achievement Service board 
member  (Company Board) 
 

1 Cllr Roger Jeavons 
(sub: Cllr Debbie Harvey) 

Education Achievement Service 
Commissioning Group (Education) (JEG) 
 

1 Cllr Gail Giles (sub: Cllr Debbie Davies) 

EAS Scrutiny Panel 2 Cllr David Mayer 
Cllr Laura Lacey 
 

EAS Audit & Risk Assurance Committee 2 Cllr David Mayer 
Cllr Laura Lacey 
 

East Newport Social Care Centre 
 

1 Cllr John Guy 

Fairness Commission 2 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas 
Cllr Tom Suller 
 

Friends of Newport Transporter Bridge 1 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris  

Food Waste Treatment Partnership 2 Cllr Ray Truman 
Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

Foster Panel 1 Cllr Graham Berry  
 

Frailty Project Joint Committee 1 Cllr Paul Cockeram 
 

Greater Gwent Archives Joint Committee 2 Cllr John Guy 
Cllr David Mayer 
 

Page 19



 

Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Greater Gwent Cremation Joint 
Committee 

2 Cllr Roger Jeavons 
Cllr Debbie Davies 
 

Greater Gwent Pension Fund Joint 
Committee 

3 Cllr Mark Whitcutt 
Cllr Herbie Thomas 
Mr J Baker 
 

Growing Space 1 Cllr Margaret Cornelious 
 

Gwent Association of Voluntary 
Organisations Local Committee 
 

1 Cllr Christine Jenkins 

Gwent Police & Crime Panel 3 Cllr John Guy 
Cllr William Routley 
Cllr Kevin Whitehead 
 

Gwent Level Wetlands Reserve 1 Cllr Jason Hughes 
 

Indoor Bowling Association 1 Cllr Tom Suller 
 

Jerome Gatehouse Collection Trust 
 

1 Cllr Mark Spencer 

Joint Council for Wales 2 Leader: Cllr Debbie Wilcox 
Cllr Ray Truman 
 

Public Services Board 2 Leader 
Chief Executive 
 

Merchant Navy Welfare 1 Cllr John Guy 
 

Mon Brecon Canal Joint Steering Group 3 Cllr Roger Jeavons 
Cllr Jane Mudd 
Cllr David Mayer 
 

Newport City Homes 3 Cllr Jane Mudd 
Mrs Val Delahaye 
Cllr Tracey Holyoake 
 

Newport Harbour Commission 2 Cllr John Guy 
Mr Alan Speight 
 

Newport Now BID 1 Cllr Jane Mudd 
 

Newport Transport Board 6 Cllr Herbie Thomas 
Cllr Mark Spencer 
Cllr Graham Berry 
Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Mr Cliff Suller 
Cllr Charles Ferris  
 

Newport Women’s Aid 1 Cllr Tracey Holyoake 
 

Page 20



 

Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Norse Joint Partnership Board 
(Norse Newport and NPS Newport) 

2 Cllr Roger Jeavons 
Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 
 

Pill Millennium Centre Trust 2 Cllr Tracey Holyoake 
Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 
 

Prosiect Gwyrdd Joint Committee 2 Cllr Ray Truman 
Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

Raven House Trust 1 Cllr David Fouweather 

Reserve Forces & Cadet Association 
 

1 Cllr Matthew Evans 

River Usk Management Group 1 Cllr Jason Hughes 
 

Roger Williams & Queen Victoria Alms 
Houses (Stow Hill) 
 

1 Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 

Shared Resource Service (SRS) 
Strategic Board  
 

1 Cllr David Mayer as CM for Community 
and Resources 

South East Wales Racial Equality 
Council (SEWREC) 
 

1 Cllr Majid Rahman 

South East Wales Strategic Planning 
Group 
 

1 Cllr Jane Mudd 

South Wales Fire Authority 2 Cllr Herbie Thomas 
Cllr Ken Critchley 
 

Wastesavers Limited 4 Cllr Mark Spencer 
Cllr Ray Truman 
Cllr Debbie Davies 
Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

Welsh Books Council 
 

1 Cllr David Williams 

Welsh Church Fund 2 Cllr Graham Berry 
Cllr Laura Lacey 
 

Welsh Joint Education Committee 
(WJEC) 

1 Cllr Gail Giles (to be confirmed by 
WLGA) 
 

Welsh Local Government Association 
(WLGA) 

3 Leader of the Council 
Deputy Leader 
Cllr Mark Spencer 
 

WLGA Coordinating Committee 
 

1 Leader of the Council 

Welsh Purchasing Consortium (Joint 
Arrangements) 
 

1 Leader: Cllr Debbie Wilcox 

Page 21



 

Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Williams Trust 4 Mr Cliff Suller  
Cllr Jason Hughes 
Caroline McLachlan 
Cllr Stephen Marshall 
 

 
 
The meeting terminated at 5.50 pm 
 

Page 22



Report 
Council 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  25 July 2017 
 

Subject Appointments 
 

Purpose To agree the appointment of Council nominees to committees and outside bodies. 

 

Author  Chief Democratic Services Officer 

 

Ward General 

 

Summary In accordance with its terms of reference within the Constitution, Council is responsible for 

appointing the members of Council Committees, and the Council’s representatives on 
outside bodies.  The current vacancies and nominations received are set out in the 
attached report.   

 

Proposal Council is asked to receive and approve the nominations for representatives, as 

listed in the report. 

 
Action by  Chief Democratic Services Officer 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
 Council Business Managers 
 Head of Law and Regulation 

 
 

Signed 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6.



Background 
 
In accordance with its terms of reference within the Constitution, Council is responsible for appointing the 
members of Council Committees, and the Council’s representatives on outside bodies.  The current 
vacancies and nominations received are set out below. 
 
Any vacant appointments / nominations received after the publication of this report, will be announced at 
the Council meeting by the appropriate Business Manager or Group Leader. 
 
Internal Appointments 
 

Committee No. of Vacancies / 
Replacements 

Nominations Received 

Democratic Services Committee 1 replacement Cllr Kate Thomas to replace Cllr Herbie 
Thomas 

Performance Scrutiny Committee – 
Place and Corporate 

1 replacement Cllr Graham Berry to replace Cllr Majid 
Rahman 

Homelessness and Supporting 
People Champion 

1 vacancy Cllr Yvonne Forsey (previously listed as 
Homelessness Champion) 

 
 
Appointments to External Organisations 
 

Organisation No. of Vacancies / 
Replacements 

Nominations Received 

Newport Transport Board 1 replacement Owen James (Assistant Head of Finance) 
to replace Cllr Graham Berry. 

Norse Joint Partnership Board 1 replacement Bev Owen (Strategic Director – Place) to 
replace Cllr Roger Jeavons. 

Caldicot and Wentlooge Drainage 
Board 

3 replacements Mr Matthew Jones to replace Mr William 
Langsford; 

Mr Steve Davies to replace Cllr Martyn 
Kellaway; and 

Cllr Richard White to replace Cllr David 
Williams 

Welsh Books Council 1 vacancy TBC  

Living Levels Board 2 vacancies Cllr Jane Mudd and Cllr Roger Jeavons 

Vale of Usk Local Action Group  1 vacancy Cllr Jane Mudd 

Newport LIVE Board 2 vacancies Cllr Debbie Wilcox and Cllr Mark Whitcutt 

Gwent Police and Crime Panel 1 replacement Cllr Jason Jordan to replace Cllr Kevin 
Whitehead 

Page 24



Williams Trust 1 replacement Roy McCabe to replace Stephen Marshall 

 
Governing Body Appointments 
 

Governing Body No. of Vacancies / 
Reappointments 

Nominations Received 

St Julian’s School 3 Paul Jones, Tracy McKim, Deborah Weston 

Caerleon Comprehensive School 2 Cllr Joan Watkins, Ann Price 

Llanwern High School 1 Cllr Debbie Harvey 

Crindau Primary School 1 Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Gaer Primary School 1 Cllr Stephen Marshall 

High Cross Primary School 1 Cllr Val Dudley 

Kimberly Nursery School 1 Georgina Cooper 

Langstone Primary School 1 Cllr William Routley 

Lliswerry High School 1 Mike Chaffin 

Millbrook Primary School 1 Cllr Jason Jordan 

Newport High School 1 Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Ringland Primary School 1 Cllr Malcolm Linton (from 1 Sept 2017) 

St Julians School 1 Mereille Hourihine 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Teyrnon 1 Dywnwen Barklam 

 
 
For reference, also attached at Appendix 1 is the current full list of appointments to external 
organisations (subject to the above changes). 
 
 

Proposal  

 
Council is asked to receive and approve the nominations, as listed in the report. 
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
There are no financial implications directly arising from this report. 
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
The appointment of individuals to serve on outside bodies is a Local Choice function under the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Functions and Responsibilities) (Wales) Regulations 2007.  The 
Council has determined that responsibility for this function shall rest with Full Council unless delegated 
by the Council. 
 
 

Page 25



Background Papers 
 
Newport City Council Constitution 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Functions and Responsibilities) (Wales) Regulations 2007 
 
 
Dated: 19 July 2017 

Page 26



NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL:   APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE 
BODIES: July 2017 Update 

 

Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Aneurin Bevan Health Board 
(Stakeholder Reference Group) 
 

2 
 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 
Cllr Val Dudley 

Arts Council for Wales: SE Wales 
Regional Committee 

1 Cllr Debbie Harvey as CM for Culture 
and Leisure 
 

Caldicot & Wentlooge Internal Drainage 
Board 
 

4(+4) 
 
 
 

4 Members 
Cllr Trevor Watkins 
Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Cllr Richard White 
Matthew Jones (TBC) 
 
4 Substitutes 
Cllr Graham Berry 
Cllr John Richards  
Cllr Ray Mogford 
Steve Davies (TBC) 
 

Careers Wales (Gwent) Ltd 
 

1 Cllr Gail Giles as Cabinet Member for 
Education and Skills 
 

Citizens Advice Bureau 1 Cliff Suller 
 

Community Chest Local Panel 3 
 

Cllr Jason Hughes 
Cllr Debbie Davies 
Cllr Ray Mogford 
 

Communities First Partnership 
 

1 Cllr David Mayer as CM for Community 
and Resources 
 

Communities First Cluster Groups 4 (+4) Central: Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi (sub: 
Cllr Majid Rahman) 
 
East: Cllr Debbie Harvey (sub: Cllr 
Laura Lacey) 
 
North: Cllr James Clarke (sub:Cllr Jane 
Mudd) 
 
West:Cllr Trevor Watkins (sub:Cllr 
Debbie Wilcox)  
 

Community Health Council, Newport 
Committee 

3 
 

Cllr John Guy 
Cllr Margaret Cornelious 
Elaine Bryant 
 

Consortium of Local Authorities in Wales 
(CLAW) 
 

1 Leader: Cllr Debbie Wilcox 

Page 27



Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Credit Union 
 

1 Cllr Stephen Marshall 

Education Achievement Service board 
member  (Company Board) 
 

1 Cllr Roger Jeavons 
(sub: Cllr Debbie Harvey) 

Education Achievement Service 
Commissioning Group (Education) (JEG) 
 

1 Cllr Gail Giles (as CM Education) 
(sub: Cllr Debbie Davies) 

EAS Scrutiny Panel 2 Cllr David Mayer 
Cllr Laura Lacey 
 

EAS Audit & Risk Assurance Committee 2 Cllr David Mayer 
Cllr Laura Lacey 
 

East Newport Social Care Centre 
 

1 Cllr John Guy 

Fairness Commission 2 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas 
Cllr Tom Suller 
 

Friends of Newport Transporter Bridge 1 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris  

Food Waste Treatment Partnership 2 Cllr Ray Truman 
Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

Foster Panel 1 Cllr Graham Berry  
 

Frailty Project Joint Committee 1 Cllr Paul Cockeram 
 

Greater Gwent Archives Joint Committee 2 Cllr John Guy 
Cllr David Mayer 
 

Greater Gwent Cremation Joint 
Committee 

2 Cllr Roger Jeavons 
Cllr Debbie Davies 
 

Greater Gwent Pension Fund Joint 
Committee 

3 Cllr Mark Whitcutt 
Cllr Herbie Thomas 
John Baker 
 

Growing Space 1 Cllr Margaret Cornelious 
 

Gwent Association of Voluntary 
Organisations Local Committee 
 

1 Cllr Christine Jenkins 

Gwent Police & Crime Panel 3 Cllr John Guy 
Cllr William Routley 
Cllr Jason Jordan (TBC) 
 

Gwent Level Wetlands Reserve 1 Cllr Jason Hughes 
 

Indoor Bowling Association 1 Cllr Tom Suller 
 

Page 28



Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

Jerome Gatehouse Collection Trust 
 

1 Cllr Mark Spencer 

Joint Council for Wales 2 Leader: Cllr Debbie Wilcox 
Cllr Ray Truman 
 

Living Levels Board 
 

2 Cllr Jane Mudd (TBC) 
Cllr Roger Jeavons (TBC) 
 

Merchant Navy Welfare 1 Cllr John Guy 
 

Mon Brecon Canal Joint Steering Group 3 Cllr Roger Jeavons (as CM Streetscene 
Cllr Jane Mudd (as CM Regeneration) 
Cllr David Mayer 
 

Newport City Homes 3 Cllr Jane Mudd 
Val Delahaye 
Cllr Tracey Holyoake 
 

Newport Harbour Commission 2 Cllr John Guy 
Alan Speight 
 

Newport Live Board 2 Cllr Debbie Wilcox (TBC) 
Cllr M Whitcutt (TBC) 
 

Newport Now BID 1 Cllr Jane Mudd 
 

Newport Transport Board 6 Cllr Herbie Thomas 
Cllr Mark Spencer 
Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Cliff Suller 
Cllr Charles Ferris  
Owen James (TBC) 
 

Newport Women’s Aid 1 Cllr Tracey Holyoake 
 

Norse Joint Partnership Board 
(Norse Newport and NPS Newport) 

2 Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 
Bev Owen (TBC) 
 

Pill Millennium Centre Trust 2 Cllr Tracey Holyoake 
Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 
 

Prosiect Gwyrdd Joint Committee 2 Cllr Ray Truman 
Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

Public Services Board 2 Leader 
Chief Executive 
 

Raven House Trust 1 Cllr David Fouweather 

Reserve Forces & Cadet Association 
 

1 Cllr Matthew Evans 

Page 29



Outside Body No Appointments 2017 
 

River Usk Management Group 1 Cllr Jason Hughes 
 

Roger Williams & Queen Victoria Alms 
Houses (Stow Hill) 
 

1 Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 

Shared Resource Service (SRS) 
Strategic Board  
 

1 Cllr David Mayer as CM for Community 
and Resources 

South East Wales Racial Equality 
Council (SEWREC) 
 

1 Cllr Majid Rahman 

South East Wales Strategic Planning 
Group 
 

1 Cllr Jane Mudd (as CM Regeneration 
and Housing) 

South Wales Fire Authority 2 Cllr Herbie Thomas 
Cllr Ken Critchley 
 

Vale of Usk Local Action Group 1 Cllr Jane Mudd (TBC) 
 

Wastesavers Limited 4 Cllr Mark Spencer 
Cllr Ray Truman 
Cllr Debbie Davies 
Cllr Roger Jeavons 
 

Welsh Books Council 
 

1 Nomination TBC 

Welsh Church Fund 2 Cllr Graham Berry 
Cllr Laura Lacey 
 

Welsh Joint Education Committee 
(WJEC) 

1 Cllr Gail Giles (as CM Education) 
(to be confirmed by WLGA) 
 

Welsh Local Government Association 
(WLGA) 

3 Leader of the Council 
Deputy Leader 
Cllr Mark Spencer 
 

WLGA Constitution 
 

1 Leader of the Council 

Welsh Purchasing Consortium (Joint 
Arrangements) 
 

1 Leader of the Council 

Williams Trust 
 

4 Cliff Suller – appointed to 2020 
Cllr Jason Hughes – appointed to 2020 
Caroline McLachlan 
Roy McCabe TBC 
 

 

Page 30



NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL – Internal Appointments: July 2017 Update 
 
Cabinet: 
 

Post Appointed 

Leader & Chair of Cabinet Cllr Debbie Wilcox 

Deputy Leader  and Cabinet Member for Assets and 
Member Development 
 

Cllr Mark Whitcutt 

Cabinet Member for Education and Skills Cllr Gail Giles 

Cabinet Member for Social Services Cllr Paul Cockeram 

CM for Streetscene Cllr Roger Jeavons 

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Housing Cllr Jane Mudd 

Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulation Cllr Ray Truman 

Cabinet Member for Community and Resources Cllr David Mayer 

Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure,  and  
Business Manager 

Cllr Deb Harvey 

 
Opposition Spokespersons: 
 

Post Appointed 

Leader of the Opposition Cllr Matthew Evans 

Deputy Leader Cllr Margaret Cornelious 

Education and Skills Cllr Joan Watkins 

Community Services Cllr Val Dudley 

Regeneration and Housing Cllr Martyn Kellaway 

Licensing and Regulation, and Business Manager Cllr William Routley 

Streetscene Cllr Richard White 

Social Services Cllr David Williams 

Culture and Leisure Cllr Charles Ferris 

Resources Cllr Ray Mogford 

 
 
 
 

Page 31



Planning Committee: 
(6 Labour, 3 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr John Richards Lliswerry 

Labour (Deputy Chair) 
 

John Guy Alway 

Labour 
 

Cllr Malcolm Linton Ringland 

Labour 
 

Cllr James Clarke Malpas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey Rogerstone 

Labour 
 

Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi Stow Hill 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Richard White Marshfield 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris Allt-yr-yn 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Ray Mogford Langstone 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jason Jordan Bettws 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Carmel Townsend St Julians 

 
 
 
 
Licensing Committee: 
(6 Labour, 3 Conservative, 1 NIP,1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour (Deputy Chair) 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour Cllr Chris Jenkins 

Labour 
 

Cllr Tracey Holyoake 

Labour 
 

Cllr Majid Rahman 

Labour 
 

Cllr Graham Berry 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Margaret Cornelious 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Val Dudley 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Joan Watkins 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jan Cleverly 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
 
 

Page 32



Audit Committee: 
(5 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem)  LAY MEMBER CHAIR 
 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Labour 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Richard White 

Conservative 
 

Cllr William Routley 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jason Jordan 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Holly Townsend 

Lay Member  (Chair)  
 

Mr John Baker 

* Chair appointed by the Committee 
 
 
Democratic Services Committee: 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

 Conservative (Chair) 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris 

Labour 
 

Cllr Jane Mudd 

Labour 
 

Cllr Trevor Watkins 

Labour 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas (TBC) 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 

Labour  
 

Cllr Rehmann Hayat 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Matthew Evans 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Chris Evans 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 

Page 33



Scrutiny Committees: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour 
 

Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 

Labour 
 

Cllr Phil Hourahine 

Labour 
 

Cllr Jason Hughes 

Labour 
 

Cllr Mark Spencer 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Charles Ferris 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Matthew Evans 

Newport Independents 
 

Cllr Chris Evans 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Labour (Chair) 
 

Cllr Majid Rahman 

Labour 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour 
 

Cllr Steve Marshall 

Labour 
 

Cllr James Clarke 

Labour 
 

Cllr Rehmaan Hayat 

Labour 
 

Cllr Malcolm Linton 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Tom Suller 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Ray Mogford 

Newport Independents 
 

Cllr Jan Cleverly 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy  

 
 
 

Page 34



Performance Scrutiny Committee - People 
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Conservative (Chair) 
 

Cllr David Williams 

Labour 
 

Cllr Kate Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Tracey Holyoake 

Labour 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Labour 
 

Cllr Trevor Watkins 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Joan Watkins 

Newport Independents 
 

Cllr Kevin Whitehead 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Carmel Townsend 

 
 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate  
(6 Labour, 2 Conservative, 1 NIP, 1 Lib Dem) 
 

Newport Independents 
(Chair) 
 

Cllr Chris Evans 

Labour Cllr John Richards 
 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ken Critchley 

Labour 
 

Cllr Graham Berry (TBC) 

Labour 
 

Cllr Miqdad Al-Nuaimi 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Margaret Cornelious 

Conservative 
 

Cllr William Routley 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Vacancy 

 
 

Page 35



 
Standards Committee: 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas Labour  appointment 

Cllr Phil Hourahine Labour  appointment 

Cllr David Fouweather Conservative appointment  

Also: Phil Westwood (Chair), Gerard Hancock, Bernard John, Tracey Britton, Andrew Mitchell, Kerry 
Watkins. 
 
SACRE: The Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education: 
 

Cllr Gail Giles - Cabinet Member for Education 
and Skills  

Chair 

Cllr Laura Lacey Labour appointment 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat Labour  appointment 

Cllr Rehmaan Hayat Labour  appointment 

Cllr Joan Watkins Conservative appointment  

 
Appointments Committee – Strategic Director 
 

Labour  
 

Cllr Debbie Wilcox 

Labour 
 

Cllr Gail Giles 

Labour 
 

Cllr Laura Lacey 

Labour 
 

Cllr Herbie Thomas 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Matthew Evans 

Newport Independents  
 

Cllr Jan Cleverly 

Liberal Democrat 
 

Cllr Carmel Townsend 

 
Corporate Parenting Forum: 
 

Chair (Labour) 
 

Cllr Gail Giles - Cabinet Member for Education 
and Skills 

Labour 
 

Cllr Deb Davies 

Labour 
 

Cllr Graham Berry 

Labour 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 

Labour 
 

Cllr Steve Marshall 

Labour 
 

Cllr Jason Hughes 

Labour 
 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey 

Labour 
 

Cllr John Guy 

Labour  
 

Cllr Chris Jenkins 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Joan Watkins 

Conservative 
 

Cllr Tom Suller 

Page 36



 
 
HR Appeals: 
 
Members to be appointed to be used in rotation:  
 
Cllrs Kate Thomas, James Clarke, Mark Spencer, Ibrahim Hayat, Jane Mudd, Debbie Harvey, Tracey 
Holyoake, Chris Jenkins, David Williams, Charles Ferris, William Routley and Tom Suller. 
 
Employee Partnership Forum 
 

 Deputy Leader – Cllr Mark Whitcutt 

 CM for Community and Resources – Cllr David Mayer 

 CM for Education and Skills – Cllr Gail Giles 
 
Champions: 
 
Older Persons Champion:  Cllr Trevor Watkins 
Disabled and Vulnerable Persons Champion:  Cllr Kate Thomas 
Carers Champion:  Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 
Poverty Champion: Cllr Phil Hourahine 
Armed Forces Champion:  Cllr Mark Spencer 
Homelessness and Supporting People Champion:  Cllr Yvonne Forsey (TBC) 
Biodiversity Champion:  Cllr Roger Jeavons 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Report 
Council 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  25 July 2017 
 

Subject Amendment to Standing Orders – Questions to the Leader at 
Council 

 

Purpose To propose changes to Standing Orders to introduce a session for Questions to the 

Leader at full Council meetings. 
 

Author  Chief Democratic Services Officer 

 

Ward All Wards 

 

Summary The report sets out the proposal to change Standing Orders to introduce a session for 

Questions to the Leader at full Council meetings. 
 

Proposal To adopt the proposals in this report and to change Standing Orders and the 

Constitution accordingly. 

 
Action by  Chief Democratic Services Officer 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
 Leader of the Council 
 Chief Executive 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Head of Finance 
 Head of People and Business Change 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8.



Background 
 
The Council’s Standing Orders form part of the authority’s constitution.  Any amendments to the 
Standing Orders are therefore a matter for full Council to debate and conclude upon. 
 
The Council’s administration suggests that the following amendments are made to the Standing Orders 
relating to the full Council meeting. 
 
Leader’s Question Time 
 
It is proposed to introduce an open session for elected members to ask questions of the Leader.  The 
proposed format is below.  The general standing orders relating to questions will still apply e.g. 2 minute 
time limit on question, rules on rejecting questions etc. 
 
The purpose of introducing a Leader’s Question Time is to give an opportunity to all Members of the 
Council to ask questions of the Leader, acting as the Chair of Cabinet and leading Member of the 
Authority.  The existing arrangements for submission of questions to other Cabinet Members and 
Committee Chairs will remain.   
 
The proposed system is based upon the system used for Prime Minister’s Questions in Parliament, and 
is intended to put a fair and equitable system in place for the allocation of questions.   
 
If approved, standing orders will be redrafted to include the following provisions: 
 
Leader’s Question Time 

 
a) The first question will be posed by the person presiding the Council meeting to the Leader as 

follows: 
 

 Before we commence questions from Members, does the Leader have any 
announcements to make to the Council? 

 
b) No more than 15 minutes will be allocated at the Council meeting for questions to the Leader.  

The 15 minute time limit will not include the Leader’s announcements, and will commence upon 
the second question being asked.   
 

c) Each Member asking a question may ask one supplementary question to clarify any point arising 
out of the answer received to the original question.   
 

d) Each opposition group will be allocated one question each, to be asked in order of group 
membership e.g. the largest opposition group goes first, followed by the second largest 
opposition group, and so on.  Each of the Group Leaders or their appointed deputies will be 
invited to put the question to the Leader in turn. 
 

e) After the allocated opposition group questions are completed, questions will be opened up to all 
Members. 
 

f) Questions from all other Members will be allocated according to a ballot.  Councillors wishing to 
ask a question of the Leader must notify the Chief Democratic Services Officer in writing by 
midday on the day of the council meeting.  In writing includes electronic mail.  The content of the 
question does not need to be submitted in advance.  Question notifications will be grouped 
according to opposition / ruling party Members then shuffled to produce a random order. 
Invitations to pose a question will be alternated between opposition and ruling party Members. 
 

g) The agenda item will end when the 15 minute time is over, or when the list of balloted questions 
is complete, whichever is the earliest. 
 

Page 40



Example of question order: 
 
1. Mayor asks Leader to make any announcements 

 
Followed by questions from: 
 

2. Leader of Opposition Group A 
3. Leader of Opposition Group B 
4. Leader of Opposition Group C 
5. Ruling Party Member from notification list 
6. Opposition Party Member from notification list 
7. Ruling Party Member from notification list 
8. Opposition Party Member from notification list 
 

Questions to continue until the notification list is complete, or the 15 minute time limit is up, 
whichever is the earliest. 

 
 
Financial Summary 
 
There is no cost to the proposed changes in standing orders. 
 
Proposal 
 
To adopt the proposals in this report and to change Standing Orders and the Constitution accordingly. 
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
There is no financial consequence to the proposed changes in standing orders. 
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
There are no specific legal issues arising from the report.  The Council is required to adopt procedural 
Standing Orders for the conduct of business and debate at meetings, but it is a matter for the Council to 
determine how these procedural matters should be addressed. 
 

Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
There are no specific human resources issues arising from the report.  From a policy and governance 
perspective, the Council is required to adopt procedural Standing Orders to enable business to be 
conducted and meetings to take place.  It is a matter for the Council to determine how these matters of 
procedure should be addressed and deployed. 
 

Background Papers 
Council Standing Orders. 
 
Dated: 18 July 2017 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report 
Council 
 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  25 July 2017 
 

Subject Annual Report of the Director of Social Services 
 

Purpose To present to Council the Annual Report of the Director of Social Services. 

 

Author  Mike Nicholson, Strategic Director (People) 

 

Ward City wide 

 

Summary This report is the Director’s evaluation of 2016/17 performance for Social Services and it 

identifies improving performance and, ‘value for money’ at a time of austerity. We are 
ready for the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014. The report 
takes a backward look through, ‘Telling the Story’ and forward look by identifying 
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats.  

 
The bulk of the report comprises an account of how we are responding to the Future 
Generations and Social Services and Wellbeing Acts’ requirement to deliver on citizen 
wellbeing. There are six quality standards and we set out a full account of our 
performance. The evidence demonstrates that we are well placed to continue to provide a 
comprehensive range of services that deliver improved wellbeing outcomes for citizens of 
Newport. 

 

Proposal To receive the Annual Report of the Director of Social Services, 2016/17.  

 
Action by  Mike Nicholson and James Harris 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 Social Services staff 

 Cabinet Member for Social Services 

 Monitoring Officer 

 Head of Finance 

 Head of People and Business Change 

 

Signed

Page 43

Agenda Item 9.



 

Background 
 
The purpose of this annual report is to set out the local authority’s improvement journey in providing 
services to people in Newport, who access information, advice and assistance, and those individuals and 
carers in receipt of care and support. This report sets out to demonstrate how Newport Social Services 
has responded to the new requirements of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and 
how we have promoted and accounted for the delivery of well-being standards to the citizens of Newport.  
 
The Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016 (R&I) and the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWB) sets out the requirement for the Director to produce an annual 
report setting out the performance of Social Services, following the format proscribed by  the Local 
Authority Social Services Annual reports (Prescribed Form) (Wales) Regulations 2016 and is intended 
for a range of audiences as set out in the Local Authority Annual Social Services Report guidance 
document.  
 
The intention of the report is not to detail process but to focus on the journey and outcomes achieved 
and the impact this has had on citizens in Newport. The evidence of our citizens has been used 
throughout the report as has the contribution of our partner agencies and commissioned services. 
 
Director’s Summary of Performance  
 
Introduction 
This is my last report as Director of Social Services before I retire and hand over to James Harris who 
will be the next Strategic Director (People) in Newport City Council. I would therefore like to extend my 
thanks to all those colleagues who have offered me advice and support over the past four years. In 
particular I would like to thank the Leader, Cabinet Members, my Heads of Service, managers and 
practitioners in Social Services and also in Education as well as corporate and colleagues from partner 
agencies. 
 
I believe that we are at a watershed moment for Social Services as we try to balance the aspirations of 
the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 and the Future Generations Act 2015 against the 
continuation of austerity. 
 
This report demonstrates an inspiring journey of transformation in Social Services. We have delivered 
genuine value for money insofar as we have ‘washed our face’ financially over the past five years and 
also contributed to corporate financial challenges. Funding for Social services is now a national and UK 
wide concern and we have every hope that this will lead to increased investment in the coming 5 years.  
As Director of Social Services I can say with confidence that without additional investment, it will not be 
possible to achieve the same record of financial probity without failing in our statutory duties and 
increasing safeguarding risks to the most vulnerable people in our community. 
 
It is our hope that the Welsh Government will avoid this risk by continuing to invest in Social Services at 
the level they have during 2017/18.   
 
Telling the Story 
In a review of our performance over the past five years, ‘Telling the Story’ (see appendix), it is noted that 
whist there has been occasional modest overspending over the past five years, savings outweigh 
investment by £3.8m.  

 
This was achieved through re-engineering, restructuring, developing and adopting a robust 
commissioning strategy, enhancement of prevention initiatives and developing alternative provision 
such as assistive living technology and medication management. Currently Newport has the lowest net 
budget per 10,000 of the 10 local authorities in its comparator group, see figure 1 below. 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 
 
 
Figure 1- – Spend Comparisons with Comparator Authorities – Budget per 10,000 Population 2017/18 
 

 
 
Lessons learned include the need to, ‘take everyone with us’ when on a transformation journey and we 
take time to, ‘celebrate success.’ We realised that we have not always, ‘communicated our 
achievements’ to corporate colleagues as well as we should have and to a degree the full nature of the 
transformation has been somewhat hidden.  
 
We also identified a number of key success factors and these include the importance of having, ‘a clear 
vision, purpose and underpinning values’ (Justice;Hope;Humility). ‘Strong governance’ ensured that 
projects delivered and a, ‘sense of pace’ was present in our most successful ventures. Developing a 
‘successful coalition of change agents’ (Service Managers, the corporate business improvement team 
and the consultancy Peopletoo) that supported, ‘culture change,’ and the commitment to avoid a blame 
culture when things went wrong by having a commitment to, ‘capture and apply learning.’ 
 
The ‘Telling the Story’ report also highlights the fact that although we have the lowest spend and support 
less adults in the community than Wales comparators, we support around twice as many people when 
compared to England. Despite the level of deprivation in Newport, we have significantly lower rates of 
delayed transfers of care from hospital than the Wales average and we are, ‘mid-table’ compared to 
English comparators. 
 
We support slightly more children in need than the Wales average and slightly less than the English 
average. There are lower numbers of children (per 10,000) on the Child Protection Register in Newport 
than the Wales and English average and we are below the Wales average and about the same as 
English comparators for the rate of children in care. 
 
Implementing the Act 
 
Throughout last year we used a programme management approach to implement the requirements of 
the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014. I am pleased to say that we have made considerable 
progress and are well placed to deliver on the letter and the aspirations of the law. The body of this 
report sets out our performance in delivering the Information, Advice and Assistance, care and support 
planning and review and distance travelled evaluation required in law. We are particularly proud of our 
developing preventions network and we have really benefitted from the Wales Government Intermediate 
Care Fund grant. We are making progress on Welsh Language requirements and have set the autumn 
as the date for implementing the all-Wales integrated data and case management system and we have 
electronic information systems for the public such as Dewis and ‘Ask Sarah.’ 
 
We need to improve our performance in the use of the distance travelled evaluation system and in 
compliance with the requirements for the Welsh Language. 
 
 

Page 45



 

CSSIW Feedback 
In June 2017 we received a performance review letter from our colleagues in CSSIW and their 
assessment of our performance in 2016/17 included the following comments: 

 Adult Care Management teams, aim to ‘provide more effective individual outcomes’: CSSIW, ‘we 

confirmed significant progress towards this aim—closer managerial oversight, coupled with 

maintaining an appropriate skill mix in each of the revised teams—is key to ensuring that 

progress made becomes embedded in routine practice.’ 

 Relating to Placements for children in care: CSSIW, ‘There continues to be considerable difficulty 

in finding specialist placements for a small number of young people with very complex support 

needs—this resulted in difficulties in some of the LA’s own provision where children have been 

placed due to lack of alternatives – the LA is experiencing financial pressures due to use of out of 

area placements. The LA has as a result put considerable thought into re-shaping one of its in-

house residential facilities’ 

 The LA continues to build on its strong partnership with the Health Board, leading to a reduction 

in DToCs, but has challenges in relation to continuing health care funding 

 The LA is making progress on implementing, ‘More than just Words’ 

 CSSIW will wish to follow up the impact (of resource reductions) on services 

Overall this letter reflects a worry on behalf of the regulator that positive progress may be affected by the 
impact of austerity, but overall our individual inspection reports and the overall letter reflect the fact that 
our services are performing well. 
 
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) 
This section of the report takes the form of a SWOT analysis based on the views of senior managers and 
other colleagues in Social Services. There is much to celebrate with a stable and innovative workforce 
delivering improving performance and great value for money over the past five years. 
 
Whilst there are considerable threats (mostly financial in an age of austerity), there are also many 
excellent opportunities. 
 
Promoting and Improving Wellbeing 
The main report comprises an account of how we are responding to the Future Generations and Social 
Services and Wellbeing Acts’ requirement to deliver on citizen wellbeing. There are six quality standards 
and we set out a full account of our performance. The evidence demonstrates that we are well placed to 
continue to provide a comprehensive range of services that deliver improved wellbeing outcomes for 
citizens of Newport. We will prepare a delivery plan for the priority outcomes set out below  
 
Wellbeing Outcomes Delivery Priorities (2018/19) 

1. We will develop a workforce strategy – as required by CSSIW 
 
2. We will strengthen client informatics – in order to help identify which clients are getting what 

preventative services in order to target services more effectively through outcome focussed 
commissioning 
 

3. We will strengthen our work on emotional and mental health services for vulnerable people 
particularly children in care 
 

4. We will increase social work capacity in YOS – to manage additional referrals arising from 
targeted police interventions 
 

5. We will improve risk assessments and joint working for young people in need of protection. This 
is an area identified by inspectors for improvement 
 

6. We will strengthen the voice of carers and vulnerable people in the design and delivery of 
services  

Page 46



 

 
7. We will promote the resilience and independence of citizens in order to avoid creating 

dependency on traditional forms of service delivery 
 

8. To develop a therapeutic mileu for children in our own residential homes and to explore regional 
approaches to commissioning residential care for children presently placed out of the Gwent 
region. 
 

9. To continue the development of person centred care and support in our re-ablement, domiciliary 
care, residential and nursing care and increasing the use of direct payments and telecare. 
 

10. To develop apprenticeship opportunities in the Council for people who use our services 
 
 

Conclusion 
Overall this report sets out a comprehensive account of Social Services performance in the year of 
implementation of the most transformational legislation in a generation. I believe that the evidence 
indicates that Social Services has transformed over the past 5 years and that the service provides 
excellent value for money and has a record of strong, innovative and improving performance that has 
delivered better outcomes for our most vulnerable citizens. We have told the story of our transformation 
journey over the past 5 years, set out our future goals and we will be preparing a strategic 
commissioning plan for the period 2017-2022. 
 
The storm clouds are gathering and without sustained investment from Welsh Government, the service 
will begin to become less innovative, more pressurised and provide less support to people who are in 
need. But, whatever the challenges, I can assure the administration and all members that the Social 
Services workforce will continue to put the needs of the most vulnerable first. We will do everything we 
can to continue to maintain the high standards of professionalism that is required to protect people from 
harm and to promote the wellbeing of our most vulnerable citizens. 
 
 
Financial Summary 
 
Compared to our benchmark and Gwent local authorities, the Social Services Budget for 2016/17 was 
the third lowest per head of population.  
 

 
 
The challenges of delivering Social Services in what is between the 4th or 5th most deprived local 
authority in Wales (Index for Multiple Deprivation 2014) has led to an overspend at the end of the year. 
The overspend in Adult Services was £463k which is just over 1% of budget and this is a result of a 
£1.1m overspend on community care budgets due to more people needing residential and nursing care, 
and greater costs due to increasingly complex needs. The overspend in Children’s Services was £181k 
which is around 0.8% of budget and the principle challenge is in finding placements for young people 

Page 47



 

with complex needs and challenging behaviour. This budget alone had a variance of £890k and it is to 
the credit of staff that the overall position was considerably less. 
 

For the year 2017/18, Social Services has the lowest net budget per 10,000 of the 10 local 
authorities in its comparator group. 
 
Risks 
 

Risk Impact  
of Risk 

if it 
occurs 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 

occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council 
doing or what has it 

done to avoid the risk or 
reduce its effect 

Who is responsible 
for dealing with the 

risk? 

That the new duties 
identified in the 
Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act 2014 
will bring 
unsustainable 
financial pressure 

H M Directors of Social 
Services (and WLGA) 
fully engaged with 
Wales Government on 
the drafting of 
regulations and 
guidance. 
 
We are maintaining 
strong financial controls 
on day to day decision 
making in the service 

Mike Nicholson, 
James Harris, 
Strategic Director 
(People) Chris 
Humphrey Head of 
Adult Integrated 
Services (Social 
Care and 
Health)and Sally 
Jenkins, Head of 
Children and 
Family Services 

That users and 
carers will not have 
the opportunity to 
contribute further to 
our understanding 
of their experience 
to inform the 
development of 
services in future 
years 

H L The plan will be to 
continue to hold regular 
and frequent service 
user and carer forum 
meetings, as well as 
making use of a wide 
variety of other 
consultative 
mechanisms that we 
have put in place for 
users and carers.  We 
will continue to develop  
imaginative ways of 
capturing people’s 
views, comments and 
experiences  

Mike Nicholson, 
James Harris, 
 
Chris Humphrey, 
Head of Adult 
Integrated Services 
(Social Care and 
Health) and 
Health)and Sally 
Jenkins, Head of 
Children and 
Family Services 

The members of 
staff are not given 
the opportunity to 
use this report to 
gain a greater 
sense of ownership 
for the future 
direction of services 
and their part in 
continuous 
improvement 

H L The report will continue 
to be used widely 
amongst members of 
staff and partner 
agencies and used as a 
vehicle for ensuring a 
wide ranging discussion 
in team meetings and 
management to ensure 
that it provokes a 
healthy debate. 

Mike Nicholson, 
James Harris 

 
Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 

 Single Integrated Plan  
o Skills and Work – Youth Opportunity 

Page 48



 

o Safe and Cohesive Communities – Antisocial behaviour 
o Safe and Cohesive Communities – Youth Justice 
o Health and Wellbeing – Mental Wellbeing 

 

 Newport City Council’s Corporate Plan 2012-17 

 Newport 20/20  
 
Options Available and considered  
 
Option 1 -That Council endorses the Annual Report of the Director of Social Services for 2014/15 

 
Option 2 – That Council does not endorse the Annual Report of the Director of Social Services for 
2014/15 and sets out specific reasons and recommendations for action 
 
Preferred Option and Why 
 
Option 1 since the Annual Report of the Director of Social Services is a statutory requirement whereby 
the Director provides their assessment of performance to the Council 
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 
There are no direct financial consequences stemming from the annual report itself, although it does 
emphasise the volume of budget reductions that have been achieved over the last five years. As the 
report says, further budget savings will be very challenging but in the context of the current financial 
environment and the size of the social care budgets within the overall Council budget, inevitable.  
 
The report also makes reference to significant progress made throughout 16/17 with regards to the 
implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014. This has brought new financial and 
operational challenges to the service area.  The strategic change programme is continuing and 
delivering on its proposals.  It is essential that due to the high risk nature of the service, it has robust 
financial management.   
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
The Director of Social Services has a statutory duty under the Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 
(as amended by the Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016) to produce an annual 
report to the Council, setting out the performance of Social Services in delivering its social care functions 
during the past year. This Annual report has been prepared in accordance the Local Authority Social 
Services Annual Reports (Prescribed Form) (Wales) Regulations 2016 and statutory guidance as set out 
in the Local Authority Annual Social Services Report guidance document.  The Report also sets out how 
the Council has promoted and delivered well-being standards for service users and carers in need of 
care and support, in accordance with the six well-being outcomes. In accordance with the Council’s 
performance management framework, the Scrutiny Committee is being asked to consider and comment 
on the adequacy of the draft report in addressing the issues identified.  The Report confirms that the 
Council has made good progress in implementing the Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act, in a 
structured and programmed manner, and is meeting the requirements of the Future Generations and 
Well Being Act in delivering on citizen wellbeing.  The final Report will need to be presented to full 
Council 
 

Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
This report sets out the Director of Social Services’ own assessment of the performance of Social 
Services in 2016-17 as part of his statutory role. Whilst there are no direct staffing implications that arise 
specifically from the report there are potentially implications in the future, either as a result of on-going 
financial uncertainty or the further implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act or Wellbeing 
of Future Generations Act. These will need to be considered as they arise and are not the purpose of 
this report.  

Page 49



 

 
The report rightly points out the significant additional pressure applied through the implementation of 
both Acts and how Social Services is responding and how it will continue to do so.  
 

Comments of Cabinet Member 
 
The Cabinet Member supports the position set out by the Director of Social Services in his report. 
Recognising the constraints and pressures under which we are operating it is heartening to see that 
service performance is improving year on year. In addition over the past 5 years, the savings made by 
Social Services has outstripped additional funding given to the service. This represents good value for 
money to the citizens of Newport.  
 
Looking ahead, I am mindful of the fact that the Council may be facing even more financial constraints 
and Social Services will have to play its part. I remain concerned about the impact of austerity upon the 
ability of Social Services to deliver on its core purpose of safeguarding and promoting the wellbeing of 
our most vulnerable citizens. 
 

Comments of Scrutiny (Response from Director of Social Services in Italics) 
 
Content of the Annual Report 
 
The Committee commended the Social Services Team on the positive, innovate and creative approach 
being taken within the service area, and the references to the detail within the report on the journey of 
transformation within social services to develop and improve the outcomes for service users.  
 
The Committee noted the changes made to the report structure from previous reports, and agreed that 
the new format contained appropriate levels of detail, was informative and was easy to read making it 
accessible and understandable. Members felt that the report provided valuable insight on how services 
were delivered and the impact that it was having on service users 
 
Performance of the Service Area  
 

1. The Committee noted the positive progress being made within both Adult Services and Children 
and Young People service areas and noted that staff turnover was not an issue at the moment 
within the teams.  Members agreed that going forward, it was fundamental that the service areas 
continue to ‘do the basics’ well and support staff within their teams to enable them to undertake 
their roles effectively. To make sure that a problem does not develop in the future, this should 
include continuing to ensure that appropriate managerial support and training is provided for 
social workers, and that caseloads remain at a manageable level. 
 
Agreed by Director of Social Services 
 

2. Within the report, the Director outlines concerns with the ongoing financial situation and the 
severe risk to the service if funding for social services continues to decrease.  The Committee 
were concerned about this risk and the potential impact on service users as some of the most 
vulnerable people. Members agreed that this was a key risk within the service area, and that 
further consideration should be given by the Cabinet as to how the Council is mitigating this risk, 
and developing a more strategic approach to budgeting to protect vulnerable service users in this 
area. 
 
This is a matter for Cabinet under advice from officers during the MTRP process 
 
Implementation of the Objectives 
 

3. Members were advised by the Director that a Strategic Commissioning Strategy would underpin 
this report, which would contain a delivery plan for how the service would implement the 

Page 50



 

objectives. The Committee requested that detail of any costs associated with implementing these 
objectives be outlined within the delivery plan. 
 
Agreed by Director of Social Services 
 

4. Implementation of the objectives will be key to the continued improvement within social services. 
Members agreed that the delivery plan should be monitored on a regular basis and that any 
update provided should cover: 

 How the objectives are being implemented;  

 How progress is being measured  

 How the voice of service users was being sought and considered in determining progress; 

 An assessment of what impact the implementation was having on service users.  
 

Agreed by Director of Social Services 

 
5. Members agreed that Regional working should be considered to address outcomes for looked 

after children. It was noted that this was captured within the Quality Standard E Objective; 
Members agreed that this would be a key area to explore and agreed to highlight this to the 
Cabinet.  
 
Supported by Director of Social Services 
 
Areas for further consideration 

 
6. Consideration should be given to role of Councillors as Corporate Parents and how the Council 

can be developed to ensure positive experiences and outcomes for looked after children. 
 
Agreed by Director of Social Services  - we will bring forward a work plan to the Corporate 
Parenting Committee 
 

7. The report highlighted key areas that would warrant further investigation and monitoring going 
forward. It was anticipated that this would be captured within the delivery plan / Strategic 
Commissioning Strategy through the delivery of the objectives.The Committee agreed to refer the 
monitoring of this delivery plan, to the Performance Scrutiny Committee – People for 
consideration for inclusion on their work programme.  
 
Members felt that this would be a key document that would provide evidence to the Scrutiny 
Committee when undertaking their role in in evaluating the performance of the service area, and 
give an important indication of progress in key areas of weakness identified.  
 
Agreed by Director of Social Services 
 

8. The Committee agreed to highlight the following issues to the Performance Scrutiny Committee – 
People to consider for inclusion in their work programme: 

 Outcomes for children in care and the exploration of regional working within this area to 
improve experience of looked after children ; 

 Participation and involvement – how service users are consulted on decisions; 

 Preventative services – the role of preventative services in reducing the demand for more 
acute services, and what evidence can be provided and investment in these types of 
services has an impact on outcomes for service users.  

 Site visits to the facilities.  
 

Agreed by Director of Social Services 

 
In concluding the meeting, the Chairperson noted that it was the Directors last attendance at Scrutiny 
prior to his retirement at the end of July.  The Chairperson thanked the Director of Social Services for his 

Page 51



 

work over the last 5 years in this role, and commented that the Director had been invaluable in 
progressing improvements within one of the most important services within the authority.   
 

Local issues 
 
City-wide report 
 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment and the Equalities Act 2010 
 
Not applicable to this report 
 

Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
 
Not applicable to this report 
 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
This report sets out how Social Services has responded to the following requirements: 
 

 Long term: the importance of balancing short- term needs with the need to safeguard the ability 
to also meet long – term needs  

 Prevention: How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help us meet our 
objectives 

 Integration: Consider how the proposals will impact on our wellbeing objectives, our wellbeing 
goals, other objectives or those of other public bodies 

 Collaboration:  have you considered how acting in collaboration with any other person or any 
other part of our organisation could help meet our wellbeing objectives  

 Involvement: The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the wellbeing goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the City we serve. 

 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
Not applicable to this report  
 

Consultation  
 
There is a continuing programme throughout the year of meeting with users and carers to help people 
make their contribution to the continuing intelligence on which my annual report to Council will be built. 
 

Background Papers 
 
Telling the story ‘Telling the Story’ (pdf), 
 
 

Page 52

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Care-and-Support/Director-Social-Services-Annual-Report-2014-2015/Telling-the-Story-for-Peoples-Services-2010-to-2016-Final-July-2017.pdf


1 
 

 

 

Newport City Council 

 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR 

OF SOCIAL SERVICES 2016/17 

 

‘A Firm Foundation’ 

‘IMPROVING PEOPLE’S LIVES’ 

 

 

Mike Nicholson 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR - PEOPLE 

Page 53



2 
 

CONTENTS 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY        pages 3-4 

 

2. INTRODUCTION         page 5 

  

3. DIRECTORS SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE     pages 5-12 

 

4. HOW ARE PEOPLE SHAPING OUR SERVICES?     Pages13-14  

 

5. PROMOTING AND IMPROVING THE WELLBEING OF THOSE WE HELP  pages 15-40 

 

6. HOW WE DO WHAT WE DO       pages 40-43 

 

7. APPENDIX:         page 44 

A.  Telling the Story 

  

 

Page 54



3 
 

Annual Report of the Director of Social Services 2016/17 

Executive Summary 
 

It is a statutory requirement of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014, that the Director of Social 

Services provide an annual report on the performance of the service and priorities for the future. This is my 

final report before handing over to James Harris who will be undertaking this role following my retirement.  

In a review of performance over the past 5 years, ‘Telling the Story’ (pdf), we set out the transformation 

journey of Social Services over the past 5 years. Key achievements are identified including improved 

performance, greater workforce stability, excellent overall financial management and value for money. We 

have more than ‘washed our face’ by delivering higher savings than investment over the 5 years, despite 

having the lowest budget per citizen of our comparator group of authorities. Our performance against 

English authorities is also very good. 

Our success is built upon our vision of improving people’s lives by providing, seamless, integrated pathways 

of support for vulnerable people. This is underpinned by our values of, Justice, Hope and Humility, delivered 

by shared leadership and strong governance. We have made the changes necessary to deliver the aspirations 

and requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 and our regulators CSSIW say that there has 

been, ‘significant progress’ towards more effective individual outcomes. They note challenges in finding 

placements for young people with high levels of vulnerability and the resulting pressure on budgets, but they 

describe a, ‘strong partnership’ with the Health Board as evidenced by reductions in the number of hospital 

patients who are delayed from going home for social care reasons .  

Following a consultation with colleagues I identify strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats facing 

the service: 

Strengths: include a strong and stable workforce with year on year good and improving performance. We 

have a strong ability to engage with vulnerable people and the range and quality of innovation and creativity 

demonstrated by the workforce helps deliver impact and outcomes for vulnerable people. 

Weaknesses: include occasional tensions between workforce teams and the need for us to engage more 

positively with corporate responsibilities. We need to enhance the voice of the citizen in shaping the design 

and delivery of services and we need to improve outcomes for children in care and people with mental 

health challenges. 

Opportunities: include the new national data base for Health and Social Care (WCCIS), our strong regional 

partnerships with Health colleagues including those services where we have the regional lead. 

Threats: include the possibility of our progress being put at risk due to continuing financial austerity. We 

have analysed the range of options open to us for further financial savings and identified the risks and we 

conclude that it is vital that Welsh Government continue to invest in Social Services at the level they have 

delivered in 2017/18 (£55m). 

Page 55

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Care-and-Support/Director-Social-Services-Annual-Report-2014-2015/Telling-the-Story-for-Peoples-Services-2010-to-2016-Final-July-2017.pdf


4 
 

The report sets out how people are shaping our services, through citizen consultations, population needs 

assessments, budget consultations and consulting young people including children in care. 

Performance is measured this year by describing how we have impacted upon national outcomes for citizen 

wellbeing as set out in the Social Services and Wellbeing and Future Generations Acts. This includes how we 

work together with citizens to provide, Information, Advice and Assistance using conversations like, ‘What 

matters to you?’ as opposed to, ‘What is the matter with you?’ Our ‘first contact teams deal with 21,800 

contacts and requests for help each year, but after initial contact 12% need no help and around 11% of 

people resolve the issue themselves. The, ‘What matters’ conversation leads to around 39% of people 

finding what they need and around 9% of people are referred to preventive services, leaving around 29% or 

6,300 people needing assessments and care and support plans. 

Our preventive and care and support services use, ‘evidence based’ approaches which demonstrate 

increased resilience for vulnerable adults and children as well as reductions in the need for acute services 

like care or hospital placements. These improvements have been confirmed by independent evaluations - 

one of which described our family support services as being the best example they have seen in all their 

work across England and Wales. 

Support services for citizen physical, mental health and emotional wellbeing are set out and particular 

examples of our innovative approach to supporting older people to live well in their own homes are 

described. In addition safeguarding practice is described and the various roles and activities to ensure that 

safeguarding is, ‘everybody’s business’ is set out.  

Our performance in relation to supporting people to learn, develop and participate in society is described as 

well as support services for maintaining healthy domestic, family and personal relationships. The final 

wellbeing outcome is supporting people to achieve greater economic well-being, have a social life and live in 

suitable accommodation and the report concludes with a description of our workforce, an analysis of 

financial resources and the role of regional partnerships. 

 Overall this report sets out a comprehensive account of Social Services performance in the year of 

implementation of the most transformational legislation in a generation. I believe that the evidence 

indicates that Social Services has transformed over the past 5 years and that the service provides excellent 

value for money and has a record of strong, innovative and improving performance that has delivered better 

outcomes for our most vulnerable citizens.  

The storm clouds are gathering and without sustained investment from Welsh Government, the service will 

begin to become less innovative, more pressurised and provide less support to people who are in need. But, 

whatever the challenges, I can assure the administration and all members that the Social Services workforce 

will continue to put the needs of the most vulnerable first. We will do everything we can to continue to 

maintain the high standards of professionalism that is required to protect people from harm and to promote 

the wellbeing of our most vulnerable citizens.

Page 56



5 
 

1. Introduction 
The purpose of this annual report is to set out the local authority’s improvement journey in providing 

services to people in Newport, who access information, advice and assistance, and those individuals and 

carers in receipt of care and support. This report sets out to demonstrate how Newport Social Services has 

responded to the new requirements of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and how we 

have promoted and accounted for the delivery of well-being standards to the citizens of Newport.  

 

The Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016 (R&I) and the Social Services and Wellbeing 

(Wales) Act 2014 (SSWB) sets out the requirement for the Director to produce an annual report setting out 

the performance of Social Services, following the format proscribed by  the Local Authority Social Services 

Annual reports (Prescribed Form) (Wales) Regulations 2016 and is intended for a range of audiences as set 

out in the Local Authority Annual Social Services Report guidance document.  

 

The intention of the report is not to detail process but to focus on the journey and outcomes achieved and 

the impact this has had on citizens in Newport. The evidence of our citizens has been used throughout the 

report as has the contribution of our partner agencies and commissioned services. 

2. Director’s Summary of Performance  
 

Introduction 

This is my last report as director of Social Services before I retire and hand over to James Harris who will be 

the next Strategic Director (People) in Newport City Council. I would therefore like to extend my thanks to all 

those colleagues who have offered me advice and support over the past 4 years. In particular I would like to 

thank the Leader, Cabinet Members, my Heads of Service, managers and practitioners in Social Services and 

also in Education as well as corporate and colleagues from partner agencies. 

I believe that we are at a watershed moment for Social Services as we try to balance the aspirations of the 

Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 and the Future Generations Act 2015 against the continuation of 

austerity. 

Thus report demonstrates an inspiring journey of transformation in Social Services and despite some years 

where there has been overspending, the net position was a budgetary overspend of £58k over the past 5 

years. We have achieved good value for money because we have ‘washed our face’ financially over the past 

5 years and also contributed to corporate financial challenges. Funding for Social services is now a national 

and UK wide concern and we have every hope that this will lead to increased investment in the coming 5 

years.  As Director of Social Services I can say with confidence that without additional investment, it will not 

be possible to achieve the same record of financial probity without failing in our statutory duties and 

increasing safeguarding risks to the most vulnerable people in our community.  

It is our hope that the Welsh Government will avoid this risk by continuing to invest in Social Services at the 

level they have during 2017/18.  

 

Page 57



6 
 

Telling the Story 

In a review of our performance over the past 5 years, ‘Telling the Story’ (pdf) (see appendix), it is noted that 

whist there has been occasional modest overspending over the past 5 years, savings outweigh investment by 

£3.8m.  

This was achieved through re-engineering, restructuring, developing and adopting a robust commissioning 

strategy, enhancement of prevention initiatives and developing alternative provision such as assistive living 

technology and medication management. Currently Newport has the lowest net budget per 10,000 of the 10 

local authorities in its comparator group, see figure 1 below. 

 

Figure 1- – Spend Comparisons with Comparator Authorities – Budget per 10,000 Population 

2017/18 

 

 

Lessons learned include the need to, ‘take everyone with us’ when on a transformation journey and we take 

time to, ‘celebrate success.’ We realised that we have not always, ‘communicated our achievements’ to 

corporate colleagues as well as we should have and to a degree the full nature of the transformation has 

been somewhat hidden.  

We also identified number of key success factors and these include the importance of having, ‘a clear vision, 

purpose and underpinning values’ (Justice; Hope; Humility). ‘Strong governance’ ensured that projects 

delivered and a, ‘sense of pace’ was present in our most successful ventures. Developing a, ‘successful 

coalition of change agents’ (Service Managers, the corporate business improvement team and the 

consultancy Peopletoo) that supported, ‘culture change,’ and the commitment to avoid a blame culture 

when things went wrong by having a commitment to, ‘capture and apply learning.’ 

The ‘Telling the Story’ (pdf) report also highlights the fact that although we have the lowest spend and 

support less adults in the community that Wales comparators, we support around twice as many people 

when compared to England. Despite the level of deprivation in Newport, we have significantly lower rates of 

delayed transfers of care from hospital than the Wales average and we are, ‘mid-table’ compared to English 

comparators. 

We support slightly more children in need than the Wales average and slightly less than the English average. 

There are lower numbers of children (per 10,000) on the Child Protection Register in Newport than the 

Wales and English average and we are below the Wales average and about the same as English comparators 

for the rate of children in care. 

Page 58

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Care-and-Support/Director-Social-Services-Annual-Report-2014-2015/Telling-the-Story-for-Peoples-Services-2010-to-2016-Final-July-2017.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Care-and-Support/Director-Social-Services-Annual-Report-2014-2015/Telling-the-Story-for-Peoples-Services-2010-to-2016-Final-July-2017.pdf


7 
 

Implementing the Act 

Throughout last year we used a programme management approach to implement the requirements of the 

Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014. I am pleased to say that we have made considerable progress and 

are well placed to deliver on the letter and the aspirations of the law. The body of this report sets out our 

performance in delivering the Information, Advice and Assistance, care and support planning and review and 

distanced travelled evaluation required in law. We are particularly proud of our developing preventions 

network which really benefits from the Wales Government grants. We are making progress on Welsh 

Language requirements and we will implement the all Wales integrated data and case management system 

and we are developing electronic information systems for the public such as Dewis and ‘Ask Sarah.’ 

We need to improve our performance in the use of the distance travelled evaluation system and in 

compliance with the requirements for the welsh language. 

CSSIW Feedback 

In June 2017 we received a performance review letter from our colleagues in CSSIW and their assessment of 

our performance in 2016/17 included the following comments: 

 Adult Care Management teams, aim to ‘provide more effective individual outcomes’: CSSIW, ‘we 

confirmed significant progress towards this aim—closer managerial oversight, coupled with 

maintaining an appropriate skill mix in each of the revised teams—is key to ensuring that progress 

made becomes embedded in routine practice.’ 

 Relating to Placements for children in care: CSSIW, ‘There continues to be considerable difficulty in 

finding specialist placements for a small number of young people with very complex support needs—

this resulted in difficulties in some of the LA’s own provision where children have been placed due to 

lack of alternatives – the LA is experiencing financial pressures due to use of out of area placements 

and has as a result put considerable thought into re-shaping one of its in-house residential facilities’ 

 The LA continues to build on its strong partnership with the Health Board, leading to a reduction in 

DToCs, but has challenges in relation to continuing health care funding 

 The LA is making progress on implementing, ‘More than just Words’ 

 CSSIW will wish to follow up the impact (of resource reductions) on services 

Overall this letter reflects a worry on behalf of the regulator that positive progress may be affected by the 

impact of austerity, but overall our individual inspection reports and the overall letter reflect the fact that 

our services are performing well. 

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats 

I thought it would be helpful to summarise the past year’s performance in the form of a SWOT analysis and 

therefore I have sought the views of staff in Social Services and the summary conclusions are set out below: 

STRENGTHS 

 

1. We have a strong and capable workforce  

The workforce has embraced the aspirations of the act within a short timeframe and put it into practice. The 

workforce is stable with low vacancies and around 2 experienced practitioners for everyone who has less 

than 2 years post-qualification experience. 

Page 59



8 
 

We have excellent training and development opportunities and this leads to greater professionalism and 

adaptability, with good working relations/communications. This is evidenced by the annual corporate 

workforce report being overwhelmingly positive in nature. 

Strong managers support decision making and maintain budget awareness 

 

2. Performance Outcome Indicators 

Improvements are delivered by listening to views of staff and partners using live data reporting on key 

indicators. There is a strong commitment to and focus on preventions, strong processes underpinning 

decision making 

 

The workforce hearts and minds are committed to improving performance and delivering outcomes for the 

some of the most vulnerable people in Newport 

 

Good relations with partners allows joint enterprise on thorny issues that get in the way of improving 

performance  

 

3. Engaging vulnerable people  

We have a person centred, evidence based outcome focussed approach to our work with vulnerable people 

and we regularly receive positive feedback – best exemplified by the used of distance travelled evaluation 

tools in the Integrated Family Support Services. Annual IFFS reports indicate, 9 out of 10 children and 

families seeing a reduction in risk and the average reduction being around 35% with very few families being 

referred back to the Duty and Assessment team (approx. 6%). 

 

There is a wealth of evidence of successful engagement and good outcomes from our Community 

Connectors, Voluntary Sector Providers, re-ablement workers and our day care and residential facilities. 

 

4. Innovation and Creativity  

There are at least 27 innovative services currently in operation including those where Newport has the lead 

for the region. 

 Attachment and trauma therapeutic services 

 First contact delivering information, advice and assistance using electronic pathways 

 Forest lodge therapeutic residential home for children 

 Residential task and finish 

 Fostering framework 

 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) – piloting for the region 

 Safeguarding forum 

 Domestic Homicide Reviews – a regional approach 

 Regional Lead for Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) 

 Regional Lead for Are Planning Board (APB) 

 Regional Lead for Independent Domestic Violence Advocate service (IDVA) 

 National lead for Reflect service for women whose children are removed repeatedly 

 Integrated Family Support Service (IFSS) 

 Team around the Cluster – preventive family support services based on school clusters including 

joint funded education social workers 

Page 60



9 
 

 Children First pilot 

 Older Person’s Pathway  - a health and wellbeing intervention for vulnerable older people 

 In Reach – building a mutli-disciplinary team based on hospital wards to ensure referral go to the 

right place 

 Care closer to home – joint partnership with Health Board colleagues to build health and wellbeing 

hubs 

 ECO – peer review reflective case discussions 

 Day Opportunities – modernising service and moving away from buildings to dynamic services based 

in the community 

 Ty Eirlys - represents a departure from the traditional small group home model of supported living, 

with a focus on independent living and peer support for 13 adults with learning disabilities, each of 

whom has their own individual flat. 

 Dom Care Commissioning – innovative commissioning of the voluntary/independent sector 

 Newport Support Partnership   - a consortium of third sector agencies led by Reach which provides a 

single point of contact for  Newport citizens to access information, advice and assistance  when they 

need it most to help them to continue to manage their lives as  independently as possible. 

 Mental health commissioning  on behalf of the region including the Health Board 

 New carers network 

 Independent Living Service for people with a learning disability 

 Travel Training for people with a learning disability 

 Dementia care mapping – we are aiming to be a ‘Dementia Friendly City’ in September 

 

WEAKNESSES 

 

1. Occasional tensions between workforce 

Social Services has a strong ‘team’ and ‘task’ culture and despite having a strong workforce there are still 

times when there are tensions between teams. Workload pressures sometimes lead to frustrations, but 

other times the problem can relate to a, ‘Silo’ mentality whereby teams look inwardly to their own functions 

and fail to see the bigger picture. Tensions include, ‘who pay for this?’ and ‘whose job is this?’  

 

Our response to this is to improve understanding and recognition between teams through development days 

and for managers to sort out problems directly and stop unnecessary escalations to senior managers. We 

need to encourage teams to avoid depersonalise sort it out! 

  

Tensions can also arise with corporate colleagues and on times we have been challenged for not taking a 

corporate approach. It can sometime be difficult to separate myth from reality but if a problem is perceived 

then in a sense it is real. We have acknowledged from the ‘Telling the Story’ (pdf) report that we have not 

always communicated our transformation journey with corporate colleagues and we also need to recognise 

that we need to engage and communicate corporate priorities and services to the Social Services workforce.  

 

2. Voice of the citizen 

The Social Services and Wellbeing Act challenges Social Services to relinquish the out of date attitude that, 

professional know best’ – the power relationship between people who receive our services and 

professionals needs to change in favour of the people we serve.  

Page 61

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Care-and-Support/Director-Social-Services-Annual-Report-2014-2015/Telling-the-Story-for-Peoples-Services-2010-to-2016-Final-July-2017.pdf


10 
 

 

We do make considerable efforts to put the voice of the citizen at the heart of everything we do but we 

need to improve. We are a long way from seeing citizens at the heart of the design and delivery of services.  

 

Efforts to improve cannot be tokenistic and we are making plans to strengthen the voice of children in care, 

disabled children, vulnerable adults and carers.  

 

3. Children in Care and Mental Health 

Despite year on year improvements, the quality of outcomes for children in care is still unacceptable. 

Educational achievement is too low and often children in care struggle to make the transition to adulthood 

with further education, work and housing. Children in care are significantly over represented in the prison 

population, mental health services and worklessness.  

 

Children in care are a corporate responsibility and members have a personal duty to ensure they deliver on 

their statutory corporate parenting role. It is really encouraging to see the cross-party engagement in our 

corporate parenting committee and members visit children in care homes and sit on fostering and adoption 

panels. Together we intend to make 2017/18 a year of improving outcomes for children in care 

 

There is national concern about the capacity and quality of mental health services to match the rising 

challenges of mental health and wellbeing. We have set out much that we are doing to improve outcomes in 

this report but more needs to be done.  

 

OPPORTUNITIES 

Despite the challenges we face, there are many opportunities to be taken including the national data and 

case management system (WCCIS) which will allow both Health and Social Care practitioners to record data 

on a single system. This will enhance integrated working and also allow genuinely integrated performance 

and outcome reporting. We go live in the autumn of 2017. 

 

The regional health and social care partnership is helping to shape an integrated approach to strategy, 

practice and financial management through regional Children’s, Mental Health and Learning Disability and 

Older Persons Boards. This builds on excellent partnership working in the region such as the Frailty service, 

Safeguarding Boards, Integrated Family Support Team, Adoption service, Area Planning Board (for Substance 

Misuse). Future developments include regional commissioning for some services, pooled budgets for 

residential care for older people and national developments for Safeguarding. 

 

Newport has a growing reputation for innovation, distributed leadership shared accountability and for, 

‘doing what is said on the tin.’ This places using a good position to benefit from regional and national 

developments. 

 

THREATS 

There are gathering clouds that threaten our continued success and the most serious is the necessity of 

unprecedented cuts in services. I want to be absolutely clear that there is no prospect that the Local 

Authority would ever sanction a level of savings in Social Services that would put citizens at risk. I do 

however want to illustrate what the most extreme level of savings might look like if we theoretically took 

Social Services to the point of delivering a minimum statutory service.  

Page 62



11 
 

Theoretical Modelling of a Statutory Minimum Level of Social Services 

We have conducted research on reducing Social Services to a theoretical 

statutory minimum as an illustration of the maximum contributions Social 

Services could make towards the likely budget gap from 2018/19 to 

2020/21.  

 

This would include reducing all information, advice and assistance as well as 

prevention services down to that which could be funded by Wales 

Government Grants, a very lean management infrastructure and practitioner 

average caseloads doubled. Overall the workforce would be considerably 

reduced.  

 

An analysis of this approach includes the following risks: 

 

Safeguarding - higher thresholds, reduced management and operational 

capacity increase volume of referrals, lack of quality assurance for court  

Reputational damage –poorer performance, risk of intervention, limited 

capacity to respond to public and politicians escalating complaints litigious 

issues, deteriorating relationships with schools 

Financial –reduced controls, minimal demand management, risk aversion, 

minimal commissioning capacity (education capital works largest in council) 

Staffing issues – We would see low morale, increased staff turnover, higher 

absence rates, recruitment and retention, union intervention etc. 

Requirements of the Acts – There would be little time and capacity to 

engage with key partners and stakeholders in regional responsibilities 

Ability to influence and drive strategic change; capacity for transformation, 

influence and operational response 

 

Such levels of saving over the next 4 years would be of the order of £8,259m 

which is approximately 14% of net budget. This would be on top of around 

£12m savings in the last 5 years.  

 

We have however identified £5,361m of pressures over the period and this 

gives a net saving of £2,892m. Given a corporate deficit of around £30m, it is 

clear that the local authority is facing considerable risk. 

 

Given that Social Services in Wales received around £55m in 2017/18, our 

main hope is that Wales Government will continue to invest in Social 

Services over the period. 

  

In this context we have a mixed view on the aspirational legislation being passed by Wales Government. On 

the one hand we are drawn to the lofty idealism and truly commit ourselves to raise our aspirations in order 

to meet the challenge. However on the other hand the new legislation is deployed during a period of 

austerity and unless sufficient funds re provided to local authorities it will be impossible to deliver on the 

aspirations of recent legislation. 

Page 63



12 
 

There are also real risks that the available workforce particularly in the care sector will be insufficient to 

meet the needs of the market. There are too few trained and qualified candidates and salaries are 

comparatively low and reliant on the free movement of people in the European Community. There is an 

urgent need for investment and training in this sector and we are grateful for the additional funds provided 

by Wales Government to help improve the situation, but the gap is growing. 

 

Modelling has shown that the coming stage of the national government’s welfare reform policy is likely to hit 

poor communities very hard. This will increase vulnerability in families and result in further costs to the local 

authority. 

 

The rising number of people with complex needs and the increasing cost of provision have led to substantial 

overspending on children in care and community care budgets. This is a national problem and in the present 

year alone, the first budget monitor has identified a projected overspend in out of authority residential 

placements for children of £1m. Numbers have risen from around 14 children per year in 2014 to 22 children 

at present. Together with a withdrawal of joint funding with the Health Board, this is a major threat to the 

placement budgets in both Children and Adult Services 

 

The Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 has a statutory requirement from April 2018 for a regional 

pooled budget with the Health Board for adults who are placed in residential or nursing care homes. If we 

are required to invest the whole budget, then there will be serious risks that governance will be less strong 

at least in the early stages and overspends from other partners could impact on Newport budget. 

 

Conclusion 

Overall this report sets out a comprehensive account of Social Services performance in the year of 

implementation of the most transformational legislation in a generation. I believe that the evidence 

indicates that Social Services has transformed over the past 5 years and that the service provides excellent 

value for money and has a record of strong, innovative and improving performance that has delivered better 

outcomes for our most vulnerable citizens. We have told the story of our transformation journey over the 

past 5 years, set out our future goals and we will be preparing a strategic commissioning plan for the period 

2017-2022. 

The storm clouds are gathering and without sustained investment from Welsh Government, the service will 

begin to become less innovative, more pressurised and provide less support to people who are in need. But, 

whatever the challenges, I can assure the administration and all members that the Social Services workforce 

will continue to put the needs of the most vulnerable first. We will do everything we can to continue to 

maintain the high standards of professionalism that is required to protect people from harm and to promote 

the wellbeing of our most vulnerable citizens. 

Page 64



13 
 

3. How are People Shaping our Services? 
This year the local authority has completed a major engagement and consultation process in order to inform 

the Well-being Assessment, as per the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

2015 (WFG).  The purpose was to identify what people currently think about living in Newport and their 

broad priorities for the future in terms of theirs and their community’s wellbeing.  The methods used for this 

consultation included  a short survey about what people like most about living in Newport and what they 

wanted to see more of, or less of in the future;  a longer survey around the themes of economic, social, 

environmental and cultural wellbeing; and a young people’s wellbeing survey which was promoted through 

schools (Primary and Secondary). In addition there was engagement with the public at tenants’ forums, 

family events, BME forums and partner’s community engagement events.   

Some of the key findings from the survey based on the responses from the Newport Citizens Panel and 

Communities First respondents included: 

• 45% thought that people from different backgrounds get on well together 

• 75% of people felt safe in their local area, but 51% felt safe in the city centre 

• 22% thought that vulnerable people get the support that they need 

• 77% of people thought that they have a good social life   

• 78% thought that the environment that they live in and the opportunities available allow them to 

keep physically active 

 

The Regional Population Needs Assessment, a requirement of the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) 

Act 2014 (SSWB), has also been completed within this period facilitated by the Regional Transformations 

Team.  The consultation for this assessment has built on existing forums and established groups across the 

region.  Partner agencies including private providers and third sector groups were key contributors in the 

consultation process in order to ensure fair representation and a balanced approach to the needs identified 

for and on behalf of the community. In addition a citizen’s group has been established to scrutinise and steer 

the population needs assessment. The results of this consultation in addition to the Wellbeing consultation 

will inform how services are shaped and delivered in Newport in the forthcoming year. 

We also complete annual engagement exercises on the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan which 

includes Social Services change proposals.  The Council publishes all of its budget savings and service change 

proposals as part of its budget consultation process and has a number of arrangements in place to engage 

and inform stakeholders of these proposals. This includes its Involve Newport Citizens Panel, Youth Council 

and Carers Forum, as well as through its Newport Matters newsletter. However, the Council recognises that 

its Citizens Panel is no longer representative of its population and it is continuing its recruitment campaign to 

try to address this.  

The Newport Youth Council (NYC) participation project works with young people aged 11-25 years old 

Newport-wide to engage them in participatory activities and enable them to have a voice in decision-making. 

The project is coordinated by Tros Gynnal Plant and works alongside the Newport City Council Young 

People’s Participation Officer to take forward the One Newport Partnership’s Participation Strategy and the 

National Participation Standards. A young person representing Youth Council has also been invited to the 

One Newport Public Services Board.  Tros Gynnal  Plant also facilitate The Children in Care Council, which 

reviews and evaluates Newport’s Corporate Parenting Strategy and is representative of young people 

currently looked after and care leavers in Newport. 

Page 65



14 
 

The Council has an increasingly diverse population and uses its Community Connectors staff to engage with 

harder to reach communities. The Council’s Policy and Partnership team also works with services to identify 

stakeholders and consider appropriate ways of engagement.   Individual services have consulted with their 

service users using a range of methods to gain specific feedback on the use of the service. 

The Council also has the Newport Fairness Commission, which provides an independent mechanism as a 

critical friend to the Council. Young People are represented on the Fairness Commission and participate in 

their annual reviews of the Newport City Council budget.  It has provided an independent review of the 

Council’s budget proposals and provides a constructive mechanism to test the public’s reaction to service 

change proposals and to consider their impact on vulnerable groups. The Council considers the views of the 

Newport Fairness Commission as part of its budget decision-making process.   

There are examples where the Council has used its engagement arrangements effectively to help inform 

service changes, such as the libraries and mental health service changes. It was evident that the Council is 

responsive to consultation findings, such as on the budget process and library service changes. The closure 

of New Willows in March 2016, via a consultation process that commenced in 2013, was an isolated example 

where the Council had not engaged successfully with stakeholders. The Council has clearly learnt from this, 

and service users were proactively engaged in shaping the design of the Kensington Day Care Centre in this 

period. 

 

  

Page 66



15 
 

4. Promoting and Improving the Well-being of Those We Help 

Quality Standard A - Working with people to define and co-produce personal well-being 

outcomes that people wish to achieve 
 

The Information Station provides a first point of contact for citizens in Newport seeking Information, Advice 

and Assistance (IAA). Contact can be made in person, by telephone or via the internet and details of contact 

are widely publicised. In addition to the Information Station citizens can also contact the Family Information 

Service or via community services, such as Community Connectors Service.  Contact centre staff are trained 

to offer appropriate information. Other than requests for information the Contact Centre will forward all 

contacts to the First Contact Team (Adults) or Children’s Duty Team. The table below gives the total number 

of contact to these teams in the year 2016/17: 

 

Contacts - Act compliant Adults 

Services 

Children's 

Services 

1 There Are No Needs To Be Met 1,104 2,659 

2 A More Comprehensive Assessment Is Required 4,642 1,727 

3 Needs Can Be Met By The Provision Of Information Advice Or Assistance 3,468 5,009 

4 Needs Can Be Met Through The Provision Of Preventative Services 1,206 548 

5 Needs Can Be Met Wholly Or In Part By The Individual Themselves, With Or Without Assistance From 

Others 

54 227 

6 Other Matters Can Contribute To The Achievement Of The Personal Outcomes, Or Otherwise Meet The 

Needs 

38 195 

Total 10,512 10,365 

 

 Of these 48.3% of enquiries to Children’s Services and 33.0% of those to Adults Services have been 

responded to by the provision of information advice and assistance. From the survey of adults, children and 

carers 71% of people felt that they have received the right information and advice when they needed it, 

while a further 22% felt this was true some of the time. Customer feedback does report that, particularly at 

peak times, there can be a wait to get through on the telephone and work is in place to reduce waiting 

times.  

The effectiveness of the IAA is reflected by the performance measure on the number of citizens making 

repeat requests for information. Between October 2015 and September 2016, 2620 adults received an IAA 

service, and of these 45% have not contacted the service again within the year. It should be noted that many 

of the people who have re-contacted the service are making contact about other issues.   

Since the implementation of the SSWB Act in 2016 both Children’s Services Duty team and Adult First 

Contact team have been substantially restructured and retrained. The teams have established clear IAA 

pathways assessments which have been founded on the “What matters” requirements. The “What matters” 

conversation is fundamental in collaboratively determining with the person what needs to change or stay 

the same in order for them to meet their goals/ hoped for outcomes.  This conversation is crucial from the 

very initial point of contact as establishing “What matters” to the person as an individual will help in 

understanding that person in the context of their own life, importantly in their own words, and will inform 

the assessment when identifying what good outcomes look like.   

Page 67



16 
 

6% 
28% 

66% 

Prevention Team Family Goals scores 
at close of intervention 

Red

Amber

Green

85% 

15% 

Prevention Team Family Goals scores 
at the beginning of Intervention 

Red

Amber

A template has been developed to record the conversation and staff have been given training both on the 

conversation and also the system processes. By using the “What matters” questions, enquiries can be dealt 

with in a timely manner and, where appropriate, services provided to meet wellbeing outcomes without the 

need for further assessment. “What matters” conversations occur the same day as the referral. Although 

these have been in place over the year the electronic systems have had to be developed to ensure these are 

recorded in a way the data can be aggregated, therefore, we are only able to report on data on “What 

matters” for the last two months. 12% of contacts for Children’s Services, and 14.5% for Adults, were 

followed by a “What matters” conversation, prior to assessment. It is likely that this is an underestimate as 

although the conversations are recorded this is not necessarily done in a way that the data can be 

aggregated. 

Both Adult Services and Children Services have put in a range of provision to prevent the need for Care and 

Support. At First Contact (Adults) / Children’s Duty Team, 1206 contacts for Adult Services and 548 for 

children have been guided towards preventative services.  This means that 24.1 % of children and families, 

and 20.6 % of adults who require a more 

comprehensive service than IAA are supported 

without the need for a more comprehensive 

assessment , or the Care and Support Plan that may 

follow from this.  

The development of preventative services in 

Newport has meant that there has been a reduction 

in referrals to Children’s services as more families are 

assisted by Preventions without the need for care of support. In 2016/17 1527 children were referred, the 

lowest number in the last 7 years.  

The Children’s Duty Team and Preventions Teams have enhanced the pathways for referrals between the 

two teams to ensure a streamlined process exists where families’ needs are met in a timely way. Families are 

dealt with by the appropriate tier of service, without concerns being escalated unnecessarily, and ensuring 

that where appropriate families are supported by preventative services rather than via Care and Support 

Plans. The duty team provided 17% of the total number referred to Preventions. Following the intervention 

by Preventions there was a reduction in risk in 89% of referrals. As a result only 6% of those closed to the 

Preventions team were referred back to the Children’s Duty Team, and the figure for being opened to 

Children’s Services in the 6 months following closure to Preventions was 13%. 

The Preventions Service family goals figures relate to 294 families where family goals were scored at the 

start and end of the Prevention team’s involvements.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



17 
 

I have recently suffered from a brain haemorrhage that has left me 
tired and reluctant to go out. I agreed a visit from the connector to have 
a chat. My son is my main carer and is looking for work, he feels 
isolated and both of us are driving each other mad! The Connector met 
with me and discussed a local club; he also provided information about 
a local job club for my son to attend. After being stuck in for months I 
now go with my Neighbour and my son is looking for a job!   

The family goals figures show a significant movement out of the ‘red’ rating towards ‘amber’ and ‘green’. 

The percentage of families reaching ‘green’ is up 4% on 2015/2016. 

In Adult Services the function of the Community Connectors Service has been developed to ensure needs are 

met via appropriate community resources. 

Community Connectors link citizens in with 

services and organisations within their own 

communities. This is, on some occasions 

facilitated by the provision of information, 

however the team also enables people to 

attend by, for example, looking at transport or by accompanying the individual to attend a community 

activity to introduce them to the group. Since the service was established they have supported over 2,400 

people and 350 carers to access community activities and services. They have also mapped 245 support 

services and 545 community activities into an online directory to support information and advice services. 

Connectors have also worked with over 100 local partners to support citizen engagement. Connectors also 

put on an annual 50+ Information Event which attracts 700 older people, and a carer’s event. Citizens can 

make contact with community connects either directly or via the IAA process.  

The implementation of an Older Persons Pathway has enabled the development of preventative services. A 

key feature of the Older Persons Pathway is a move away from a ‘demand’ to an ‘intelligence’ based model 

of care. This is carried out through a risk stratification of the over 75 population using data held within GP 

records. A risk stratification tool has been developed which searches GP records for multiple risk factors and 

attributes a risk score to each member of the population. This then allows for the identification of those 

people who would benefit most from a Stay Well Plan.  These plans are co-produced alongside individuals 

and their family/ carers. What is critical is that, rather than being an assessment of need, the SWP takes a 

holistic view of general health and wellbeing needs and accesses both ‘low cost and no cost services’ to 

maintain. A copy of the plan is also sent to the GP practice and can be accessed by various professionals 

through the Frailty portal. The total number of people in receipt of a SWP is 722 across eight GP practices, 

with a current rate of up-take of SWPs of 53% at the first time of contact. 

Analysis of the age profiles of those taking up a stay well plan against those who opted out of the service 

shows that on average those who take up the offer of a stay well plan are 10 years older than those who do 

not. Despite this difference the evidence so far shows that after being offered a SWP, the cohort that had a 

SWP had a significant reduction in hospital admissions/appointments in all four categories reviewed (A&E 

visits, Assessed out, Emergency Admissions and Frailty Episodes), compared to those that did not have a 

SWP. 

The design and development of the Older Persons Pathway has been informed through co-production with 

service users. Initial workshops were held, inviting people who had previously had a Stay Well Plan to 

contribute to the design going forward, through discussion of the things that are important to them. This 

reference group is continuing and we intend to consult the service users when we want to make a change to 

the model and share the evaluation with them. 

There is a social prescribing initiative, working in conjunction with the Older Person’s Pathway and Health, 

which originates in the primary care GP setting. The benefit of linking with community connectors has been 

identified and work is on-going to integrate the community connector function into the social prescribing 

project. 

Page 69



18 
 

F has dementia and she initially used her income and savings to 
pay for a 24 hour agency care service to provide support to her 
in her own home.  Her family felt that she needed 24 hour 
support but were clear that C had advised she wanted to remain 
within her own home.  A direct payment was provided to C 
which assisted her to stay within her own home with the care 
her family felt she needed.  The Direct payment is helping to 
keep C in her own home for a longer period and the family feel 
supported and confident that her outcomes are being met. 

The Newport Support Partnership is a consortium which has brought a range of preventative third sector 

services together into a single partnership, ensuring a single point of contact and that services are seamless 

and complimentary, without unnecessary duplication. Services provided within the consortium are carer 

respite, carer’s emergency card scheme, community support, information and advice services such as 

financial advice, advocacy, and an appropriate adult service. The partnership’s aim is to contribute towards 

preventing the need for care and support, and over the year 542 people have been supported to prevent the 

need for care and support.  In addition the partnership supported 108 people via advocacy and 11 via 

appropriate adult services.  

A similar consortium approach has been adopted to look at the delivery of Third Sector Mental Health 

Services. As part of a Gwent Consortium these services have been recommissioned across the region. The 

newly commissioned service include Advocacy, Counselling/Support, Day Activities/Drop In, Training/Skill 

building and Information/Advice/Outreach.  Target intervention services are also offered via Re-Ablement 

Teams, Frailty and via services commissioned through the Supporting People Team. These are covered later 

in this report.  

The national eligibility criteria have been implemented with both Adult and Children’s teams and training on 

both the new eligibility criteria and also the associated processes has been provided. We have achieved 

more favourable outcomes by creative use of the person’s own strengths, networks and resources. 

Furthermore, the closer working with the Prevention’s services and developments such as the ‘Step-up, 

Step-down’ processes developed in Children’s Services has required a greater focus on ensuring a consistent 

application of eligibility. 

The SSWB has changed the way in which assessments are offered to allow a more flexible approach to 

supporting people and families with the introduction of the proportionate assessment.  The percentage of 

assessments completed for children within statutory timescales is 95.01%.  The statutory timescale is that 

assessments are completed within 42 days. This, however, is a maximum and it is appropriate that some 

assessments are completed in a much shorter timeframe. As well as completing assessments in a timely 

manner it is important that the child is seen as part of the assessment. The target for this in Newport is 7 

days and in 96.7% of cases the child was seen, and in 61.8% the child was seen in the 7 day time limit. Within 

the assessment process it is important that the child is seen alone and in 2016/17 67.9% were seen alone. 

Age was the primary reason why children were not seen alone and this was the case with 77% of children. 

 

The First Contact Team for Adults has been strengthened 

and now includes Occupational Therapy, Adult 

Safeguarding, Telecare, Rehabilitation Officer for the 

Visually Impaired and Direct Payments Team. This ensures 

that people receive the service and support they need as 

quickly as possible and at the earliest point in their contact 

with Social Services, where possible avoiding the need for 

care and support. 

 

The assessment templates for both Children’s Services and Adult Services have been changed in line with the 

SSWB Act. Assessments now cover the domains - personal circumstances, strengths, risks, barriers and 

personal outcomes. The challenges for citizens and practitioners with the new act have been in relation to 

Page 70



19 
 

the change in emphasis from a service led model to an outcome focussed model of delivery. All assessments 

are signed off by a team manager and no assessment will be agreed unless each domain is covered. 

All assessments cover barriers to participation and identify the need for steps to overcome these barriers. 

Independent advocacy is available in an established provision via Tros Gynnal Plant to all children using 

Children’s Services. This service is currently being re-commissioned on a Gwent wide basis.  Advocacy for 

parents is spot purchased on a case by case basis. In Adult Services the advocacy service has just been re-

commissioned via the Newport Support Partnership and Mental Health Matters also provide a paid Relevant 

Persons Representative service.   

Training has been given to workers to ensure that all decisions are taken with due regard to UN Conventions 

and Principles. Where it is sometimes necessary to take decisions which may be contrary to these rights (e.g. 

deprivation of liberties, or where children need to be separated from families) legal safeguards are in place 

and the decision is balanced against the wellbeing of the individual. “Signs of Safety” is used as part of co-

production with parents. To ensure parents’ rights are fully respected a capacity assessment is undertaken at 

the earliest opportunity to ensure needs are fully met. It is the expectation of the local authority that all 

citizens are treated with dignity and respect, this is also an expectation of the code of practice which all 

social care staff must adhere to. This is monitored through supervision and managerial oversight. From the 

survey 91 % of people reporting that they were treated with dignity and respect, whilst a further 8% said 

they were “sometimes”.   

Care and Support Planning and Review for both Adult and Children’s Services relies on robust 

multidisciplinary processes where appropriate. Over the year work has been done to look at the reviewing 

processes and to streamline and to reduce duplication and improve co-ordination. Equally in Adult Services 

Care and Support Planning is focussed on a strengths based model which encapsulates the principals of co-

production. Citizens and their carers involvement in reviews is promoted to ensure their voices are heard in 

the care planning process.  Across Adult in-house services, residential homes, day opportunities, supported 

living and domiciliary care, a new approach is being implemented and developed as to how to document and 

record “What matters” most to people Newport are supporting.  Carers work alongside the person and the 

people that know them well to document their lives and preferences and this is then used as the basis for 

which their support is provided allowing people to live the lives they want.   

From Survey data 74% of people thought they were actively involved in the decisions made about their care 

and support – with a further 15% reporting that they were “sometimes” involved. From IRO monitoring of 

child protection case conferences parents were able to make a meaningful contribution to reviews in 99% of 

cases whilst children’s wishes and feelings were adequately represented in 95% of case conferences.  

In the survey 72% of people stated that they knew who to speak to / contact about their care and support; 

whilst a further 14% said they “sometimes” knew.  

 

In Children’s Services all children who are being assessed or who have a Care and Support Plan have a named 

social worker. The transfer process between teams is well established and is based on a system of regular 

transfer meetings. No child’s case is transferred without agreement of both teams and the named worker is 

recorded on CCM, the case management system. Similarly those families supported by preventions have a 

named preventions worker. The new ‘Step up, Step down’ process has streamlined this and ensures a 

seamless transfer between field work and preventions teams.  

Page 71



20 
 

The NCNs work closely with the Transitional Planning Officer within the Disabled Children’s team and wider 

Children’s Services, this is facilitated via a planning meeting to allow for a seamless transfer of care and 

support. 

In Adult Services all adults have a named worker during the assessment and care planning stages. Once a 

care package is established adults are open to the team for their local Neighbourhood Care Network area 

(NCN) team for review. These teams are coterminous with the delivery footprints of Primary Health Care 

services in Newport, which supports integrated working across health and social care.   

All Care and Support Plans reflect the personal outcomes of the citizen. In both Children’s Services and Adult 

Services care planning, baseline scores on personal outcomes have been introduced. This includes, for Care 

and Support Plans, a baseline score of 0-10. Within Children’s Services the outcome statements recorded on 

Care and Support Plans not only provide a quantitative score for the distanced travelled but also provides a 

qualitative narrative. This further facilitates and promotes ownership of the plan by the child themselves 

(where age appropriate) and by their parent/ care giver.  All reviews now record progress against each 

outcome. This progress is included both as a qualitative assessment and also a score of 0-10. The review 

score will enable a measure of distance travelled. The implementation of this has been aided as a similar 

process has been in place with the Integrated Family Support Service (IFSS) for a number of years. Here the 

outcomes have been measured by a traffic light system. The use of this system has meant that the 

Integrated Family Support Team (IFST), Family Support Team (FAS) and Family Assessment and Support 

Services (FASS) have been able to demonstrate the effectiveness of their services. The number of families 

who have been supported by IFSS to progress to at least green on their plan is set out below: 
 

 IFST (Newport) FASS FST 

Total Number of Family Goals for Families closed following intervention 49 61 195 

Percentage of Family Goals progressing to green or better 69 % 75 % 71 % 

 

As  families had on average, approximately two goals, in total FASS had a positive impact on 90% of families 

and FST had a positive impact on 94% of families.  

Distance travelled scores for Children services for the year are shown below. However there is further work 

to be done in both improving the consistency of scores and also ensuring the process is embedded for all 

plans. Adult services started the scoring in October, therefore have not currently had the opportunity to 

review progress against the baseline. However 1,567 adults had a care and support plan with a baseline 

score during the year.  
 

 
Agreed Outcome 

Average 
baseline 

score 

Review 
score 

Number of 
Personal 

Outcomes 

People 

(i) ability to carry out self care or domestic routines 5.30 6.13 51 39 

(ii) ability to communicate 5.38 5.38 37 31 

(iii) protection from abuse or neglect 5.00 5.40 157 103 

(iv) involvement in work, education, learning or in leisure activities 5.00 5.78 102 87 

(v) maintenance or development of family or other significant personal 
relationships 

5.00 5.67 109 86 

(vi) development and maintenance of social relationships and 
involvement in the community 

5.78 5.57 46 37 

Page 72



21 
 

(vii) achieving developmental goals 5.00 5.67 135 86 

(viii) fulfilment of caring responsibilities for a child 5.40 5.00 133 79 

 

As well as distance travelled the effectiveness of plans can be assessed by looking at satisfaction ratings. 

According to the survey of adults, children and carers 74% said they were happy with the Support or Care 

and Support they had received whilst a further 21% said they were “sometimes”. However this survey needs 

to be viewed with caution given the small response rate, particularly in Children’s Services.  

Charging arrangements are in place for adults receiving care and support. Adults are provided with 

information about the charging process during the assessment process and the fact that they may be 

charged, subject to financial assessment, is recorded on their Care and Support Plans. There are no charges 

associated with Children’s Services.  

 

In order to meet this wellbeing standard Newport is working in partnership with a range of agencies and 

services, both statutory and voluntary. Newport is commissioning new service models to ensure that every 

pound spent maximum benefit. For example, a consortium approach has been developed for commissioning 

advocacy and preventative services. This includes the Newport Support Partnership and the mental health 

consortium, as well as the development of the older person’s pathway. The advantage of this approach is 

that it enables greater synergy and shared resources. The outcome based approach to commissioning with a 

broad service specification has been beneficial in moving away from a traditional service led model.  

The development of family support services has built on the successful partnership between Barnardo’s and 

Children’s Services. This has enabled a range of services to be developed across the continuum of family 

support services from universal to intensive and remedial services. These have been independently 

evaluated by the Institute of Public Care. They concluded:  

 Very to exceptionally high quality whole family support services for vulnerable families – services which are strongly 

grounded in the existing evidence base about ‘what works’ and are actively seeking to develop further 

 Family members who consistently recognise the high quality engagement and therapeutic as well as practical support skills 

of staff 

 Referrals to Social Services that have more than halved and re-referral rates have reduced significantly 

 A rate of children in need that has steadied and is now low compared with similar authorities in Wales 

 A dramatic reduction in the number of children with disabilities requiring a Child in Need (statutory) intervention 

 Newport now has one of the lowest and steadiest rates of looked after children per 10,000 population compared with 

similar authorities, and is below the national average                                                                                                                                                      

Summary of findings from the IPC evaluation of the Newport/Barnardos partnership model for delivering Family 

Support. 

 The value of partnership was summed up in the recent IPC evaluation: 

“It does feel more like a partnership than a traditional commissioning arrangement. It has developed 

organically. We both ‘fit in’ i.e. with some degree of joint responsibility. We are able to grow the gaps. It has 

allowed us to look at the research and become highly evidenced based. We haven’t let it become too cosy 

there’s still plenty of challenge.” 

 

In relation to this quality standard 17 complaints have been received by Children’s services and 7 by Adult 

services over the period 2016/17. Also in relation to this standard the Care and Social Services Inspectorate 

Wales  (CSSIW) reviewed progress made in relation to the recommendations from the November 2014 

Page 73



22 
 

inspection of Adult social services. This concluded that the  authority  had  made  considerable  progress  in  

implementing  its  action  plan  in response to the recommendations made in the previous report. This 

included: 

 significant  progress  in  setting  out  a  coherent  ‘vision’  for  adult services  in  general  and  the  

implementation  of  the  older  people’s  pathway  in particular, and a better understanding of the 

broader picture of the recently  introduced  reforms.  

 A more consistent and focused approach in First Contact Team and improved individual outcomes; an 

improvement in the  quality of the assessments and care planning,  although there was still some way to 

go in making these universally  outcomes focused and meaningful in relation the individual being 

considered.  

 Significant   progress   has   been   made   in   the   establishment   of   the   community connectors, 

working within the three geographically located teams across Newport.  

 Enhanced support available to carers demonstrated by   two  of  the  five  full  time  equivalent  

community  connector  posts  being  specifically  carer  connectors.  

The one area identified as an outstanding  issue by CSSIW  was  in  relation  to  the  development  of  a  

robust  workforce strategy. The report also made recommendations about reducing waiting times at the 

front end; improving IT processes and further  work   to be undertaken in relation to direct payments, with a 

view to making these more innovative and effective in meeting individual need. 

PRIORITY OBJECTIVES FOR STANDARD A 

 To develop a workforce strategy – as required by CSSIW 

 To strengthen client informatics – in order to help identify which clients are getting what 

preventative services in order to target services more effectively through outcome focussed 

commissioning 

 
Quality Standard B - Working with people and partners to protect and promote people’s 

physical and mental health and emotional well-being 

 

The value of promoting and supporting healthy lifestyles is recognised across the range of services offered 

by Newport. Stay well plans are focused on the needs of citizens who are identified as being likely to be 

vulnerable to ongoing health concerns.  Equally where consistent with personal outcomes promoting healthy 

lifestyles are reflected in both preventative services and also in Care and Support Plans.   

 

The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons per 1,000 of the population aged 75 or over is 

2.04. As the graph illustrates the 

level has been falling significantly 

over the last 5 years and is now less 

than half the average for Wales for 

2015/16 (last available figures). This 

is an indicator of the in-reach 

approach to hospital discharge and 

the working with providers to 

ensure there is adequate provision 

in the community to reduce the length of time spent in hospital, via services such as re-ablement. 

Page 74



23 
 

  

Re-ablement enables citizens to become more active, recover mobility and enables citizens to re-gain their 

independence. Over the last year 578 citizens received re-ablement care in their own homes. Of those who 

have completed the service the chart below gives the outcome: 

 

 The percentage of Adults who completed a period of re-ablement and had no package of care 6 months 

later was 77.78%, while 40.00% of people had a reduced package of care 6 months later. It should be noted 

that the reduced package of care figure differs from the figure for no package as the later includes all those 

who had no care and support plan prior to re-ablement starting.   

Parklands Assessment and Support Unit (ASU) provides short term accommodation for all adults who can 

benefit from a period of re-ablement, 

usually, but not always, following time 

spent in hospital. The aim of the unit is to 

enable people to return home whenever 

possible by working with them to regain 

confidence in their abilities to manage daily living skills, assess for Telecare Assistive Technology and reduce 

dependency on long term services. The unit has access to a Social Worker, an Occupational Therapist and 

Physiotherapist from within the Gwent Frailty Team who will work with individuals and carers to draw up 

plans of care incorporating the necessary goals needed for a return home. Over the last 12 months we have 

received 132 referrals into the ASU, 72 of these where admitted with an average stay of 4.9 weeks. From the 

72 people admitted; 10 returned home with their previous package of support, 12 returned home with a 

new package of support or an increase in their existing package of support, 31 returned home independent; 

7 were admitted back into a hospital setting; 1 required a nursing placement; 1 required a residential 

placement and 10 were still within the ASU. 

The Older Person’s Pathway and SWP are discussed within Quality Standard A. 

The average age of those people entering residential care in Newport is 79.34 years. This is an indicator of 

the effectiveness of services to effectively support people in the community in Newport.  This figure is 

skewed by a small number of Adults entering residential care at a young age.   

Social Isolation can have a significant effect on a person’s health and wellbeing, and the Multi-Sport 

community group offers people with 

learning disabilities the opportunity to 

engage in physical activities and take part 

in different sports, including basketball, 

golf, aerobics and general exercise.  The 

focus is on developing people’s 

375 24 

29 

121 

8 12 
Re-abled with no on-going services

Partially re-abled with a reduced package of care

Return home with their prior package of care

Re-admissions to hospital

Deceased

Other sources of care

Mrs B was admitted following a fall at home from an acute hospital bed. 
Goals were to increase confidence and mobility with the aim to return home 
independently. Mrs B had no previous POC. Mrs B received additional input 
from Physiotherapy and her confidence greatly improved. Mrs B returned 
home with no POC after approx. 4 week stay on the unit. 

 

“N has been supported in a Shared Lives care arrangement for several 
years.  He has a wide range of interests, including music and sports.  N is 
naturally sporty and finds it easy to apply his skills to any sporting 
activity.  However, as time went on, N was able to take a more leading 
role in helping others in the Multi-Sport group to develop their skills and 
to enjoy their experience as part of a group.  N now acts as a volunteer 
supporting the Multi-Sport facilitators during classes and clearly acts as 
a role model for others in the group. Multi-Sports has played a 
significant part in helping N to develop a greater sense of self-confidence 
and helped him to become more independent.  The outcome is that N 
has recently moved into more independent living.” 

Page 75



24 
 

Support being request for family of a child with learning delay and attention difficulties, as his 
mother reporting he was hitting out.  Child was also sleeping in mother’s bed. Family goal identified 
to ‘support mum to implement strategies to improve behaviour and provide consistent routines and 
boundaries’. Discussion with mum about use of distraction, modelled appropriate responses.  
Reward charts used to reinforce positives.  Mum reported immediate changes to behaviour by 
changing her responses, and found child was easily distracted, preventing challenging behaviour 
from occurring.  Visual routines introduced to support bedtime routine.  Child now sleeping in his 
own bed.   Family reported to have progressed from Amber to Gold on their family goal. In response 
to the question: What have you found most helpful with the work that CANS have completed with 
your family?  Mum replied “They have helped me cope better with my son’s behaviour,” 

confidence, as well as improving health and well-being, and tackles loneliness and social isolation by 

supporting citizens to access social groups, in their local community and improve their wellbeing. The case 

study gives an illustration of the differences this sort of support that can make.  

Over the year the local authority, in partnership with the Health Board and the other authorities in Gwent, 

have re-configured Mental Health Services to ensure that service delivery better meets the needs of the 

citizens, particularly for those where a preventative service is required. The revised model includes 

Advocacy; Counselling/Support; Skills/Training/Wellbeing and Information / Advice / Assistance. The impact 

of these changes will be monitored next year as the service is commissioned. 

Support for people with mental health needs in the community has been developed to promote 

independence. The Bryn Glas Annex has been remodelled as a day opportunities services rather than a day 

centre with the aim of integrating people, where appropriate, into community resources or third sector 

services. This involves working on a person centred – goal oriented approach with individuals.  The centre 

has a multi-disciplinary team – social workers, CPNs and psychiatrists where art therapy, cooking skills, 

music-therapy, confidence building through group and 1-1 sessions, walking groups and community sports 

are offered. 

The percentage of children seen by a registered dentist within three months of becoming looked after is 

63.16%; whilst the percentage of looked after children registered with a GP within 10 working days is 

89.58%. In cases where these indicators were not met, better recording, rather than changes in practice, 

may have been the issue 

The Children with Additional Needs (CANs) service is part of the collaborative partnership with Barnardo’s to 

provide early 

interventions to 

support children 

and their families 

with additional 

needs. During 

2016-17 153 

referrals were 

received (145 

2014-15). 75 families received individual support.  100% reported the engagement was satisfactory or above. 

100% of children improved their school attendance where this was identified as a need, whilst 84% reported 

an improvement in their child’s behaviour. Distance travelled indicated that 82.5% of families demonstrated 

progress on their goals while 88% of families rated the service as satisfactory or above. 

A significant development during the year 2016/17 has been the widening of membership of the Team 

around the Family (TAF) panel to include Primary Care Mental Health Support Services (PCMHSS) and 

workers from the Communities First Livelihoods Project. The work undertaken during 2016/17 to route 

referrals for the PCMHSS into the Families First single point of entry is due to be realised early in 2017/18. 

Whilst it is likely this will lead to an increase in referrals, it will also ensure that families get the right support 

at the right time. 

Support for looked after children’s emotional wellbeing is provided by ensuring children are placed with 

carers who understand children’s emotional needs, and are able to effectively respond to these needs in a 

Page 76



25 
 

A young person diagnosed with ADHD had started committing 
offenses and hearing voices following a period using substances 
and being non-compliant with prescribed medication. By anxiety 
management sessions and supporting the young person to engage 
with and attend appointments with the substance misuse worker 
and CAMHS psychiatrist to address medication requirements, the 
young person managed to reduce their substance use to zero.  The 
young person engages with support sessions offered, is no longer 
hearing voices and is compliant with prescribed medication. 
Positively the person is now proactive in requesting support from 
Police when incidents have occurred rather than taking matters 
into their own hands. 

A Stability Planning Meeting was suggested, as carers were struggling 
with a young person. The children’s life pathway was re-visited, to 
identify how the children had developed a picture of what adults are 
like, what the world is like, and how they felt about themselves, all 
grown from their early traumatic life experiences. The foster carers 
change from worn down, feeling they don’t know how to look after 
these children to; ‘boy it’s no wonder the children are acting as they do 
and I can see what’s behind the behaviours now’. They left the meeting 
feeling more confident in understanding their foster children and how 
to meet their needs, wanting to persevere in supporting them through 
the difficult teen years, determined to show that there are some adults 
who will try their best and stick around when the going gets tough. 

positive and nurturing way. The Matching and Placement Support (MAPS) team ensure children are 

matched appropriately with carers and that 

carers have the right support framework around 

them to deliver the care. The service was 

established to support children who are looked 

after, and their carers, to provide an early 

intervention that promotes placement stability 

and an understanding of the child’s needs.  

Interventions are offered as Tier 1 or Tier 2 

dependent on level of need. The team 

supported 67 children under TIER 1 and 32 

children under TIER 2.  They also work with 

groups of children through the THRIVE project, which they are running with Monnow Primary this year and 

have a SUMMER THRIVE which focuses on supporting children transitioning from primary to secondary 

school.  The case study illustrates the work of the MAPS team.  

Working in partnership is demonstrated by the Mental Health Social Workers in Newport who are fully 

integrated into Newport’s Community Mental Health Team. This is a multidisciplinary team with 

Psychiatrists, OTs , CPNs, Art Therapists, Psychologists. This approach ensures that an individual with a 

severe and enduring mental illness have access to a wide range of disciplines and interventions. A Bespoke 

service is delivered depending on individual circumstances. Every individual has a designated care co-

ordinator. The ethos of the team is a strengths based perspective in line with the recovery model, promoting 

choice while managing risk. Newport CC provides AMHP service for those individual requiring statutory 

intervention. Also managed within the Mental Health team is a local authority worker within Gwent 

Substance Misuse Service to asses for rehab services. Streamline service for individuals to access inpatient 

rehabilitation placements.  This integrated approach, alongside an innovative way of working led to the team 

being awarded the British Association of Social Work (BASW) team of the year award in 2015. 

Partnership working to improve access to services and support for mental health and emotional well-being is 

evident within the structure of the Newport 

Youth Offending Service (YOS). The YOS has 

a Clinical Nurse Specialist (CNS) seconded 

from the Aneurin Bevan University Health 

Board, who takes on referrals for young 

people with identified mental health needs, 

and a Substance Misuse worker (SMW), 

currently seconded from Barnardo’s B@1 

service,  supporting young people identified 

with substance misuse issues.  In this period 

the number of young people referred to the SMW for a Substance Misuse Assessment was 37.  76% of these 

young people had a substance misuse assessment within 5 working days upon receipt of referral with 93% of 

those assessed commencing treatment within 10 working days upon completion of the Substance Misuse 

Assessment.  100% of the 31 young people referred to the CNS have commenced a Mental Health 

Assessment within 28 consecutive days upon receipt of referral. The longest a young person has waited to 

start the mental health assessment this year has been 14 days.  Being able to provide specialist support and 

Page 77



26 
 

access to services at the right time has resulted in more positive outcomes both in terms of reducing 

offending and improving the outcomes for the young person. 

 

In relation to this quality standard 18 complaints have been received by Children’s services and 9 by Adults 

services over the period 2016/17 

 

PRIORITY OBJECTIVES FOR STANDARD B 

 To strengthen provision of emotional and mental health services for vulnerable people particularly 

children in care 

 

Quality Standard C -  Taking steps to protect and safeguard people from abuse, neglect or 

harm 
 

In this period there is evidence that both Children and Adult Services have been performing consistently in 

providing care and support to meet the assessed needs to protect people from abuse, harm or neglect and 

we have been responding effectively to changing circumstances and reviewing the achievement of 

individuals’ outcomes. 

Newport has seen an increase of 57% in the number of “adult at risk” referrals received during this period, 

(714 compared to 456 in the period 2015/2016). This rise in the number of referrals should be considered 

within the context that there is a new duty to report an adult at risk under the new legislation and more 

people are aware and are responsive to the requirement to report.   

Newport have performed well in respect of the response to the “Duty to report an adult at risk”, as 97.78% 

of all referrals received have a decision made within the statutory timescale of 7 working days in respect of 

the potential adult at risk. All adults deemed as “at risk” will have a Care and Support Plan which will be 

reviewed as part of the Adult Safeguarding Process, this is a multi-agency approach which formalises the 

expectations on each involved agency in order to safeguard the person. Although the person cannot attend 

the initial meeting due to sharing of confidential/ sensitive information (i.e. information about alleged 

perpetrator) the wishes and feelings of the person are captured and are central to the process itself.  Multi-

agency safeguarding outcomes are included in the Care and Support Plan alongside the personal outcomes 

which they wish to achieve. Advocacy in respect of safeguarding is a theme which will be evidenced in more 

detail later within this report.  There is a robust reviewing process in place whereby all previous referrals/ 

contacts with the Local Authority are considered as part of the enquiry phase, and for every case where an 

adult is identified as “at risk” they will have a Care and Support Plan. No case will be closed without a review 

occurring which takes into account the views of the multi-agency professionals and the person themselves.   

Protective factors and measures are always considered from the point of the enquiry and appropriate 

arrangements put in place.  Within Adult Services we have recently re-designed the Care and Support Plan 

process to now incorporate the risk rating assessment tool for adults at risk within the care and support 

document.  In order to be Act compliant and also to host best practice we have also worked with the 

regional transformation team to implement new formats for the reporting process for adults at risk.   

Appointeeships are also a legal protective arrangement when a person has been identified as “at risk” from 

a financial perspective.  In Newport we have a designated appointeeship team which is responsible for the 

management and review for 105 people in this period from a broad ranging client group. 

Page 78



27 
 

Newport City Council is the supervisory body for all Deprivation of Liberty Safeguard (DoLS) assessments 

completed within care homes within the district; for all persons who are “ordinarily resident” in Newport, 

and for all “self-funders”.  In this period 115 people were subject of a DoLS assessment in Newport, this is an 

increase of 13% in the number of people subject to a DoLS assessment in the previous reporting period.  In 

response to the increase in the number of referrals a ‘screening tool’ was devised by the Gwent Deprivation 

of Liberty Safeguarding Consortium and agreed by Welsh Government for usage.   The DoLS assessment and 

reviewing arrangements in line with the Care and Support Plan process have been identified as a key priority 

area for further development by Adult Services in the forthcoming year. 

Partnership working is integral in effectively protecting and safeguarding people from abuse, neglect or 

harm. The new Act develops the themes of collaboration and multi-agency working to safeguard people at 

risk further by extending the legal duties to report where abuse, neglect or harm is suspected for both 

children and adults.  There are many multi agency protective processes and forums which occur where 

protective arrangements are considered for those who put their own safety at risk or pose a risk to wider 

networks. Such arrangements can involve both Children and Adult Services participation and include Multi 

Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA), Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC), 

Domestic Abuse Conference Call (DACC), S115 Meetings (Crime and Disorder Act 1998).    

It is recognised that Newport has one of the highest rates of citizens discussed within the MARAC process 

when benchmarked with our neighbouring authorities (“Safer Lives” population analysis 2016), in this period 

there have been 166 High Risk cases referred to Newport MARAC (48 of these were repeat victims).  

Children’s Services have been involved in MARAC’s within this period where there have been 130 known 

“open” cases to the Local Authority. The information and protective arrangements agreed within these 

meetings (i.e. actions required of involved partner agencies) directly informed the Care and Support Planning 

for the identified child in order for Children’s Services to effectively safeguard them.   

The role of the Local Authority Designated Officer is a further example of where Newport work in 

partnership to respond to allegations of abuse or neglect regarding professionals, staff members or 

volunteers working with children and vulnerable.  In 2016/2017 there were 80 referrals about professionals 

considered. The number of cases discussed has increased upon last year’s figures.  It is acknowledged that 

greater practitioner/ partner awareness on the professional strategy meeting process, the number of “duty 

to report” referrals received, and also the growing rate of investigations linked to online/social media related 

potential offences has resulted in better recognition and response when considering those people working 

with children and vulnerable adults.    

The number of children named on Newport’s Child Protection Register as at 31st March 2017 is 118. 

Every child identified on the Newport Child Protection Register has a Care and Support Plan which identifies 

their personal outcomes including ‘protection from abuse and neglect’. Whilst the conference makes the 

decision over risk, it is the work of the multi-agency core group to develop and achieve the identified needs 

through the core group process.  Over the last year we have developed the core group process to ensure 

that the personal outcomes in the plan are central to the review and the distanced travelled in achieving 

these wellbeing outcomes can be captured.  Positively, IRO’s have also reported that since the last child 

protection review that 92% of cases have been reviewed whereby the significant decisions/ 

recommendations from the last conference have been completed, illustrating that we are responding to and 

regularly reviewing the plans in place to protect and promote the well-being of children identified as “at 

risk” of harm within Newport. 

Page 79



28 
 

The average length of time for children on the Child Protection register during this year was 265 days.   It is 

important to note the context in which this statistic is supplied and it must be taken into account that the 

safety and permanency planning for a child identified “at risk” of abuse or harm should always be 

considered/ reviewed on an individual basis, as one child’s circumstances for registration will not be the 

same as another child’s circumstances even if within the same registration category. However, if a child is 

registered for over a year (following third review) then as a protective arrangement the IRO should request 

that a Multi-Agency Supervision session should be facilitated by the SEWSCB whereby cases which appear to 

be “stuck” or in hiatus can be explored to ensure that the case does not “drift”. 

During this period when Care and Support Plans have been reviewed IRO’s have reported that 96% of 

conferences held were not experiencing “drift”. This statistic reflects that the steps being taken to protect 

and safely manage the identified risks are being appropriately managed by the local authority.  It is 

important to note here that the small number of cases where “drift” was identified by the IRO are likely due 

to a lack of parental engagement with the process.   

The percentage of re-registrations of children on Newport’s Child Protection Register within the year in this 

period is currently 10.91%, this is a slight increase on the number recorded in the previous period.  Viewing 

the number of re-registrations should not automatically be framed in the context that there has been a 

failure to protect the child from abuse, harm or neglect during the original period of registration as the re-

registration period may result from entirely separate circumstances to the original registration reason. 

According to IRO monitoring the intervention by agencies, as implemented, has been appropriate to manage 

the risk of significant harm for 90% of reviews. However, in some cases it is not always possible for risk to be 

safely managed for the child/ young person to remain in the care of their parents/ care givers and when 

necessary, it is the duty of the local authority to act to prevent further risk of harm, in these cases swift 

identification and prompt intervention is required.  The (Revised) Public Law Outline is a legal process where 

children identified as “at risk” have their cases presented to court under a strict 26 week timetabling 

framework, it is positively reported by the Senior Legal Adviser that Newport is performing within the 26 

week timetable on all cases presented to court.  It is also of note that within this period the Newport legal 

team has been requested to provide good practice examples of court reports (e.g. parenting assessments; 

legal meeting paperwork processes) to other local authorities in the West Wales region for modelling and 

good practice recommendations for staff.  

Within the child protection conferences completed within this period it is reported by the IROs that in 99% 

of cases the “parent/ person with PR were able to make a meaningful contribution to the conference/ 

review” and in 95% of cases the young person's views, wishes and feelings were represented to the meeting.  

When protective arrangements are being considered the voice of the person can also be heard via an 

advocate. The legal teams working on behalf of both service areas have proactively referred for independent 

advocacy where there has been an identified need since the 2016 period.  Within Children’s Services when a 

care proceedings case is presented at court a parent is generally supported via the legal aid board however, 

any need outside of the legal aid board remit would not be covered.  We have therefore funded 

independent advocates for parents during proceedings and made recommendations for independent 

advocates to support the child, specifically at LAC reviews. Within Adult Services the identification and need 

for independent advocacy has arisen in court of protection cases including Guardianship, similarly to 

Children’s Services where there is an identified need but this does not meet the remit of legal aid board 

funding, the local authority has commissioned independent advocacy for the person.   

Page 80



29 
 

It is very positive to report that within this period the court has highlighted good practice by Newport 

Children’s Services in relation to the care planning approaches of working with the parent and in the best 

interests of the child with a specific case and stated, “The direction was sought by the local authority, which 

was endeavouring to act proportionately and in accordance with the family’s Human Rights... I should add 

that the parents have nothing but praise for the local authority, and rightly so” (HHJ Edwards, 2016). 

During the year 2016/ 2017 the Corporate Safeguarding Report was developed and ratified whereby the 

council’s corporate safeguarding responsibilities and how we deliver and achieve on these were scrutinised 

in addition to the specific aims and work plans of the teams that encompass the Safeguarding Unit.  This 

report highlighted how we as a Council are committed to supporting and, when necessary, taking the steps 

to protect the citizens in our community. Both the corporate safeguarding action plan and safeguarding unit 

team plans have clearly defined outcomes on how we will deliver on the identified needs for “safeguarding” 

with the anticipated outcome that the citizens of Newport feel that their health, well-being, human rights 

and opportunity to live in a community free from harm, abuse and neglect is being promoted and supported 

by the local authority. 

In relation to this quality standard 40 complaints have been received by Children’s services and 16 by Adults 

services over the period 2016/17. Newport YOS underwent a re-inspection in June 2016, of the 6 areas of 

scrutiny the service was found to have attained 1 good; 4 satisfactory; and 1 unsatisfactory grading. The 

unsatisfactory grading related to the quality standard “Protecting Children and Young People”, there is now 

a clear action plan in place to address the issues identified within this area for improvement and overall the 

inspection positively recognised that “Newport Youth Offending Service (YOS) had made a step change in 

performance since the last inspection. The YOS was stronger in assessment and delivering good quality 

interventions…The YOS were aware of where they needed to improve and were constructively addressing the 

issues”. 

PRIORITY OBJECTIVES FOR STANDARD C 

 To increase social work capacity in YOS – to manage additional referrals from targeted police 

interventions and to improve risk assessments and joint working for young people in need of 

protection. This is an area identified by inspectors for improvement 

Quality Standard D- Encouraging and supporting people to learn, develop and participate 

in society 

 

When considering the survey data from Adults with a Care and Support Plan who responded to the 

statement “I can do the things that are important to me” there was a lower agreement rate reported than 

we would have hoped for with only 45% answering Yes and 35% answering sometimes. However, this data 

needs to be considered within the context of it being a broad statement.  It is impossible to interpret the 

reasons why a person feels unable to do the things that are important to them and the reason for not 

achieving this may sit outside the gift of the local authority.  When the same survey group were asked to 

respond to the statement “I am happy with the care and support I have had”, 77% responded YES, therefore, 

indicating that the care and support the person has received from the local authority was satisfactory in 

helping them to meet their personal outcomes which have been based on what matters to them. 

 

Opportunity to engage in meaningful learning, education and training is vital in establishing a community 

which is cohesive, inclusive, and sustainable both socially and economically.  Improving skills and promoting 

Page 81



30 
 

opportunities in education and learning is fundamental in the experiences of children and young people 

universally but as we are aware from research, our more vulnerable children in society, particularly those 

who are “at risk” or are “looked after”, are more likely to experience disadvantage or disruption in their 

education and learning when compared with their peers.   

When considering the key performance data for all key stage 2 pupils in Newport 71.43% of pupils are 

achieving the core subject indicator in this period. The percentage of children achieving the core subject 

indicator at key stage 4 is 7.14%, this is a new measure introduced by Welsh Government and therefore any 

comparison with previous years’ key stage 4 data is impossible. 

The use of the Pupil Deprivation Grant is also a measure/ indicator which we have used to reflect how 

resources are used to support children in attaining educational outcomes, the grant can be accessed for 

defined groups of vulnerable children which include “LAC” however is not exclusive to this group.  In 

Newport 78% of the schools have a “looked after child” population. 37% of Newport schools received PDG 

funding from the Welsh Government in this period, equating to £155,000 for Newport schools to fund a 

variety of interventions which will promote and provide opportunity in achieving educational attainment.  

The Letterbox Club and University of South Wales Partnership are schemes running within Newport which 

are specifically targeted for “looked after children” with the outcome of promoting and improving 

educational attainment.  In 2016/2017 66 looked after children received the letterbox parcel and since 2015 

25 looked after children and 24 foster carers have been supported to attend open days at various 

Universities. 

There are times when a looked after child’s educational placement is disrupted which results in the child 

having to move schools, measures and actions are always taken by both Education Services and Children’s 

Services in order to attempt to prevent or minimise any changes in school placements for looked after 

children, but there are times when an alternate provision must be sought.  In this period 6.8% of school aged 

looked after children experienced one or more changes in school which were not due to transitional 

arrangements. This percentage is a small population of the school aged looked after children within Newport 

and when interrogating the data further there have been positive transitions which have occurred (for 

example, placements for adoption) therefore, although the child has experienced a school move this has 

occurred in order to meet the personal wellbeing outcome for the child. 

The LAC Education Service has been re-structured with a focus on improving educational attainment of 

looked after children by increasing partnership work with Education. 

The Seamless Learning and Wellbeing Pathways have been developed within Education Services in this 

period which focus on improving the transition of learning between primary and secondary schools to 

address the dip in attainment noted at KS 3 plus developing and strengthening the approach to family and 

community engagement (FaCE), with specific reference to Mathematics. Parental engagement with their 

child’s learning is the ultimate goal and is the one that bears fruit in terms of children’s achievement as it 

relates to the attitude towards learning in the home.  By developing links and pathways between Education 

Services and Preventative/ Children’s Services this too promotes a holistic approach in working with families. 

Work is also underway with local provider CPI on the development of a specialist residential college for 

young adults with autism and learning disabilities located in the Ringland area of Newport.  This will enable 

Page 82



31 
 

people with learning disabilities to develop their independent living skills within their local community.  It 

will provide a better choice of educational options for young people making the transition to adulthood.  

Newport’s day opportunities have been remodelled so that we can provide quality person centred care to 

meet the needs of people who are learning disabled with high support needs, recovery-focussed support for 

individual’s experiencing mental health problems and vulnerable older people with complex needs including 

physical disability, sensory impairment, mental ill health or early stage dementia.  Brynglas day opportunities 

gives the most frail or vulnerable people the opportunity to socialise confidently, benefitting from social 

integration with like-minded individuals, whilst giving respite to carers and families. The remodelling process 

engaged service users and their carers in respect of the resources and proposed provisions, these views 

were actively considered in the development of the day opportunities and how these would be facilitated/ 

hosted both on and off the Brynglas site.  This remodelling has been favourably received by professionals 

and service users alike with one professional reporting; 

“Very impressed with the refurbishment and provision for a wide range of service users. Really thoughtful 

attention to detail keeping the needs of the service user’s central to the service. Will look forward to being 

able to refer people to this excellent facility”. 

In addition to the re-modelling of the Council’s direct provision of day opportunities, we have engaged with 

the market to stimulate a more diverse range of services and community opportunities for adults with 

learning disabilities.   For example, the Parc Pantry social enterprise at Bellevue Park now provides work 

opportunities in a catering environment for people who are supported by Flexible Options.  A successful ICF 

bid has resulted in a targeted programme of travel training provided by Evolve, a social enterprise , with the 

aim of enabling vulnerable people to develop the confidence and skills to travel independently.   Another 

initiative has resulted in a one year trial of an alternative day service currently provided at the YMCA by 

Circles Network.  Using the learning outcomes from this trial, a formal tender is planned for July 2017 which 

will look to further develop the portfolio of community-based services for adults with learning disabilities in 

Newport.  There is more support for young people with complex needs, through providers new to the area 

such as Mirus and Star College now offering specialist services.  Local provider CPI has recently purchased 

the former Council site at Ringwood House with plans to modernise the facilities to include day services.  

 

In relation to this quality standard 5 complaints have been received by Children’s services and 15 by Adults 

services over the period 2016/17. 

 

PRIORITY OBJECTIVES FOR STANDARD D 

 To strengthen the voice of carers and vulnerable people in the design and delivery of services – in 

order to promote the resilience and independence of citizens and avoid creating dependency on 

traditional forms of service delivery 

Quality Standard E-  Supporting people to safely develop and maintain healthy domestic, 

family and personal relationships 

 

In this period 70% of children with a Care and Support Plan have been supported to remain living with their 

family. Through the provision of services and support we have been working with the child and their family 

to achieve their personal outcomes and to prevent the child from becoming “looked after”.    

Page 83



32 
 

Between 2016 and 2017 the child protection team have been successful in 

supporting three children returning home to their birth parents, following 

their previous removal via care proceedings. The proceedings for each of 

these children, have been a demonstration of the positive working 

relationship the department and parents have been able to maintain, during 

an upsetting and challenging time in a child and parents life. We in the child 

protection team are very proud of this achievement and how each of these 

children are able to maintain the family life and experience the love, warmth, 

and connection with their birth parents. 

I.F.S.T figures illustrate a successful 26.6% reduction in the number of those children supported who were 

named on the child protection register post IFST intervention, there were no cases in this period where the 

child went onto become “looked after”, and 20.89% of those supported following the intervention were 

then closed to Newport Children’s Services- this reflects that the intervention was successful in meeting the 

needs of the child to no longer require care and support facilitated by the local authority.  

14.5% of looked after children 

have safely returned home 

from care in this period, 

meaning that the child no 

longer has the legal status of 

being “looked after” and has 

been either reunited with their 

parents  or provided with a 

stable home with a family 

member or connected person.   

 

Ideally a child will remain within one stable placement. There are however occasions when a placement 

move for a “looked after child” must occur. Within this period 10% of the looked after children in Newport 

experienced 3 or more placement moves,  however, not all placement moves experienced were  ‘negative’ 

or indicative of breakdown.  Short breaks or transition placements in an emergency are positive steps ahead 

of to a permanent stable placement.  

 

Unfortunately there was a very low level response rate received by parents completing the care and support 

questionnaire, of those parents who responded “reporting that they felt involved in any decisions made 

about their child’s care and support” 5 of the 6 participants did agree with this statement.  69% of Carers 

who participated in the qualitative survey reported that they felt “actively involved in all decisions about how 

care and support was provided for the person I care for”, only 57% of these carers responded that they “feel 

supported to continue in my caring role.  55% of the carers surveyed responded YES to the statement “I am 

happy with the support I have had”.   Carers have told us that information and advice at the ‘right time’ is 

paramount to supporting their caring role.  We are currently developing ways to improve the information we 

provide and the format in which it is offered in consultation with carers and our partners.   

 

Carers have told us that their loved one’s well-being is often intertwined with their own well-being and they 

feel there are gaps in support for social groups for both carers and their loved ones to attend within 

Newport.  The carer/ community connector service, in consultation with third sector providers, are in the 

planning stages of addressing these gaps and groups are being developed (for example a “former carers” 

group)  in addition to developing a pilot support course for when caring comes to an end. Many carers have 

told us that life away from caring is essential to their well-being therefore since September 2016 innovative 

commissioning of third sector carer services and introducing alternative models of respite, including 

accessing carers grants, has allowed Carers’ greater opportunity for time away from their caring role in order 

to meet their own personal wellbeing outcomes.   

 

Page 84



33 
 

 ‘I love young carers because I get to 
meet new people that understand me 
and are in the same situation as me’  
 
‘I love it because they helped me and 
my mum through some tough times and 
I enjoy it’ 

The Barnardo’s Young Carers Service has received 36 referrals 

from Children’s Services (this includes referrals from 

preventative tier services), of these referrals 34 were progressed 

resulting in a service being received.  This is a 24% increase in 

the number of referrals in the previous year.  Positively 85% of 

all young carers referred to the service reported an increase in 

their skills & understanding related to their caring role and feedback from the young people themselves has 

highlighted the difference the service has made to their lives and those of the cared for person.  

Resulting from new legislative requirements under the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (Wales) Act 2015 (VAWDASV), Newport has worked in collaboration with our regional local 

authority counterparts in being the ‘pathfinder region’ which has developed the regional strategy ahead of 

national guidance.  There is a national training framework linked to VAWDASV (Wales) Act 2015 with 

requirements on public sector services to ensure that staff can recognise and appropriately respond when 

there are concerns for domestic abuse and sexual violence. In the past year Newport has specifically 

targeted this “Ask and Act” training across Education Services and Adult Services staff, we have trained 58 

designated leads from Education Services (Primary and Secondary Provisions)  and 48 professionals across 

Adult Services.   

Independent Domestic Violence Advocates (IDVA) act as the voice of the victim in “high risk” MARAC 

meetings and as a key co-ordinator in ensuring that the person is held central to the process and that their 

voice is heard and respected when risks are being discussed and managed. The IDVA Service reports on a 

number of outcomes that seek to measure the difference made to the individual, in this reporting period in 

Newport; 

- 151 people reported that they have been provided with the information and advice they need to 

access services and support and able to make informed choices as a result;   

- 24% of people reported feeling safer;  

- 25% people reported an improvement to their well-being/quality of life. 

 

Focus on supporting children to recognise unsafe relationships; protecting themselves from abuse and 

neglect; and developing “healthy” attitudes towards relationships has been addressed by providing “healthy 

relationship” sessions universally to children in Newport Schools (primary and secondary).   

In 2016/ 2017 Spectrum have provided 125 Healthy Relationship sessions to schools in Newport (1088 

pupils) and 146 teachers have been trained in relation to “healthy relationships” and VAWDASV.  Newport 

has joined with other Gwent authorities to fund a theatre production for all Year 8 children on the theme of 

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE). During this period all year 8 pupils in Newport Schools would have 

participated within these workshops.  Education social workers, youth workers and preventions staff have 

received CSE awareness training and are working alongside schools to deliver targeted educative sessions to 

children who are identified as being at increased risk of CSE. This has included keep safe work, healthy 

relationships work and sex education, it aims to engage children in developing skills to recognise risks, 

identify unhealthy relationships, and to know what support is available. 

In this period we have supported 44 children at high risk of CSE. A significant number of our high risk cohort 

are “Looked After Children” who, as a result of the challenges posed in caring for children who are displaying 

the risky behaviours associated with CSE, were frequently moving placement and often being placed into out 

Page 85



34 
 

of area placements or even secure accommodation. In responding to this challenge, we have developed an 

existing residential children’s home provision to better respond to the risks identified and to enable children 

to remain living in Newport, thus maintaining family relationships, professional support networks and 

education, whilst sustaining a safety and disruption plan. The CSE Forum work plan, coordinated by the CSE 

Manager for Newport, sets out clear objectives for strategies in tackling and responding to concerns around 

CSE. 

Operation Quartz is a specific CSE operation established within Newport, via information sharing and multi-

agency collaborative working with partner agencies including the local authority, the operation has been 

successful in disrupting CSE activities and prosecuting offenders. During 2016, in collaboration with Gwent 

Police, Operation Quartz, piloted a Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) meeting, this has been seen to 

be successful, via multi-agency review, and is now being rolled out across Gwent.  

The PREVENT duty was brought into law in Wales in July 2015 (Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015), it 

is a public sector duty to have ‘due regard’ to preventing people being drawn into terrorism.  Within this 

period there has been significant training undertaken within Education services on the PREVENT Strategy, all 

secondary schools have received PREVENT training. Across the 28 primary schools that have undertaken 

training, all schools have ensured that as a minimum, all teaching staff are trained.  Since the training has 

taken place it is positively reported that there has been an increase in the number of schools contacting for 

advice and assistance in order to clarify if a PREVENT referral is required.  It is reported from the multi 

agencies involved that there have been successful diversions when working with the person in identifying 

unhealthy relationships and how the people around the person referred (e.g. family, wider network) are also 

supported.  It is a priority objective that all social services staff and housing department employees will 

undertake the Prevent training within the forthcoming year. 

The Adult Learning Disability Team along with a range of professionals can facilitate a range of bespoke 

interventions, to enable building healthy relationships. The interventions are dependent on the personal 

circumstances, including levels of cognition, social history, etc.  This could be as a 1-1 intervention or via 

group work (mixed and single sex groups where appropriate), with themes identified by professionals, or 

responding to issues as they come to light.   

In relation to this quality standard 14 complaints have been received by Children’s services and 11 by Adults 

services over the period 2016/17. A focussed inspection was completed in July 2016 on the quality of life of 

children and young people who use the Oaklands service.  The report concluded “Overall, we (CSSIW) found 

that children and young people had a positive experience during their stay at the home and the quality of 

care they received contributed to the quality of their life.  Feedback from parents of children who use the 

service described the home as providing a ‘lifeline’ and that they were confident that their child was ‘happy 

and enjoying themselves and more importantly being well cared for by staff that we totally trust’”.  The 

inspection made a number of recommendations and also found that there had been a breach in the 

requirement of the completion of regulation 33 reports which require the views of children/ young people, 

parents and staff, and a breach in relation to the storing of confidential records of young people. These were 

rectified immediately.  

 

The CSSIW inspection for Forest Lodge found that “Children’s well-being is generally good and their needs 

are mostly being met by the home…Children are supported to make decisions about how they wish to spend 

their time.  They have opportunities to voice their opinions about the care they receive and feel listened to 

Page 86



35 
 

and supported by the staff team”.  The inspectors found that “Children are consulted about their care and 

involved in decisions about their day-to-day lives.  We found they had a good understanding of their care and 

placement plans and were aware of their risk assessments… Feedback from children was generally positive 

about their experiences of living in the home.  It was evident that they had good relationships with staff and 

we observed positive interactions and banter”. 

 

A non-compliance notice has been issued in respect of “Care and Supervision (Regulation 11 (1) (b)): The 

home had not always ensured adequate care and supervision of children placed at the home”, this was 

attributable to third party access into the home.  The report made a number of recommendations which 

have now been addressed by the staff team.   

The inspection report for Cambridge House was conducted during a turbulent period, however, despite the 

issues identified the report does acknowledge that “alongside the difficulties, effort has been made to 

engage children in constructive hobbies and interests and to divert them from involvement in illicit activities”.  

A Non-compliance noticed was issued at the inspection in September 2016 and a continued non-compliance 

for the same point was included in the re-inspection in February 2017. This non-compliance is attributable to 

decisions made to admit children; who’s known needs the home could not meet and who were likely to have 

a seriously adverse impact on the welfare and wellbeing of others.  

It should be acknowledged that good practice and meaningful relationships have been forged and young 

people supported have benefitted from their placements, the inspection report acknowledges “Some 

evidence was seen that children had started to settle again and that staff had begun to engage constructively 

with them…Children are encouraged to follow interests; to engage constructively in the local community and 

develop independence”. 

The full reports are attached as appendices. 

The Head of Children’s Services has recently received communication from the Children’s Commissioner for 

Wales acknowledging Newport’s commitment to excellent residential care. 

 

PRIORITY OBJECTIVES FOR STANDARD E 

 To develop a therapeutic milieu for children in our own residential homes and to explore regional 

approaches to commissioning residential care for children presently placed out of the Gwent region. 

 

The views of some of the Young People currently being “looked after” by our residential services positively include; 

“One young person told us she understands we try and keep her safe which at times means putting in restrictions 

that she doesn’t like. Another told us meeting her every 2 hours makes her feel safer. She couldn’t think of anything 

else we could do to keep her safer”. 

“She says she feels safe at Forest Lodge and doesn’t think there is anywhere else she would feel safer living”. 

 

Page 87



36 
 

Quality Standard F- Working with and supporting people to achieve greater economic 

well-being, have a social life and live in suitable accommodation that meets their needs 

Newport offer support to people to achieve greater economic wellbeing from the IAA point of contact 

through to more bespoke services and legal interventions (i.e. Appointeeships). The types of support made 

available are dependent upon individual circumstances. There are a range of mechanisms and support 

agencies which ensure that the right financial help is available at the right time. 

Newport Pathway teams support care leaves by engaging and supporting young people to gain appropriate 

employment and educational opportunities as part of their Care and Support plan.  Two placements for 

children formerly looked after have been ring-fenced for work experience with the council with the 

opportunity of developing into an apprenticeship. The team routinely link with Careers to ensure that all 

young people have access to appropriate advice and guidance. We work in partnership with positive futures 

to provide opportunities for to develop self-esteem and leadership skills for young people not engaged in 

education, employment or training with a view to increasing employability. The pathway team links young 

people with citizens advice and offers assistance with attendance.  Care and Support Plans include looking at 

budgeting and maximising income where appropriate. 

The percentage of all care leavers who are in education, training or employment at 12 months is 50.00% 

whilst at  24 months after leaving care the percentage is 51.43% 

Via a range of tenancy and floating support Supporting People engage with citizens in a number of ways to 

be active citizens economically and socially. The table below show the outcomes achieved by Supporting 

People over the period July to December 2016. Changes to the Welsh Assembly reporting framework mean 

the figures for January to march are not yet available. The table shows the % achieving, or making progress 

towards, these outcomes as part of their support: 

 

 

 

 Number of people 
with this outcome 

% achieving 
outcome 

% making progress 
towards outcome 

People are managing their accommodation 2,383 29.4 % 16.0 % 
People are feeling part of the community 1,349 37.1 % 13.1 % 
People are engaging in employment/voluntary work 614 41.2 % 11.2 % 
People are managing their money 1,794 30.8 % 15.6 % 

 

Financial inclusion support worker, funded by supporting people, works to maximise income and benefits 

and reduce debt via the Supporting People Gateway (including self-referrals). This worker engages with 

those who are either unable to gain accommodation, or at threat of losing their accommodation, as a result 

of financial issues, such as debt or welfare rights entitlement, to enable them to manage their finances. It is 

anticipated that changes in the welfare system, particularly universal credit, is likely to significantly mean 

that this service becomes increasingly necessary. Since October 2016 to March 2017 service users’ 

annualised income had been increased through welfare benefit entitlement and grants by £120k and £12k of 

debt has been written off.  The previous paragraph gives details on outcomes achieved by supporting people 

in terms of managing money.  

 

From the survey 85% of people reported that they live in the right home for them; whilst a further 9% 

reported they did ‘sometimes’.  

Page 88



37 
 

D has a crushed right arm and long standing circulation problems in his 
lower limbs. He sleeps on a bed in the living room and all his care needs are 
undertaken by his wife. The family do have a downstairs bathroom and 
shower, but it is in a very poor state of repair and is extremely hazardous for 
David to use. An application was made for a Disabled Facilities Grant from 
Newport City Council for a new wet room facility and it was agreed, but on 
the condition that a contribution of £2,000. However their joint income was 
such that they could not afford to pay the contribution. They were at first, 
very apathetic to the Physical Disability Support Worker.  As with every new 
client an assessment of need was carried out and a support plan was 
created with the goals mutually agreed. It was clear that they were not 
claiming the disability benefits he is entitled to. Following a lengthy 
application process they were awarded PIP, and then, after initially being 
declined, were awarded ESA.  They now feel confident enough to go ahead 
with the Disabled Facilities Grant and will have a modern and safe wet 
room. 

The Occupational Therapy (OT) operate a service in a Community setting  for Newport Adults with long term 

physical conditions that affect their ability to undertake activities they would like to do. This enables people 

to remain in their own homes. The team offer a Proportionate assessment, advice and information and also 

a specialist assessment if the person needs this, to work with people to achieve their outcomes. This may 

include assisting with the provision of or sign posting for purchase of equipment, recommending small or 

major adaptations, sign posting the person for Reablement to help them recover further or build confidence. 

The team have fully embraced and implemented the Social care and Wellbeing Act assisting more people 

with timely advice and information and proving a specialist OT service for the more vulnerable Newport 

residents and have under taken a Care Review project to ensure that Newport residents have the right sized 

care and support they need at the right time 

 

Supported Housing Gateway provides the access point for accommodation for vulnerable citizens in 

Newport. Permanent or long-term housing support, including sheltered or extra-care accommodation, is 

provided for older people, for people 

with learning disabilities and enduring 

mental health issues. In addition the 

Supported Housing Gateway is a point of 

access for temporary or short-term 

housing for homeless people with 

housing-related support needs. The level 

of support offered is based on the needs 

of the individual as based on assessment 

and may include refuge accommodation, 

supported housing, floating support and 

resettlement support. A range of 

providers exist and support is tailored to 

the individual need.  

 

Floating support is the term used to describe housing-related support services that are provided by support 

workers to people in their own homes. Newport City Council and its partners offer a range of housing-

related support services including those for people experiencing domestic abuse, for people with memory 

loss or dementia and for people with learning disabilities, mental health issues substance misuse problems, 

offending behaviour and developmental disorders. 

 

Telecare support also enables citizens to maintain their own tenancies. Community alarms enable people to 

call for help if they fall, are taken ill or experience an emergency at home, so that they can continue to live 

independently.  Emergency calls are routed to a monitoring centre that is staffed 24 hours a day, 7 days a 

week.  A range of sensors include: personal triggers, worn on wrist or around neck; bogus caller buttons, 

fitted near a door; falls detector pendants; smoke detectors; bed occupancy detectors; flood detectors; 

movement detectors and property exit sensors. The Council commissioned Merthyr Council’s Lifeline Alarm 

Service in April 2014 for citizens living in owner-occupied or private rented accommodation. Since that time 

there has been a steady growth in numbers on the scheme with an additional 263 new service users in 

2016/17, amounting to a year-end total of 653 vulnerable people currently connected to this valuable 

preventative service.    

 

Page 89



38 
 

A pilot Hoarding and Cluttering Project was commissioned by the Supporting People Team with Newport 

Mind to scope options for a Newport service to address this growing problem. The final report makes five 

recommendations including: specialist training for support staff; the development of a specialist support 

service; the need for a multi-agency approach to hoarding and better, more co-ordinated data collection to 

identify the extent of hoarding difficulties.   

Where possible the aim of housing support is to provide the skills to facilitate independent living. Ty Eirlys is 

a new scheme opened this year to support citizens to live more independently. Ty Eirlys is the bridge 

between supported living and independent living. The people living there predominantly have learning 

disabilities and enduring mental health issues. People will have their own apartments with a tailored support 

package that will meet their specific needs whilst having the benefit of core staff being available 24 hours a 

day. Alongside that people will receive housing support from the Newid team. The aim is for the people to 

engage with their individualised, tailored support package, develop independent skills and increase their 

community presence. We hope people will strengthen their social skills, take control of their lives and make 

everyday choices for themselves. 

 

In the survey 74 % of adults said it was there choice to live in a residential care home. 

 

The annual report to Quality of Care Support to Scrutiny on Residential Provision concluded that overall the 

quality of service provision delivered by both internal and externally commissioned providers is good. A large 

amount of time is spent monitoring the performance of care homes and domiciliary care, as these are 

services most used by Newport residents. A new outcomes monitoring tool that we have developed has 

enabled the Contracts and Commissioning Team to record and monitor providers performance more 

effectively. This tool is vital in ensuring that the team can monitor the quality, of an ever increasing number 

of commissioned providers. Newport have benefited from having a good relationship with providers who 

have welcomed the open and transparent approach to addressing some of the risks highlighted in section. 

With increased demand and external pressures such as the living wage, costs across the private sector are 

going to increase year on year.  Newport are changing the way we commission services, by looking at new 

models of service delivery in order to help mitigate these risks, and have developed a new, robust and 

flexible fee structure for all residential care home placements which has enabled us to ensure: Market 

stability; to offer greater choice; to ensure more residents remain in Newport, instead of being placed out of 

county; and to enable providers to invest in their homes and services 

  

In the survey 86% of children said they were happy with whom they lived. However this figure needs to be 

considered with care as only 22 responses were received. Providing the right placement for young people is 

part of the work of the Matching and Placement Support (MAPS) team. The MAPS team has two functions, 

searching for foster care and residential placements for children who are looked after; and providing support 

for looked after children and their carers using a therapeutic approach to understanding and providing care 

to meet the needs of our children. The MAPS team work with Newport children, who are looked after, being 

cared for by Newport approved foster carers or Newport Residential Childrens homes with a focus on 

developing the skills and understanding of our foster carers and residential staff to provide the best possible 

care for our children.  In common with other local authorities in Wales providing placement choice continues 

to be challenging given the range of placement options.   

The percentage of all care leavers who have experienced homelessness during the year is 10.92%. The 

survey reported that only 66% of children felt that the help, advice and support received had prepared them 

Page 90



39 
 

for adulthood but as only three people responded to this survey the results need to be treated with a degree 

of caution. Newport Pathway team, in partnership with housing provides, have been developing a range of 

housing opportunities for care leavers as appropriate for the young person’s independent living skills. This 

would range from support lodgings, shared flats, single person accommodation, as well as supported 

housing accessed via Supported Peopled Programme. Gwent have commissioned IPC to look at the housing 

needs of those with complex needs. In addition we have developed a When I Am Ready offer which is made 

to all eligible young people. Currently we have 4 when I am ready arrangements.  

95% of people reported they have received care and support through their language of choice, whilst a 

further 3% reported this was the case “sometimes”. This year has seen the increase in use of professional 

translation services in all cases where English is not the first language of the family.    

In relation to this quality standard 31 complaints have been received by Children’s services and 0 by Adults 

services over the period 2016/17. 

Newport has worked in partnership and also engaged with citizens to achieve this standard 

Supporting People have developed a partnership framework that meets regularly with all commissioned 

partners to review and monitor projects on an ongoing basis. As result of this process issues can be picked 

up in a timely manner. In some instances this has resulted in remodelling services to deliver strategically 

relevant quality services more vulnerable people whilst also delivering better value for money. The 

development of supporting people services rely on good multi agency working, to ensure an holistic 

approach to meeting the housing needs of citizens. One example of this partnership approach is the 

development of a ‘wet house’ to support people with enduring alcohol problems. Under the aegis of the 

previous Local Service Board, a SIP Board project was established to look at developing accommodation 

solutions for entrenched street drinkers in the City. Partners include Gwent Police, the Office of the Police 

and Crime Commissioner, Public Health, ABUHB, Gwent Substance Misuse Area Planning Board, and the 

Council’s Housing and Supporting People teams together with a local specialist support provider. Building on 

commissioned research undertaken by the University of South Wales, a two-phased approach was agreed by 

the multi-agency project group whereby firstly a dedicated floating support worker would be employed to 

identify cohorts of street drinkers willing to live in shared supported accommodation or a flat of their own. 

Two potential models have been identified: the shared ‘wethouse‘ scheme and Housing First direct let 

model. Both work on the harm-reduction principle and recognise that some people will continue to drink but 

in a safe, secure and supportive environment. The second phase will look to identify suitable properties and 

wrap-around support.     

The 16 –18 practitioner group is a multi-agency group looking at the provision for hard to engage young 

people to provide access to employment and education. The Pathway Service are also members of the 

Young Person Accommodation Group, Housing Action Group, Move On Panel, and part of the All Wales 

Leaving Care Forum all of which are multi-agency forums with aims of developing housing options for young 

people. It is also a focus of the YOS re-settlement panel to consider the needs of young people leaving 

custody. 

Regular engagement with the Children in Care Council, facilitated by Tros Gynnal Plant, to guide service 

development on specific issues for children looked after and care leavers.  

Page 91



40 
 

In 2016/17 Supporting People engagement with Newport citizens included: receipt of 1,105 individual GNME 

forms indicating housing and specific support needs; over 1,500 individual support assessments were 

undertaken for access to supported housing and floating support through the Newport Gateway and generic 

floating support service (The Lighthouse Project).  In addition a separate Service User Needs Mapping Day 

was held where clients from thirteen projects attended. All the information obtained from the above 

exercises was fed into the needs assessment and identification of gaps in service provision as part of the 

robust annual planning process to inform the Local Commissioning Plan for the following year. Potential 

regional, cross-authority and joint commissioning proposals were also included, especially when informed by 

the Gwent Regional Stakeholder Engagement Day held annually in May each year. A number of new 

schemes have subsequently been developed or extended as a result of this process e.g. Gypsy Traveller 

floating support, expansion of hospitals support work with ABUHB, Family Intervention & Prevention scheme 

and regional development of the PREP (Prisoner Release Empowerment Project) and expansion of the 

BAWSO floating support scheme. 

Also, when schemes are reviewed, all service users and recent ex-service users are invited to complete a 

short questionnaire from which a number are invited to in-depth interviews concerning their experience and 

outcomes of the scheme and the support they receive/d. This information is used to improve the quality of 

the service, re-model schemes to make them more strategically relevant and cost-effective or de-

commission schemes to release funding for other identified priorities. 

PRIORITY OBJECTIVES FOR STANDARD G 

 To continue the development of person centred care and support in our re-ablement, domiciliary 

care, residential and nursing care and increasing the use of direct payments and telecare. 

 To develop apprenticeship opportunities in the Council for people who use our services  

5. How We Do What We Do  
 Our Workforce and How We Support their Professional Roles  

 

Welsh Government support for regional developments and National Priorities have seen the implementation 

of Regional Boards for Workforce development that pull together national themes from across Wales.  

National priorities focused on the development of regional structures to take forward the new legislative 

changes brought about by the SSWB Act.    

 

The initial priority of the workforce Board was to implement a workforce development strategy and 

programme of training that focused on introducing the new Act in a “whole sector approach”.    

 

The Regional Workforce Board continues to map local needs into a Greater Gwent Regional shared training 

strategy, through the joint completion of Social Care Workforce Development Partnership (SCWDP) 

application for social care and social work funding arrangements.  Examples of programmes of learning that 

reflect national priorities and have been developed to align with the SSWB ACT include some of the 

following:   

• Qualification routes for social work  

• Post qualifying programmes such as Continued Professional Education and Learning, Approved 

Mental Health Professional certification  and Team Manager Diploma Programme 

• Vocational QCF programmes and review linked to Qualifications Wales  

• SSWB ACT Organisational Development programme  

Page 92



41 
 

• Social Services practitioner initiatives 

• Dementia strategy 

• Health linked initiatives such as Care Closer to Home   

• Achieving Best Evidence  

• DOLs and Mental Capacity- and range of Mental Health related joint training  

• VAWDASV 

• Safeguarding Board joint training group    

 

Locally, through our Training Needs Analysis, with team managers and senior leaders within the Local 

Authority, we have identified a number of programmes of learning such as 

• Parenting Assessment Manual Software (PAMS) 

• Fathers training 

• Dementia training 

• Medication project development  

• Strengthening assessment / Qualifications and Credit Framework (QCF) 

 

New initiatives continue to be shared amongst partners to disseminate effective models of practice and new 

approaches to workforce development through the Greater Gwent Regional Board.   

 

Our Financial Resources and How We Plan For the Future  
Social Services are currently engaged in the following shared arrangements with pooled budgets which are 

part of a section 33 agreement: Frailty & GWICES (Gwent Integrated Community Equipment Service). Both of 

these services show integration work with Health as we all the other local authorities in the Gwent area.   

Within Children services, we have many shared posts with Probation, Gwent Police & Barnardo’s including 

our Head of Service.  

 

The Social Services financial position is reported on a monthly basis from May onwards. Each month it is the 

budget managers responsibility to submit full year spend forecasts via our Budget Management System 

(BMS). The high risk areas such as community care, out of area residential placements for children and 

Fostering forecasts are assisted by financial forecasting tools so that they are as accurate as possible. Any 

major over or underspends against budgets are then flagged up as budget pressures or savings in the 

councils Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). This MTFP informs service planning and council wide decision 

making.  

 

Compared to our benchmark and Gwent local authorities, the Social Services Budget for 2016/17 was third 

lowest per head of population.  

Page 93



42 
 

 

The challenges of delivering Social Services in what is between the 4th or 5th most deprived local authority in 

Wales (Index for Multiple Deprivation 2014) has led to an overspend at the end of the year. The overspend 

in Adult Services was £463k which is just over 1% of budget and this is a result of a £1.1m overspend on 

community care budgets due to more people needing residential and nursing care, greater costs due to 

increasingly complex needs. The overspend in Children’s Services was £181k the which is around 0.8% of 

budget and the principle challenge is in finding placements for young people with complex needs and 

challenging behaviour. This budget alone had a variance of £890k and it is to the credit of staff that the 

overall position was considerably less. 

For the year 2017/18, Social Services has the lowest net budget per 10,000 of the 10 local authorities in its 

comparator group, see figure 1 below. 

 

Figure 1- – Spend Comparisons with Comparator Authorities – Budget per 10,000 Population 2017/18 

 

Our Partnership Working, Political and Corporate Leadership, Governance and 

Accountability  

The Regional Partnership Board, required under Part 9 of the Act, has been established and has met on bi-

monthly basis since Act implementation date of 6th April 2016. It has held two workshop events to confirm 

regional integration priority areas and developed joint statements of strategic intent for: Older persons; 

Children with complex needs; Carers. 

Page 94



43 
 

 Other elements of the required Partnership and Collaboration duties, including the establishment of a 

regional citizen’s panel and a regional value based provider forum, are also in place with the Gwent region 

being among the first to establish these. In order to both coordinate and develop work across the region 

there are also regular meetings with local authority and AHUHB communications leads and a regional joint 

commissioning group (RJCG) to look at impact areas and priorities for a regional level approach.  

The regional joint commissioning priorities have been: Domiciliary care; Model Partnership agreement (for 

joint commissioning and pooled budgets for care home placements for over 65’s); Third sector review and 

pre-implementation work to support the national framework agreement for placements for people with 

learning disabilities and mental health problems.  

Population Needs Assessment (PNA) has been completed, to meet statutory requirements under Part 2 of 

the Act, with discussion and sign off by each local authority and local health board governance process, with 

report submission by deadline date of 31st March 2017. 

The first Regional Partnership Board annual report was completed and submitted by due deadline of 31st 

March 2017, and this met requirements set out in Part 9 of the Act. 

The Regional Partnership Board took forward a high level review of existing partnerships and integrated 

arrangements across health and social services and has agreed a number of Partnerships under the Board as 

follows: 

* Children and Families Partnership 

* Older Persons Integration Partnership 

* Mental Health and Learning Disability Partnership  

* Cares Partnership 

* Health, Social Care and housing Forum 

All integrated pieces of work will come under one or other of these partnerships. 

The Regional Partnership Board has also confirmed Locality Integration Partnerships reporting to the 

regional leadership group to take oversight of local cross-agency initiatives. 

Political leadership and governance is delivered through the cabinet led by our Leader Debbie Wilcox and 

our Cabinet Member, Paul Cockeram. Scrutiny functions are delivered by a dedicated People Services 

Scrutiny Committee and we have a standing Corporate Parenting Panel for children in care. 

Corporate leadership is delivered by the Senior Management and Corporate Management teams and for 

Social Services there is a People Portfolio Board chaired by the Strategic Director (People) who is the 

statutory Director of Social Services. Heads of Service then chair their own programme boards as well as 

leadership meetings. 

Regional governance arrangements are in place for Safeguarding Boards (Adults and Children), the Area 

Planning Boards, the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Board, the Integrated 

Family Support Services Board and the Frailty Board.  

Page 95



44 
 

APPENDIX 

a) Telling the story (pdf) 

Page 96

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Care-and-Support/Director-Social-Services-Annual-Report-2014-2015/Telling-the-Story-for-Peoples-Services-2010-to-2016-Final-July-2017.pdf


 

Report 
Council 
 

 
Part 1  
 
Date:  25 July 2017 
 

Subject Pillgwenlly Public Space Protection Order 
 

Purpose To inform the Council of the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee and of the 

Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulation for the introduction of a Public Space 
Protection Order for Pillgwenlly area of Newport. 

 
 To ask Council to consider the recommendations and to approve the Order. 
 

Author  Public Protection Manager  

 

Ward  Pillgwenlly Ward 

 

Summary A Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) is designed to prevent individuals or groups 

committing anti-social behaviour in a public space where the behaviour is having, or is 
likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality; and the 
behaviour is, or is likely to be, persistent or continuing in nature; and be unreasonable. 
Following a Street Scene Scrutiny Committee meeting on 13th October 2016, it was 
agreed to go to public consultation on a number of possible measures that could be 
included in a Pillgwenlly PSPO and also to invite the public to suggest other possible 
measures. 
Scrutiny Committee then considered a report on 15 March 2017 which detailed the results 
of the consultation and heard from Gwent Police.  
This report details the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee with regard to the 
measures to be included in the PSPO. Members requested that the order be altered to 
reflect the exemption to the intoxicating substance wording for ‘food stuffs regulated by 
food health and safety legislation’ so as  to exclude coffee etc. which can also be a 
stimulant. 
 
Following these recommendations, council lawyers have drafted an amended Pillgwenlly 
order (Appendix). 
 
The Scrutiny Committee agreed to make the following recommendations to the Council: 
 
1. That the Council proceed with the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for 

Pillgwenlly, as per the draft order and boundary map set out in Appendix. 
 

2. That following approval by the Council that the implementation of the PSPO be 
monitored and reported back to the Scrutiny Committee within 1 year. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulation also supports the proposed Order, as 
do the Pillgwenlly Ward members. 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 10.



 

Proposal That Council considers the proposed measures and approves the Public Space 

Protection Order for the Pillgwenlly area as detailed in the Appendix. 
 

Action by  Head of Law and Regulation 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
 Head of Law and Regulation   
 Head of Finance 
 Head of People and Business Change  
 Strategic Director –Place 
 Partnerships Manager 
 Anti-Social Behaviour Manager 
 Housing Needs Manager 
 Cabinet Member- Licensing and Regulation 
 Pillgwenlly Ward Members 
 Gwent Police 

 
 

Signed 

Page 98



 

1.       Background 
 

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced the Public Space Protection Order 
(PSPO).  
 
1.2 What is a Public Space Protection Order? 
 
A PSPO is designed to prevent individuals or groups committing anti-social behaviour in a public space 
where the behaviour is having, or is likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the 
locality; and the behaviour is or likely to be persistent or continuing; and be unreasonable. The power to 
make an Order rests with local authorities, in consultation with the police, Police and Crime 
Commissioner and other relevant bodies who may be impacted. 
 
The Council can make a PSPO on any public space within its own area. The definition of public space is 
wide and includes any place to which the public or any section of the public has access, on payment or 
otherwise, as of right or by virtue of express or implied permission, for example a shopping centre. The 
maximum length of a PSPO is three years, but it can be reviewed at any time. 
 
1.3 Restrictions 
 
Restrictions and requirements are set by the local authority and can be blanket restrictions or 
requirements, or can be targeted towards certain behaviour by certain groups at certain times. They can 
restrict access to public spaces (including certain types of highway) where that route is being used to 
commit anti-social behaviour. 
 
Orders can be enforced by a police officer, police community support officer and delegated council 
officers. A breach of the Order is a criminal offence and can be dealt with through the issuing of a Fixed 
Penalty Notice of up to £100 (to be fixed locally), or a level 3 fine of up to £1000, on prosecution. 

 
Section 59 of the ASB etc. Act sets out the basis on which local authorities may make a PSPO.  
It provides as follows - 
(1)  A local authority may make a public spaces protection order if satisfied on reasonable grounds 

that two conditions are met. 
(2)  The first condition is that: 

(a)  Activities carried on in a public place within the authority's area have had a detrimental 
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or 

(b)  It is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that area and that they 
will have such an effect. 

(3)  The second condition is that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities— 
(a)  is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature, 
(b)  Is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and 
(c)  Justifies the restrictions imposed by the notice. 

(4)  A public spaces protection order is an order that identifies the public place referred to in 
subsection (2) (“the restricted area”) and— 

(a)  prohibits specified things being done in the restricted area, 
(b)  Requires specified things to be done by persons carrying on specified activities in 

that area, or 
(c)  Does both of those things. 

(5)   The only prohibitions or requirements that may be imposed are ones that are   reasonable to 
impose in order— 

(a)  To prevent the detrimental effect referred to in subsection (2) from continuing, 
occurring or recurring, or 

(b)  To reduce that detrimental effect or to reduce the risk of its continuance, 
occurrence or recurrence. 

 
 
 

Page 99



 

1.4 Essentially the Council needs to consider:  

 Is there a specific problem caused by particular on-going activities?  

 If so, what needs to be done to regulate or control the problem? 

 What is the least restrictive way of achieving this? 
 
1.5 Appeals against the setting up of a PSPO 
 

Anyone who lives in, or regularly works in or visits the area can appeal a PSPO in the High Court 
within six weeks of issue. Further appeal is available each time the PSPO is varied by the 
council. 
 

1.6 Human Rights Act 1998 / Equalities Issues   
 

When making a PSPO, the Council must have particular regard to the rights of freedom of 
expression and freedom of assembly and association set out in the Human Rights Act 1998 and 
must not act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. Human rights are enforced 
through existing rights of review and may therefore be taken as points in any challenge to the 
validity of any Order made by the Authority. 
If Convention rights are engaged (as they are with the making of a PSPO) any interference with 
them must be – 
(a)  In accordance with the law (in other words Council must be satisfied that the statutory 

conditions in Section 59 of the ASB etc. set out above in 1.4 are satisfied) 
(b)  In pursuit of a legitimate aim (in this instance the control of activities which, if not 

controlled, would have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality) and 
(c)  A proportionate means of achieving the legitimate aim 
 
The two issues which must therefore be addressed for every proposed restriction in the PSPO 
are whether the statutory criteria are met and whether the restrictions proposed are proportionate 
having regard to the legitimate aim of preserving the quality of life for everyone who lives or 
works in or who visits Pillgwenlly. 
 
Council must also have regard to the public sector equality duty at s.149 of the Equality Act 2010, 
which is as follows – 
(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 
(a)  Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; 
(b)  Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 
(c)  Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 

persons who do not share it. 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been made and is available as a Background paper. 

 
 
2. A Pillgwenlly PSPO 

 
2.1. The Police, with support from the Ward Members, have asked that Newport City Council 

consider implementing a Public Space Protection Order for the Pill Ward. A PSPO is intended to 
provide the Council and Police with additional powers to require individuals or groups from 
refraining from certain actions or to do certain things within specified times and within a clearly 
specified geographical location, to quote the Act “it can either be a blanket restriction or 
requirement or can be targeted against certain behaviours by certain groups at certain times”. As 
a result the following three restrictions were proposed (it should be noted that each requested 
restriction is intrinsically linked with the other). 
 

 
 

Page 100



 

Possible 
Restriction 

Detail Why Comments 

Alcohol 
consumption 

1. No person shall 
within the restricted 
area refuse to stop 
drinking alcohol or 
hand over any 
containers (sealed 
or unsealed) which 
are believed to 
contain alcohol, 
when required to do 
so by an authorised 
officer to prevent 
public nuisance or 
disorder.  

Alcohol 
consumption 
should be 
constrained 
within the 
boundaries of 
licensed 
premises. 
People under 
the influence 
of alcohol may 
act in an anti-
social manner. 
 

There is considerable evidence to 
support such a ban, whereby individuals 
gather and consume alcohol, this can 
result in: abusive behaviour directed 
towards the public, business people and 
visitors to the area; littering; indecent 
behaviour through urinating in the street 
or on buildings/ foul language 
 
The PSPO will allow enforcement officers 
to demand that individuals stop their 
activity; seize alcohol where appropriate, 
refusal to comply is a criminal offence. 
 
There is substantial evidence available to 
support this application which outlines 
incidents between July 2015 and the 
present date. This evidence has been 
obtained from logs recorded on both 
Police and Local Authority systems.  
Evidence is also available from 
complaints highlighted at public meetings 
raised by residents who have been 
affected by street drinkers and their anti-
social behaviour.  

General 
nuisance 
and Anti-
social 
behaviour. 

2. A person is 
prohibited from 
congregating in a 
group of three or 
more persons 
within the 
Restricted Area 
AFTER an 
authorised person 
has requested that 
the group disperse. 
 
3. A person is 
prohibited from 
having in their 
possession, selling 
or supplying any 
intoxicating 
substance namely 
any substance with 
the capacity to 
stimulate or 
depress the central 
nervous system but 
does not include 
alcohol, tobacco or 
vaporisers; a 
person is required 
to surrender any 
such intoxicating 

This can be 
intimidating to 
the public 
including both 
residents and 
visitors to the 
area.  
There are calls 
recorded 
relating to drug 
and criminal 
activity 
together with 
anti-social 
behaviour. 

Within the Police request there is 
evidence which shows that groups gather 
in the street or residential areas; often 
using offensive or threatening behaviour 
towards residents, shop keepers or 
visitors, behaviour that is clearly 
intimidating and which is at times a 
criminal offence such as drug dealing, 
assault or robbery. There is also 
evidence of people being subjected to 
intimidation and threats to themselves 
and their property. 
 
This allows for individuals to still stand 
around in groups if they are not causing 
any trouble and thus will have not been 
asked to disperse: it’s only targeting 
those people being antisocial. 

 
The Police have stated that the benefit of 
the PSPO is that they will be able to 
require those engaged in this activity or 
suspected thereof to leave the area 
where there is no substantive evidence 
to prove a criminal offence. This power is 
not provided for elsewhere in law, a 
dispersal order is NOT always in place 
and requires the authority of a senior 
officer which can take time and only lasts 

Page 101



 

Possible 
Restriction 

Detail Why Comments 

substance in his/her 
possession when 
asked to do so by 
an authorised 
officer in the 
Restricted Area.  A 
person does not 
commit an offence 
under this Order 
where the said 
substance is used 
for a valid medicinal 
use.  
 

up to 24-48 hours. 

The PSPO provides an ‘instant’ outcome 
for the authorities and allows officers to 
deal with incidents without any additional 
delay. 
Again there is substantial evidence 
available to support this application 
which outlines incidents between July 
2015 and the present date. This 
evidence has been obtained from logs 
recorded on both Police and Local 
Authority systems.  This has been raised 
by residents at public meetings, who 
have been affected by these youths and 
their criminal and anti-social behaviour. 

 
CCTV cameras have been erected at 
locations within the Pill area to disrupt 
this behaviour. One camera has been 
attacked twice in as many months to stop 
it recording as it presence was having an 
effect on the anti-social behaviour being 
demonstrated by youths in that locality. 

 
3. The Scrutiny and Consultation Process 

3.1. The subject was taken to the Street Scene Scrutiny Committee, initially on 13 October 2016,  
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6658 
 

where the above three restrictions were discussed, evidence received from officers from Gwent 
Police and it was agreed that the proposal for a PSPO should be put out for consultation and 
then brought back for further consideration once the consultation results had been collated. 
 

3.2. Consultation Results 
Consultation took place between 15 November 2016 and 16 January 2017 with elected 
Members for the Pillgwenlly area, Council Legal Services, Gwent Police including the Gwent 
Police and Crime Commissioner and Registered Social Landlords; together with the public 
through online and social media surveys, at public meetings and through community based 
organisations. The public was invited to consider the three proposed measures and to suggest 
others. They were also able to comment on the possible boundary of the PSPO.  
All expressed strong support for the introduction of a PSPO with the proposed measures.  
 

3.3. The Street Scene Scrutiny Committee at its 16 March 2017 meeting considered a report 
containing the results of the consultation  
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6661 

and again considered the draft restrictions for the PSPO.  Officers from Gwent Police attended to 
answer questions. 
 

There were 251 responses to the survey and in summary the results were:  

Are you a.....? 

160 (64%) Resident of Pill 54 (21.6%) Worker in Pill 

21 (8.4%) Visitor 15 (6%) Other 

Please specify:  56 comments received 

Page 102

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6658
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6661


 

 
Residents, social landlords and their employees who deal with the issues experienced by the 
residents make up the majority of those surveyed. These are the people experiencing the anti-
social issues in the area and are those most qualified to comment upon them. 

 

Have you experienced Anti-Social Behaviour in Pill in the past 12 months? 

21 (8.5%) Never 18 (7.3%) Rarely 

62 (25%) Occasionally 147 (59.3) Frequently 

What type of Anti-Social Behaviour?  (143 comments received) 

 
 

Do you believe that the introduction of the City Centre Public Space Protection 
Order, last year, moved anti-social behaviour, e.g. street drinking into the Pill area? 

 144 (61.3%) Yes 91 (38.7%)  No 

If yes, please give details: (86 comments received) 

 
This question was designed to elucidate whether there had been any displacement of street 
drinking following the introduction of the city centre PSPO in November 2015. The comments 
were divided between those that thought there had been some displacement and others who felt 
it had been bad for some time. They highlight the issues surrounding the use of alcohol and how 
that has impacted on the Pill area. 

 
Proposed Control Measures- Consultation outcome 
 
Control Measure 1 Alcohol 

240 (96.8%) Agree 8 (3.2%) Disagree 

If you disagree, why? (12 comments received) 

 
There is strong public opinion in support of this recommendation. Many of those surveyed 
expressed their concerns over the use of alcohol on the streets and how that coupled with other 
issues is adversely affecting the Pill area. Their comments only expand on the reasons for their 
support for this particular measure 
 

191 (79.9%) Yes 48 (20.1%)  No 

 

Please add any further comments about this condition. (81 comments received) 

 
Control Measure 2 Dispersal of Groups being antisocial 

A person is prohibited from congregating in a group of three or more persons within the 
Restricted Area AFTER an authorised person has requested that the group disperse -  this 
allows for individuals to still stand around in groups if they are not causing any trouble and 
therefore have not been asked to disperse: it’s only targeting those people being antisocial. 

 226 (91.1%) Agree 22 (8.9%)  Disagree 

If you disagree, why? (24 comments received) 

 
There is strong support for this measure to be included within the PSPO. Those surveyed 
comment predominately about groups of males who are intimidating by their presence on the 
streets coupled with their behaviour. These comments far from disagreeing with the proposal 
actually show a greater support than the figures suggest. One comment suggests that Police 
dispersal powers are sufficient to deal with this issue but this is an isolated view. 

Page 103



 

 

Have you been affected by / witness to this type of behaviour in Pill recently? 

185 (76.4%) Yes 57 (23.6%)  No 

 

Please add any further comments about this condition. (81 comments received) 

 
Of the comments posted they highlight a number of areas of complaint many of which relate to 
the behaviour of groups of male persons and how their behaviour and activities are intimidating. 
Other issues have been highlighted which fall outside the scope of the PSPO. 
 
Control Measure 3  Intoxicating substances 

A person is prohibited from having in their possession, selling or supplying any intoxicating 
substance namely any substance with the capacity to stimulate or depress the central nervous 
system but does not include alcohol (covered by Control no 1), tobacco or vaporisers; a person 
is required to surrender any such intoxicating substance in his / her possession when asked to 
do so by an authorised officer in the Restricted Area.  A person does not commit an offence 
under this Order where the said substance is used for a valid medicinal use. 

232 (93.9%) Agree 15 (6.1%)       Disagree 

If you disagree, why? (13 comments received) 

 
Again there is strong support shown for this restriction to be included in the PSPO. The 
comments received concentrate on general possession and supply of controlled drugs as well as 
the ‘legal highs’ covered by this section.  
 

Have you been affected by / witness to this type of behaviour in Pill recently? 

179 (74.6%) Yes 61 (25.4%)  No 

 

Please add any further comments about this condition. (64 comments received) 

 
The majority of comments surround the possession and supply of controlled drugs throughout the 
day and night times. No comments criticise the control, each continues to support the proposals. 
 
Additional Questions 

 

Is there anything else you would like to see included in the Order? 

132 (60.3%) Yes 87 (39.7%) No 

Please state: (124 comments received) 

 
Of those surveyed many have made suggestions to include further restrictions within the order. 
Many of these suggestions have been considered during the preparatory process and whilst 
many have some considerable merit, they have not been included in the application. 
 
Boundary of the proposed Order 

 

The below image shows the boundary that is covered by the PSPO. 
What do you think we should do (tick your preference)? 

 167 (72.9%) Keep to the Pill boundary 59 (25.8%)  Make bigger 

3 (1.3%) Make smaller 

Page 104



 

If you have ticked 'make bigger' or 'make smaller', please give details. (34 comments 
received) 

 
The vast majority of those surveyed agree with the boundary area or wish to increase it, in some 
cases, to include the Royal Gwent Hospital and in some cases as far as Maesglas and Duffryn. 

 
3.4 The Committee requested that the wording be altered in the order to reflect that the exemption to 

the intoxicating substance ban to include ‘food stuffs regulated by food health and safety legislation’ 
so as to exclude drinks, such as coffee from the restriction. Officers agreed to include this in the 
version that would be presented to the Council and that is reflected in the Appendix. 

 
The Committee agreed to make the following recommendations to the Council:  

1. That the Council proceed with the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for Pillgwenlly, as 
per the draft order and boundary map presented to the Committee.  

2.  If the PSPO is approved by the Council, that the implementation of the PSPO be monitored 
and reported back to the Scrutiny Committee within 1 year.  
 

4. Essentially for each measure: 
4.1. Council needs to consider:  
 
Is there a specific problem caused by particular activities?  
If so, what needs to be done to regulate or control the problem? 
What is the least restrictive and proportionate way of achieving this? 
 

5. Approving the Pillgwenlly PSPO 
 
This is matter for full Council to decide. 
 

6. Enforcing the PSPO 
6.1. In the main, due to the nature of the behaviour to be controlled, the PSPO would be enforced by 

Gwent Police.   Police Officers have urged the restrictions be put in place to provide a quicker 
enforcement route to tackle behaviour that all parties readily identify as problematic in Pill. Initial 
work would involve advising affected parties as to the restrictions, through a variety of methods: 
publicity, individual conversations, warning letters.  Contraventions would then be dealt with by 
way of a “stepped-up” enforcement approach, with fixed penalties and even prosecution only 
being considered where advice and warnings had failed. 

 
7. Financial Summary 

The cost of implementing the PSPO will be funded through existing budgets. 
Enforcement, in the main, will be carried out by Gwent Police. 

8. Risks 
Risk Impact of Risk 

if it 
occurs*(H/M/L) 

Probability of 
risk occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing or 
what has it done to avoid the 
risk or reduce its effect 

Who is responsible 
for dealing with the 
risk? 

Council puts in 
measures that are 
not supported 

H L Consultation. Listen to all 
groups that are affected. 

Public Protection 
Manager 

Council puts in 
measures that are 
disproportionate to 
the problems 
experienced /  
open to legal 
challenge 

H M Ensure the evidence is 
robust and that the 
measures that are 
introduced are balanced 
against the anti-social 
behaviour experienced 
and the right level of 
restrictions to address it. 
Take legal advice. 

Head of Law and 
Regulation 

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures 

Page 105



 

9. Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 

This work will support the following Council Policies and Strategies: 
 

 Newport City Council’s Corporate and Improvement Plans (Relevant priorities: A Working City 
and A Safer City). 

 Public Service Board- One Newport’s themes of Health and Wellbeing and (countering) Anti-
social Behaviour. 

 
It will also assist the Council to meet its ‘wellbeing goals’ under the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015; in particular the ‘prosperity’ and “To build cohesive and sustainable 
communities. In particular “Work with key partners to tackle antisocial behaviour and crime, and 
improve community cohesion and wellbeing in Pillgwenlly, and use this area focussed model to 
inform potential future programmes in other areas of Newport”.  

 
10. Options Available and considered  

Option 1 
Approve the Pill Public Space Protection Order as set out at the Appendix, as per the Scrutiny 
Committee’s Recommendations, following the public consultation: with three restrictions. 

 
Option 2 
Approve the Pill Public Space Protection Order, but delete or amend one or more of the proposed 
restrictions. 
 
Option 3 
Not to approve the Order and remit it back for further consideration as to the measures to be 
included. 

 
11. Preferred Option and Why 

 
Option no 1 
Approve the Pill Public Space Protection Order as set out at the Appendix, as per the Scrutiny 
Committee’s Recommendations, following the public consultation: with three restrictions.   The Order 
has broad support from all agencies and the public and would provide more, readily useable 
enforcement tools to combat the prevalent antisocial behaviour that blights the area. 

 
12. Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 

There are no direct financial implications coming from this report – the implementation of the Pill 
Centre Public Space Protection Order will have to be completed within the available budgets as 
stated within the report. 

 
13. Legal Comments and Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 

The Council has a statutory power under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 to 
make Public Space Protection Orders in order to prevent types of anti-social behaviour which have, 
or are likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and the 
behaviour is or is likely to be persistent or continuing in nature.  The nature and extent of the PSPO 
must be reasonable having regard to the type of behaviour and its impact on the public. 
 
In accordance with the legislation and the statutory guidance, the Council is required to consult with 
the Police, the Police and Crime Commissioner and specific community groups, and to have regard 
to any observations made before deciding whether or not to introduce any PSPO.  However, 
because of the potential impact of any PSPO, it was agreed that a wider consultation and public 
engagement exercise should be undertaken as part of a Scrutiny review.  A range of possible 
measures that could be included within the PSPO were identified by Scrutiny, based on historical 
complaints, and the Council has carried out a general public consultation exercise to assess the 

Page 106



 

need and justification for specific controls, to inform the final decision.  The results of the 
engagement with key stakeholders and the public responses to the wider consultation are contained 
within this Report. Scrutiny Committee have considered the consultation responses and have 
formulated their recommendations, which are set out in the draft PSPO (Appendix).   The final 
decision regarding the adoption of any PSPO is a matter for full Council. 
 
When considering the need for any PSPO, the Council must act reasonably and, in particular, it must 
have regard to the Human Rights Act 1998. However, the rights and freedoms set out in the Articles 
to the Human Rights Act are qualified rights and can lawfully be restricted or limited where this is a 
necessary and proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim, including public safety and the 
prevention of crime and disorder. It is a question of balancing rights and freedoms of individuals 
against the needs of the wider community. Therefore, the Council has to take a balanced decision 
regarding the need for any prohibition or restriction and its impact on the freedoms and rights of 
individuals.   
 
Any prohibition order must be a reasonable and proportionate means of preventing or reducing the 
detrimental impact of specific types of anti-social behaviour within the designated area of 
Pillgwenlly.  The proposed alcohol ban provision replicates the current ban within the City Centre, but 
the dispersal provisions and the prohibition of other intoxicating substances are new measures, 
designed to address specific problems in this area. When considering the need for and the impact of 
any PSPO, the Council also has to have regard to its public sector equality duty under Section 149 of 
the Equality Act 2010 and an Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out. 
 
Public support for a particular measure is not, of itself, sufficient grounds to make a PSPO. The 
Council needs to be satisfied that the proposed controls are justified because of a specific problem 
and a need to control the anti-social behaviour in order to protect the public. The Council also has to 
be satisfied that the extent of the controls or prohibitions is reasonable and that there are no 
alternative, and less restrictive ways, of regulating the problems. 
 
There is a statutory right of appeal to the High Court within 6 weeks if a PSPO is considered to be 
unreasonable. 

 

14. Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
 

The report asks Council to approve a Public Space Protection Order for Pillgwenlly. The 
implementation will be met from existing resources and as such there are no specific staffing 
implications.  
 
Since disturbances in October 2016, there has been multi-agency work in Pillgwenlly, overseen by 
the Public Services Board, to improve local well-being. A PSPO is one way of strengthening 
enforcement powers to tackle community safety and cohesion issues. 
 
Significant public engagement has been undertaken in the development of the proposal.  The report 
notes that residents, social landlords and their employees who deal with the issues raised by the 
residents make up the majority of those surveyed. These are the people experiencing the anti-social 
issues and are therefore most qualified to comment on them. The engagement demonstrates 
considerable support for the proposed control measures with significant numbers of people saying 
they had frequently experienced anti-social behaviour issues that concern people.  The responses 
reflect a similar survey carried out for the Pill Area Focus Group which highlighted substance 
misuse, gangs congregating and anti-social behaviour as being key concerns for the Pill community. 

 
Any PSPO should be seen in the context of other, preventative work, currently being undertaken 
with individuals, families and communities within Newport. Whilst considering the options presented, 
Council should be mindful of the full range of evidence available, including the impacts and 
mitigations drawn out within the Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment (FEIA), to ensure any 
decision does not disproportionately impact upon any groups within the protected characteristics of 
the Equalities Act 2010. If there is any disproportionate impact then there will need to be robust 

Page 107



 

mitigating measures in place and Council will have to ensure that they are adequate and appropriate 
to the risk identified.  

 

Comments of Cabinet Member for Licensing and Regulation 
 
Community safety/ combating Anti-social behaviour comes under the portfolio of this Cabinet 
Member. He has considered the recommendations of Scrutiny Committee, together with the 
consultation responses, and agrees with the three measures recommended by Scrutiny, along with 
the boundary of the PSPO.  

 

Local issues- Comments of Pillgwenlly Ward Councillors 
 

The Public Space Protection Order is a welcome part of the continued success of Pillgwenlly.  
All the elements to bring this order for the community took a lot of hard work and dedication for all 
those involved. It will give greater powers to the police to curb any anti-social behaviour and will send 
a clear message that this kind of behaviour will not be tolerated in the Community. 
This in turn will help make our community cleaner, safer and healthier. 
We welcome the PSPO as does the whole community and would like to thank the Leader, the deputy 
leader, the Cabinet member and officers from Public Protection for their tireless work in bringing the 
PSPO to fruition. 

 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 

It will also assist the Council to meet its well-being objectives under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015; in particular the objective “To build safe and cohesive communities” 
and the supporting step “Work with key partners to tackle antisocial behaviour and crime, and 
improve community cohesion and wellbeing in Pillgwenlly, and use this area focussed model to 
inform potential future programmes in other areas of Newport”.  
 
It contributes to the well-being goals of “A prosperous Wales” and “A Wales of Cohesive 
Communities”. 
 
The proposal is in line with the sustainable development principle. In particular, local people have 
been involved through a consultation exercise - the proposed restrictions seek to respond to their 
expressed concerns; the PSPO aims to prevent problems relating to anti-social behaviour in 
Pillgwenlly getting any worse; this is a collaborative activity in partnership with Gwent Police and 
forms part of an integrated programme of Public Services Board action in Pillgwenlly to improve the 
well-being of local people. 

 

 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
The introduction of the Pill PSPO will provide more/ readily useable enforcement tools to combat the 
prevalent antisocial behaviour that blights the area. 

 

Consultation  
See paragraph 3.2 above. 

 

Background Papers 
Scrutiny papers at   
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6658 

 
And https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6661 
 
Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment Pill PSPO 

Dated: 

Page 108

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6658
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MID=6661


 

Appendix   
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 

SECTION 59 
PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2017 

PILLGWENLLY, NEWPORT 
 

NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL in exercise of its powers under Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”) hereby makes this Order, being satisfied on reasonable grounds 
that activities in a public space, namely in the PILLGWENLLY area of Newport, have had or are likely to 
have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and that these activities involved 
various anti-social behaviours. Further, Newport City Council believes that the effect, or likely effect, of 
the said activities is, or is likely to be, persistent or continuing in nature, such as to make the activities 
unreasonable and justifies the restrictions imposed by this Order:- 
 
1. This Order shall come into operation on                                 2017 and shall have effect for a 

period of 3 years thereafter, unless extended by further Orders under the Council’s statutory 
powers. 

 
2. This Order relates to the public place in the City of Newport as shown edged red on the Plan 

annexed to this Order (“the Restricted Area”) commonly referred to as “Pill”.  
 
PROHIBITIONS:- 
 
3. No person shall within the Restricted Area refuse to stop drinking alcohol or hand over any 

containers (sealed or unsealed) which are believed to contain alcohol, when required to do so by 
an authorised officer to prevent public nuisance or disorder. 

 
4. No person shall congregate in a group of 3 or more persons within the Restricted Area AFTER an 

authorised person has requested that the group disperse. 
 
5.   Intoxicating substances: No person shall within the Restricted Area: 
 

a. Ingest, inhale, inject, smoke, possess or otherwise use intoxicating substances. 

b. Sell or supply intoxicating substances. 

c. Persons who breach this prohibition shall surrender any such intoxicating substance in his/her 

possession when asked to do so by an authorised officer in the Restricted Area.   

 

“Intoxicating substances” (commonly referred to as “legal highs” or psychoactive substances) is 

given the following definition: substances with the capacity to stimulate or depress the central 

nervous system.  Exemptions: alcohol (covered by (3) above), tobacco inc. vaporisers, food stuffs 

(to include drinks) regulated by food, health and safety legislation and where the substances are 

used for valid and demonstrable medicinal use, or substances given to an animal as a medicinal 

remedy. 

 

FIXED PENALTY NOTICES AND OFFENCES:- 

 
6. It is an offence for a person without reasonable excuse to engage in any activity that is prohibited 

by this Order. 
7. In accordance with section 63 of the Act, a person found to be in breach of this Order by 

consuming alcohol or by refusing to surrender alcohol to an authorised person is liable on 
summary conviction to a maximum penalty of a Level 2 fine (currently £500) or to a Fixed Penalty 
Notice up to £100. 

8. In accordance with section 67 of the Act, a person found to be in breach of this Order other than 
by consuming alcohol or by refusing to surrender alcohol to an authorised person is liable on 

Page 109



 

summary conviction to a maximum penalty of a Level 3 fine (currently £1000) or to a Fixed 
Penalty Notice up to £100. 

 
APPEALS:- 
9. If any interested person wishes to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the 

Council had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in 
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within 6 weeks from the date on 
which this Order is made. 

 
Dated: 
THE COMMON SEAL of     ) 
NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL was   ) 
here unto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 
      ) 

Annex-    Map showing area to be covered by the PSPO. 

 

Page 110



Report 
Council 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  25 July 2017 
 

Subject Annual Report of the Democratic Services Committee 
 

Purpose To submit the Annual Report of the Democratic Services Committee to Council. 

 

Author  Chief Democratic Services Officer 

 

Ward All wards 

 

Summary The Local Government Measure requires each county and county borough council 

to establish a Democratic Services Committee. 
 
The Measure prescribes the functions of the democratic service committee and 
states that the committee must make a report at least annually to the Council.  

 
The attached annual report was agreed by the Democratic Services Committee on 
20 June 2017.  The report provides evidence that the Committee has carried out its 
required function by reviewing the adequacy of staff to support members. 

 

Proposal To endorse the content of this annual report. 

 
Action by  Chief Democratic Services Officer 

 

Timetable Immediate and ongoing 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 
 

 Chief Executive 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Head of Finance 
 Head of People & Business Change 

 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 11.



1. Background 
 
1.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 (The Measure) requires the Council to appoint a 
democratic services committee. 
 
2. Functions 
 
2.1 Members are reminded that the Measure prescribes the functions of the democratic service 
committee as: 
 

 Designating the Head of Democratic Services:  
 
This was undertaken at the Committee’s first meeting in 2013 where the existing post of 
chief democratic services officer is designated as the statutory role of Head of 
Democratic Services.  
 

 Keeping under review the provision of staff, accommodation and other resources made 
available to the head of democratic services in order that it is adequate for the 
responsibilities of the post:  A report elsewhere on the agenda of the Committee 
provides this analysis                              
 

 Making reports, at least annually, to the Council in relation to these matters. 
 

 The DSC cannot perform other functions, apart from overseeing the democratic services 
functions prescribed in the Measure and, therefore, cannot discharge any dual role (for 
example doubling-up as a Scrutiny committee) 
 

Members will recall that the City Council agreed to widen the role of the Democratic Services 
Committee to include the consideration of any proposed amendments to the council’s constitution 
for recommendation to the executive where appropriate and to the council. This was undertaken at 
the earliest possible stage in Newport.  
 
The Measure was subsequently amended by the Local Government Democracy (Wales) Act 2013, 
to specifically provide for a wider range of functions for Democratic Services Committees, along 
the lines adopted in Newport. 
  
 
3. Provision of staff, accommodation and other resources made available to the Head of 

Democratic Services 
 

Elsewhere on this agenda, the Head of Democratic Services has prepared his annual report in 
which he informs the committee that staff allocated to the Democratic Services and Scrutiny 
functions provide the Council with a skilled, hardworking and committed working team supporting 
elected members in their varying roles.  
 
The individuals working in this area clearly provide value for money and each works hard to ensure 
that elected members’ needs are met.   
 
The Head of Democratic Services states that the provision by the authority of staff, accommodation 
and other resources by the Council is adequate to discharge the statutory requirements in relation 
to Decision Making, Democratic Administration and Scrutiny as they currently exist.   
 
The impact of any changes in statutory requirements, or the needs of members would need to be 
kept under review and would be the subject of a report to this committee.   
 
 
 

Page 112



Financial Summary 
 
The chair of the democratic services committee is entitled to a special responsibility allowance in 
accordance with the prescribed members’ allowances scheme. There are no specific costs 
associated with the running of this committee other than those involved in the cost of 
administration of this and other council functions within the democratic process. 
 
Risks 
 

Risk Impact  
of Risk 
if it 
occurs* 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing or 
what has it done to avoid the 
risk or reduce its effect 

Who is 
responsible for 
dealing with the 
risk? 

Non-compliance 
with the 
requirements of 
the Local 
Government 
measure 

H L This report suggests the 
content of an annual report in 
line with the requirements of 
the Measure. 

Chief 
Democratic 
Services Officer 
and Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 
Consideration of this report meets the requirements of the Local Government Measure.  
 
Options Available 
 
To consider the annual report and to present an agreed version of the report to the Council  
 
To take no action  
 
Preferred Option and Why 
 
To consider the annual report and to present an agreed version to the Council in order to meet the 
requirements of the Local Government Measure  
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 
The chair of the democratic services committee is entitled to a special responsibility allowance in 
accordance with the prescribed members’ allowances scheme. There are no specific costs 
associated with the establishment of this committee other than those involved in the cost of 
administration of this and other council functions within the democratic process. These can be met 
by the existing budget 
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
There are no legal issues arising from the Report. The Annual Report sets out the work of the 
Committee over the past year and confirms that it has discharged its responsibilities in terms of the 
democratic services function in accordance with the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.  
 

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
 
The Head of Democratic Services states that the provision by the authority of staff, accommodation 
and other resources by the Council is adequate to discharge the statutory requirements in relation 
to Decision Making, Democratic Administration and Scrutiny as they currently exist.  There are 
therefore no staffing implications arising at this time. 

Page 113



Background Papers 
 
The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
 
Dated: 20 June 2017 

Page 114



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Newport City Council 
Democratic Services 

Committee 
Annual Report 

2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



1. Introduction 
 
The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 (The Measure) requires the local authority to appoint a 
democratic services committee. 
 
2. Prescribed Functions 
 
The Measure prescribes the functions of the democratic service committee as: 
 

I. Designating the head of democratic services 
 

II. Keeping under review the provision of staff, accommodation and other resources made available 
to the head of democratic services in order that it is adequate for the responsibilities of the post. 

 
III. Making reports, at least annually, to the council in relation to these matters. 

 
3. A Wider Role for the Committee 

 
When establishing the Committee, the Council considered that the Democratic Services Committee 
should undertake a wider role than the functions prescribed by the Local Government Measure, as set 
out above. It was considered that this Committee would provide a forum for discussions on any matters 
that relate to the Council’s Constitution. To this end the function of the Committee was extended to  
include the consideration of any proposed amendments to the council’s constitution for recommendation 
to the executive where appropriate and to the council. 
 

The Measure was subsequently amended by the Local Government Democracy (Wales) Act 2013, to 
specifically provide for a wider range of functions for Democratic Services Committees, along the lines 
adopted in Newport 

 
4. Structure and Membership 
 
The Committee comprises  
 

 Councillor Charles Ferris  (Chair)   

 Councillor Tom Bond     

 Councillor Matthew Evans     

 Councillor Chris Evans     

 Councillor Malcolm Linton     

 Councillor David Mayer     

 Councillor Jane Mudd     

 Councillor Kate Thomas     

 Councillor Trevor Watkins     

 
This is a politically balanced group comprising members with various roles in the Council and varying 
levels of experience. This group works well together and shares a joint aim of seeking to improve the 
way the Council works > the membership of the Committee has changed with effect from the AGM in 
2016 
 
Councillors from the various groups have worked together in a non–partisan way to consider various 
aspects of the Constitution and other matters that impact on the governance of the Council   
 
The non-political stance taken by members of the committee has encouraged interesting discussions on 
the topics presented to the Committee. 

Page 116

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=56
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=25
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=55
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=54
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=52
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=17
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=47
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=37
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=30


Members’ skills in reviewing the issues presented to them have been enhanced through experience and 
will continue in the coming year through further experience and, hopefully, development opportunities. 
 
5. Activities 
 
In the past year we have undertaken a range of activities, including the following. The list provides 
highlights of the issues we discussed and the views expressed by the Committee 
 
Independent Remuneration Panel  
 
We agreed a formal response the draft report by the Independent Remuneration Panel  
 
Introduction Pack for members post-election 2017  
 
We agreed the content of introduction pack for members to be distributed after the election in 2017  
 
Review of the Constitution 
 
We have continued our review of the constitution, including the following:  
 
Framework Member Role Descriptions and Person Specifications  
 
We agreed to recommend to Council the adoption of Framework Member role descriptions for inclusion 
in the Constitution.  
 
Scheme of Delegation 
 
We considered an updated scheme of delegation and made a recommendation to Council that it adopts 
the scheme  
 
Mayoralty 
 
We agreed a protocol for members wishing to defer their term of office as the Mayor and recommended 
the protocol for adoption and inclusion in the Constitution  
 
6. The Coming Year 
 
We will need to continue our work in reviewing any proposals for amendments to the council’s 
constitution for recommendation to the executive where appropriate and to the council. 
 
Issues relating to the constitution and any proposed amendments arising from the Corporate 
Assessment will need to be considered by this committee.  
 
7. Can I attend Meetings of the Democratic Services Committee 
 
Yes – all of our meetings are open to the public, except for specific items in exceptional circumstances. 
Dates of forthcoming meetings, agendas, reports and minutes are available on the Council website  
 
8. Who do I contact if I want to know more? 
 
If you wish to find out more about the Democratic Services Committee please visit our website: where 
you will find an online contact form or email us at info@newport.gov.uk 
 
Councillor Charles Ferris 
Chair of the Democratic Services Committee 
 
Richard Jefferies 
Chief Democratic Services Officer 

Page 117

mailto:info@newport.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
Standards Committee 

 
Date: 29 June 2017 
 
Time: 5.30 pm 
 
Present: P Westwood (Chair), H Thomas, P Hourahine, Britton, A Mitchell and Watkins 
 
In Attendance: G Price (Head of Law & Regulation), M Chesterman and A Jenkins (Democratic 

Services Officer) 
 
Apologies: Councillor D Fouweather 
 

 
 
1 Appointment of Independent Vice Chair  

 
A Mitchell was nominated and seconded as Independent Vice-Chair. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 
None received. 
 

3 Chair's Announcements  
 
There were no announcements by the Chair. 
 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 16 February 2017  
 
The minutes of the meeting of 16 February 2017 were submitted.  

 
Agreed: 
That the Minutes of the meeting were accepted as a true record. 
 

5 Matters Arising  
 
Matters Arising 
 
 Gareth briefly outlined the purpose of the Standards Committee for Councillor Hourahine. 
 
 The Chair was keen to proceed with a network group of Standards Committee members 

within neighbouring authorities.  G Price suggested a networking forum, which all 
members were in agreement with. 

 
Agreed:   
To arrange a Networking forum with local authorities.  

 
 Code of Conduct training was provided after the elections in May.  This consisted of three 

separate sessions, one morning, afternoon and early evening, accommodating all 
councillors and community councillors. It was noted that there were 10 remaining 
Newport councillors did not attend any of the training sessions provided. 

Page 119

Agenda Item 15.



 

 
Discussion ensued as to how committee members would want to proceed.  Several 
suggestions included a later time slot for those working full time or writing to the 
respective business managers on how to go forward. 
 
T Britton suggested writing individually to the councillors to advise that the Standards 
Committee members were fully aware that they hadn’t attended mandatory training. 
 
It was unanimously agreed that a letter be sent to the 10 outstanding councillors noting 
that their non-attendance was brought to the attention of the Standards Committee and a 
final mop up session date be set.  The minute could also be raised at Council. 

 
Agreed: 
 That a letter be sent to individual councillors, noting that committee members were 

aware that they did not attend training and that a final mop-up session date be 
arranged.   

 A copy of the letter would go to the respective business managers. 
 That Council note the minute for information. 

 
 Councillor Thomas suggested a standard agenda item to cover any general queries that 

members might want to raise at the committee.  After brief discussion it was suggested 
that Any Other Business be included on the Agenda for all future meetings. 

 
Agreed: 
Any other business item to be added to the agenda. 

 
 Cllr Thomas referred to Community Councils and whether the Council kept a record of 

their financial spending, this wasn’t the case.  Discussion ensued regarding expenditure 
within Community Councils.  They could incur expenditure on most things, as long as it 
was considered an appropriate use of money and a benefit to the public.  Additionally, if a 
community councillor had any association or link with a group, a declaration of interest 
form would need to be completed, unless it was within the £500 de minimis level, 
otherwise any larger amount would go to the Standards Committee to ask for special 
dispensation. 

 
6 Complaints  

 
Two complaints went to the Ombudsman but were both declined on both and the 
investigations were not pursued. 
 

7 Nomination of Community Councillors Representative: Update  
 
As there were three community councillors interested in the position, G Price suggested that 
the interested persons; namely, J Small from Goldcliffe, J Davies from Bishton and J Harris 
from Graig attend an interview.  The Chair, K Watkins and T Britton agreed to sit on the 
panel.  A Jenkins would email all the interested parties to arrange an interview date. 
 
Agreed: 
That an interview panel for the selection of a Community Council Representative on 
Standards Committee be convened. 
 

8 Work Programme  
 
A work programme would be compiled and presented to the committee at the next meeting in 
October along with the draft Annual Report. 
 

Page 120



 

The Chair referred to the protocol on member/officer relations.  G Price suggested preparing 
a draft report to discuss at the next meeting in October. 
 
The Chair also queried possible protocol in relation to social media.  There was a WLGA 
guidance note which was distributed a previous meeting, which members of the committee 
would be advised to refer to, as a positive way of using social media.  There was therefore 
nothing to be picked up under the work programme. 
 
Agreed: 
The Annual Report would be brought to the next meeting. 
The Protocol on Member/Officer Relations be brought to the next meeting 
The forward work programme would be brought to the next meeting. 
 

9 Date of Next Meeting  
 
The date of the next meeting would take place on Thursday 26 October 2017 at 5.30pm in 
Committee Room 4. 
 

 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1. Agenda yn Gymraeg
	5. Minutes
	6. Appointments
	Outside Bodies Appts - July 2017 updates
	Internal Appts - July 2017 updates

	8. Standing Orders
	9. Director of Social Services Annual Report
	Director of Social Services Annual Report 2016-17

	10. Pillgwenlly Public Space Protection Order
	11. Democratic Services Committee Annual Report
	15. Standards Committee

